
COUNCIL Workshop June 18, 2018 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a Council Workshop of the North Mankato City 
Council was held in the Municipal Building Council Chambers on June 18, 2018. Mayor Dehen called 
the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. The following were present for roll call: Mayor Dehen, Council 
Members Norland, Whitlock, Steiner, City Administrator Harrenstein, Finance Director McCann, 
Community Development Director Fischer and City Clerk Van Genderen. Absent: Council Member 
Freyberg 

Discuss Short Term Rentals. 
Community Development Director Fischer reported staff knew of approximately six homes in 

North Mankato that were advertised as Airbnb. With this knowledge, the City conducted research and 
contacted other cities and met with the County before putting together the proposed framework. The 
proposed Ordinance would require anyone interested in a short-term rental to obtain a Conditional Use 
Permit. Neighbors would also be notified, and inspections of each unit conducted. City Administrator 
Harrenstein requested clarification on if the Council would like to regulate Airbnbs as they are 
currently not subject to code guidelines. City Administrator Han-enstein questioned ifthe Council 
would like to consider regulating, then the Planning Commission would review the program and send a 
recommendation to Council. 

Council Member Norland indicated she would like to hear more about the pros and cons and 
requested it go to the Planning Commission. Mayor Dehen noted he had seen regulations that 
managed short-term rentals with three designations; hosted, non-hosted where the owner is gone when 
the home is rented and purely short-term rentals. Council Member Whitlock requested clarification on 
if there would be a fee for a conditional use permit. Community Director Fischer noted there would be 
a fee to apply for a Conditional Use Permit. Discussion was held concerning ensuring units were 
inspected to protect renters and Council moved the Short Term Rentals to the Planning Commission 
for further study and review. 

Discuss Request for Proposal to Move 850 Nicollet Avenue. 
City Administrator Harrenstein reported the City purchased 850 Nicollet A venue which is 

located east of water plant # 1 to ensure the City can expand the water plant to provide water quality if 
needed. The home is currently vacant, and the City has offered its availability to state-owned facilities 
for vulnerable individuals. City Administrator Harrenstein noted an alternative would be to issue an 
RFP for someone to move the house. He indicated the City would not get what was paid for the 
property, but the home would not sit empty. Mayor Dehen requested ifthere was interest in the home. 
Community Development Director Fischer reported there was some interest in the home. Mayor 
Dehen indicated he would like to see the home used and not left vacant to deteriorate. The Mayor and 
Council Members requested staff prepare an RFP for consideration. 

Review Rental Density Committee Final Report 
Community Development Director Fischer reported the committee was formed following 

amendments in September of 2016 to the Rental Property Licensing Code. The amendments included 
a 10% rental density limitation in R-A, R-1, R-1 Sand R-2 zoning districts. The Rental Density 
Advisory Committee was created to review the changes. The Committee included two homeowners, a 
renter, a landlord, a real estate agent and a rental management professional. They met six times to 
review the changes. The committee commented and recommended the following information: 
affirmed the off-street parking amendment based on the square footage of sleeping rooms, required 
inspections before new rental licenses are issued, and the implementation ofrental inspections of 
current rentals (using volunteer firefighters), improved resources for tenants, and improved landlord 



COUNCIL Workshop June 18, 2018 2 

education. The committee reaffirmed the 10% rental density in areas zoned R-A, R-1, R-lS and R-2 
zoning districts. The committee further recommended increasing the rental licensing fee from $30.00 
to $45.00. Mayor Dehen requested clarification on how the Fire Department was doing on conducting 
rental inspections. Community Development Director Fischer reported headway is being made and 
problems are being found and resolved. Mayor Dehen opened the meeting to the public. 

Tom Hagen, 927 Lake Street, appeared before Council and indicated he did not approve of the 
report and requested further review. 

Fardousa Jama, Mankato, appeared before Council and requested additional review of the 10% 
Rental Density Cap. 

Mayor Dehen requested information on rental complaints. Community Development Director 
Fischer reported that during each committee meeting the committee reviewed complaints. Mayor 
Dehen asked for information on if there were concerns about not being able to obtain a rental license. 
Community Development Director Fischer repo1ted the City is still issuing licenses where permitted 
and there have not been any concerns. Mayor Dehen and Council Members requested a report on the 
number of rental licenses issued since the Rental Density Cap, the number of complaints, and the 
number of violations. 

Discuss Nature View Subdivision Sign 
City Administrator Harrenstein reported in May of 2018 the Council executed a license 

agreement with Nature View Subdivision for Outlot E. The license agreement allowed the use of the 
City-owned property for a sign for Nature View Subdivision and included stipulations ensuring the 
City could require the removal of the sign if necessary. The developer reviewed the agreement and 
determined he did not like the stipulations and is offering to purchase the property. City Administrator 
Harrenstein said City Engineer Sarff determined the Special Assessments for the property would be 
$5,675.00. The lot would be assessed the street improvement based on calculations that acknowledged 
no house could be built on the lot. City Administrator Harrenstein reported City records indicate the 
property was acquired in 1988 and the City did not pay for the purchase of the property. City 
Administrator Harrenstein stated the process would include setting a Public Hearing for July 2, 2018, 
at which time the sale could be coordinated. Council directed staff to proceed with setting a Public 
Hearing for July 2, 2018. 

Discuss Filling Police Officer Position 
City Administrator Harrenstein repo1ted the 2018 Budget included an additional Police Officer. 

The City determined to wait until mid-year to review the financial position of the City, and at this time 
the Finance Director and City Administrator have determined the City could authorize the hiring 
without it being burdensome. Mayor Dehen requested clarification on if the position would be a 
school resource position. City Administrator Harrenstein indicated staff would prefer a full-time 
position to assist the department. He reported Officers do enter the schools and create those 
connections. Council agreed that it would be beneficial to hire a new Police Officer. 

Mayor Dehen closed the Council Workshop at 7:32 p.m. 

Mayor 

City Clerk 



COUNCIL MINUTES June 18, 2018 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a regular meeting of the North Mankato City Council 
was held in the Municipal Building Council Chambers on June 18, 2018. Mayor Dehen called the 
meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. asking that everyone join in the Pledge of Allegiance. The following 
were present for roll call: Mayor Dehen, Council Members Whitlock, and Steiner, City Administrator 
Harrenstein, Finance Director McCann, Attorney Kennedy, Community Development Director 
Fischer, and City Clerk Van Genderen. Absent: Council Member Norland, Council Member Freyberg, 
and City Engineer Sarff. 

Approval of Agenda 
Council Member Steiner moved, seconded by Council Member Whitlock, to approve the 

agenda as presented. Vote on the motion: Whitlock, Steiner, and Dehen aye; no nays. Motion 
carried. 

Approval of Council Meeting Minutes 
Council Member Steiner moved, seconded by Council Member Whitlock, to approve the 

minutes of the Council meeting of June 4, 2018. Vote on the motion: Whitlock, Steiner, and 
Dehen aye; no nays. Motion carried. 

Consent Agenda 
Council Member Steiner moved, seconded by Council Member Whitlock, to approve the 

Consent Agenda. 
A. Bills and Appropriations. 
B. Res. No. 53-18 Approving Donations/Contributions/Grants. 
C. Approved Parade Permit for Final Stretch Inc., Triathlon on August 12, 2018, from 8:00 

a.m. to 1 :30 p.m. 
D. Approved Large Group and Audio Permit for Ulrich Celebration of Life on June 30, 2018, 

from Noon to I 0:00 p.m. 
E. Approved Seasonal Extension of Patio Premise for the American Legion at 256 Belgrade 

Avenue. 
F. Approved Amendment to Site Lease Agreement. 
G. Res. No. 54-18 Appointing Election Judges. 
H. Approved On-Sale Intoxicating, and Sunday On-Sale Liquor License for Twin City 

Lodging, LLC located at 1111 Range Street. 

Vote on the motion: Whitlock, Steiner, and Dehen aye; no nays. Motion carried. 

Public Comments Concerning Business Items on the Agenda 

Stefanie Jaguette, 519 Wheeler Avenue, appeared before Council and questioned the Wingert 
development agreement signed on May 7, 2018. She questioned the valuation of the lots proposed by 
Wingert, the unpaid assessments and the location of the agreement on the Consent Agenda. 

Discussion was held that no items were on the Business Agenda. It was allowed that the items 
discussed would be considered part of the Open Forum. 

Lucy Lowry, 2263 Northridge Drive, appeared before Council and questioned the Marie Lane 
extension stating only one propetty was being assessed for the road, while she believed ten properties 
would benefit. 



COUNCIL MINUTES June 18, 2018 

Tom Hagen, 927 Lake Street, appeared before Council and stated he wanted the Council to 
give him $35,000 to develop a vacant lot on Cornelia Street. 

Business Items 
None. 

Open Forum 

City Administrator and Staff Comments 

2 

City Administrator Harrenstein stated incentives are sometimes viewed as favoritism, but Cities 
use incentives, allowed by State Siatute, to draw in businesses and increase tax bases. An example 
would be the work completed in the North P01t Industrial Park. The incentives used, such as TIF 
agreements, attracted users to the area and the long-term view allowed the agreements made 9 or 10 
years ago to provide an increased tax base that the City is benefitting from today. City Administrator 
Harrenstein stated the North Gate Subdivision was financed by the City. The City participated and 
held the debt hoping the developer would build the homes and the City would recoup the investment. 
Some lots were not developed, and in 2015 the City issued an RFP in hopes of getting the lots 
developed. The City was able to sell the lots for $25,000 each and since then all of the lots have been 
sold and are now on the tax roll. The lots associated with the Coventry Heights development 
agreement were financed by taxpayers, and no taxes have been paid on the remaining vacant lots for 
five years. City Administrator Harrenstein noted that while the county assessed the lots at a much 
higher rate, he did not think they had accounted for the fact the lots have been vacant for 13 years, the 
onerous private covenant and additional issues that make building on the lots difficult. He stated he 
had communicated with the Council the details of the development agreement and placed it on the 
consent agenda. City Administrator Harrenstein noted one of the remaining lots in the area was 
purchased by the neighbor and that lot was not going to be developed, which did not increase the value 
of the property or the tax base. Mayor Dehen stated the lots were citizen financed lots. 

Mayor Dehen noted the City no longer finances infrastructure and future developers will be 
paying for the infrastructure and the road in the development. He stated that per standard assessment 
procedures, the City assessed a portion of the Marie Lane extension to the single existing house on the 
existing road and the developer will pay the assessment on Outlot E. The other homes along the 
extension will not be assessed as the road improvement will not increase the value of their property 
since their access is onto Park View. City Administrator Harrenstein noted tax abatement was 
considered to pay for the Marie Lane Extension. CuJTently, the City is not pursuing abatement, but it 
can still be considered. City Attorney Kennedy noted the City no longer does 429 projects where the 
City funds the project up front and collects the money through assessments. This has slowed some 
development of the City as the developer must be responsible for the infrastructure and some subsidy 
is sometimes given to assist. Mayor Dehen noted the City has been able to increase the tax base which 
has made it possible to not raise property taxes. Attorney Kennedy stated the Council has never set an 
amount to direct staff as to what can go on the Consent Agenda. The Council could set an arbitrary 
number, but the assumed accusation that something underhanded was sent through the Consent 
Agenda is just not the case. Lucy Lowry requested clarification on why the homes in the development 
were not assessed for the road and why the developer thought he would be assessed. Mayor Dehen 
stated the properties do not abut the Marie Lane extension the City is financing and cannot be assessed. 
He noted that while the Jefferson Avenue reconstruction estimated assessment was $27,000 per 
household, the City capped the assessments at $6,000 because the value of the homeowner's propeity 
did not increase by $27,000. 



COUNCIL MINUTES June 18, 2018 

City Administrator Harrenstein thanked the library staff for their work on Art Splash. 

City Administrator Harrenstein reported Caswell Park would host the Chinese National Team 
the week of June 19-22. 

City Administrator Harrenstein thanked all participants in the Police Chief hiring process. 

Finance Director McCann noted the Audit would be presented at the July 2, 2018, Council 
Meeting and things improved in 2017; he said it was the hard work of the Council and City 
Administrator. He stated the budget process has started. 

City Clerk Van Genderen thanked the Street and Parks Department for their help in putting on 
Art Splash. She thanked Library Director Heintz and her team for their hard work. 

Mayor and Council Comments 

3 

There being no further business, on a motion by Council Member Steiner, seconded by Council 
Member Whitlock, the meeting adjourned at 7:45 p.m. 

Mayor 

City Clerk 



The Free Press 
MEDIA 

P.O. Box 3287, Mankato, MN 56002 

THE LAND 

www.mankatofreepress.com phone: {507) 344-6314, fax: {507) 625-1149 

Affidavit of Publication 
STATE OF MINNESOTA, 
COUNTY OF BLUE EARTH, SS. 

Steve Jameson, being duly sworn, on oath states as follows: 
1. I am the publisher of The Free Press, or the publisher's 
designated agent. I have personal knowledge of the facts 
stated in this Affidavit, which is made pursuant to Minnesota 
Statutes §331 A.07. 
2. The newspaper has complied with all of the requirements 
to constitute a qualified newspaper under Minnesota law, 
including those requirements found in Minnesota Statutes 
§331A.02. 
3. The dates of the month and the year and day of the week 
upon which the public notice attached/copied below was 
published in the newspaper are as follows: 
The printed notice which is attached was cut from the 
columns of said newspaper, and was printed and published 
the following dates: 06/21 /18, and printed below is a copy of 
the lower case alphabet from A to Z, both inclusive, which 
is hereby acknowledged as being the size and kind of type 
used in the composition and publication of the notice: 

abcdefghi jklmnopqrsluwixyz 

4. The Publisher's lowest classified rate paid by commercial 
users for comparable sp~alj5 {Cjtermined pursuant to 
§331A.06, is as follows: ·' .l 
5. Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes §580.033 relating 
to the publication of mortgage foreclosure notice: The 
newspaper's known office is located in Blue Earth County. 
The newspaper complies with the conditions described 
in §580.033, subd. 1, clause {1) or (2). If the newspaper's 
known office of issue is located in a county adjoining the 
county where the mortgaged premises or some part of the 
mortgaged premises described in the notice are located, a 
substantial portion of the newspaper's circu lation is in the 
latter county. 

FURTHER YOUR AFFIANT SAITH NOT. 

By: 
Steve Jameson, Publisher 

Sworn to and subscribed before me, this day 
06/21/2018 

Notary Public 

Public Hearing 
June 21, 2018 
NOTICE OF 

PUBLI C HE ARING 
NOTICE IS HEREBY G IVE N 

that the City of North Mankato 
will meet at the Municipal Build
ing, 1001 Belgrade Avenue, North 
Mankato, Minnesota at 7:00 p.m. 
on Monday, July 2, 2018, to con
sider the sole of real estate de
scribed as Outlet E , Nature View, 
Subdivision No. 2. Such persons 
as desire to be heard with refer· 
ence to the proposed sole of real 
estate will be heard at this meet
ing. Written or oral statements 
will be considered. 
Doted this 19th day of June 2018. 
BY ORDER OF TH E CITY OF 
NORTH M ANKATO 
By: /s/ April Von Genderen 
City Clerk 



Special Assessment Calculation - Outlot E 

Total Cost of Street Improvements 
40% Assessed 
Front Footage (ft) 
Calculated Assessment per Front Foot 

Outlet E Lot Frontage (ft) 
Calculated Assessment 

$118,766 
$47,506 

977 
$48.62 

116.71 
$5,675.00 



OUTLOT A 
ll.06ACRES 

CONSERVATION EA.SEMENT 
·?. (RAVINE AR(A) 

·?· ·~. I.. ~ 

~:. 

'· 
~:-

, . 
·?. . :-~ 

CONSERVATION £AS£MENT 
(AAVINE AREAi 

_..., 
~~·1;.~%~ 

---$ 800'14' c l31a.o1··· 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

' 
Ji! . : 
-! 
~=: • I 

. <, 
. ' 
~\ 

6 
2.02ACR£S 

"\"°"™J"'l\"'34114.):l'O\Go(l\(JO\ll •.)'Xl,Y~"-"':;.C(l.,._SHn:T'S_ ........ 2•t•l9 ..... l/>/101e10.)PW 

\ 
\ 

\ 

NATURE 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

OFFICIAL PLAT COPY 

VIEW SUBDIVISION 

~ 

~ 
8 

----------

' ' ' ' 
:::;:.•: ::::; 

~ .: 
i:! 

........ _, 
~" 
... ~-

\ 

NO. 2 

\ 
\ 

\ 

/•:·:·:C:/:::::c;.: ... ;:-::.·::.:::.·:·~ ... ~ 

\ 
\ 

E:::::::.;: .:::;.;:,.: 

···N J91t'1S' W •ll·•• 

'?··:. 

•. ·.· 

1 
O.SS ACRES 

BLOCK 

·?. 

1 

~ll.4 
l.;-C: 

~
. 

..,,. 
lOfUl'oOi c..sc"""' . ""' .j_ -

-r:-o;,~ ~ 
~~tttr .. w'ltm•""'°llO.IONo< = ... ~-=-=.:..~~ ..... 
UOG.......C:SSon<Jitw«~ 

LEGEND 
0 .,.. ___ Jll1 $0. I 

~t•UC.IOO . .. _ . _..,_ I 

\OH f'<~ I ~ 
I 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ I 

/ 
I 

I 
I 

I 
/ 

I 

·' 
OUTLOT D 

4.12 ACRES 

."\,,:::,,. 

·----------

~;;: 
-~ ;,. 

~i 

m 
~~~ 
::.: 

ill 

: N avtl'la"W .. :.(·aoo 
·· ... 

·~~:-·' -:-:,,. 

I · 1 ~.oo -~---· r·· -~~ 
SentJO"C I I ~ 

I I 
+ 

:.·s
"!'<I 
<!~, 

78'< 1:.c!. 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

- -- - -:=;+-L- - ----1 
~.~ij.'/11 I 

__ ste.,..'°'.i'~-M~-' 

I 
I 
I .... . 

I 
.. . ':I 

---·-s8"6'1a·c-..n.ot····· 
I 

I 
.1. 
.. , .. 

___ / LANE , 

--r-~-~--- -----1 
I k.---1 ~-

, ... 8 .-: '· 

I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 

I : ~ :\ 
I ~~~~\. \)J_\J\t\N 
I '\\~G ?\l'~io'\.S\ 
1 \)t~o '. \0'2.-o'\.1 

SHEET 2 OF 2 
IOltON&M{ N(..INC. 



PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

This Purchase Agreement ("Agreement") is made this __ th day of June, 2018, by the 

City of North Mankato Municipal Corporation ("Seller") and Nature View Subdivision, LLC 

("Buyer"). 

In consideration of the mutual covenants and the undertakings contained herein, the 

parties agree as follows: 

1. Purchase of Property. Seller agrees to sell to Buyer and Buyer hereby agrees to buy 
from Seller property (the "Property") described as follows to-wit: 

Outlot E, Nature View Subdivision No. 2, City of North Mankato, Nicollet 
County 

2. Purchase Price. The purchase price ("Purchase Price") for the Property is Five 
Thousand Six Hundred Seventy-five and no/I 00 dollars ($5,675.00) to be paid as 
follows: 

All to be paid at closing. 

3. Covenants and Warranties of Seller. Seller covenants and warrants to Buyer as 
follows: 

a. On the Closing Date there will be no tenants, persons or entities occupying or having 
a right to occupy the Property or any part thereof. 

b. At Closing, no contracts or agreements shall be in effect with respect to the Property 
by which Buyer shall be bound, except those easements and agreements related to 
highway rights of way, utilities and the like, existing as of the date hereof filed with 
the office of the Nicollet County Recorder with respect to the Property (the 
"Recorded Agreements"). 

4. Closing: Closing Date. The Closing shall take place on or before the __ th day of 
_____ , 2018, at City of North Mankato offices, 1001 Belgrade Avenue, North 
Mankato, MN 56003 or such other place as Seller and Buyer shall mutually agree upon. 

5. At the Closing, the Seller shall deliver to Buyer: 

a. A Warranty Deed transferring all interest from the Seller in the Property. 

6. Possession. Seller agrees to deliver possession of the Property to Buyer on the closing 
date. 

7. Risk of Loss. Risk of loss of the Property prior to the time of Closing shall remain in the 
Seller. 

-1-











RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION APPROVING DONATIONS/CONTRIBUTIONS/GRANTS 

WHEREAS, the Minnesota Statute 465.03 and 465.04 allows the governing body of any city, county, 
school district or town to accept gifts for the benefit of its citizens in accordance with terms prescribed by the 
donor; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH 
MANKA TO, MINNESOTA, that the following donations/contributions/grants are approved as follows: 

Donor Restriction Amount 

Greater Mankato Bike and Walk 
Advocates Nmth Mankato Bike Kiosks $1200 

·--

~ -

·-

-

~-
$1200 ------------------· -

Adopted by the City Council this 2nd day of July 2018. 

Mayor City Clerk 



~~ 
:J/11~~ 

NOR TH MANKATO 
Pam< PERMIT 

1001 Belgrade Ave 
North Mankato, MN 
56003 507-625-4141 
www.northmankato.com 

Pe rmit#: 

Date: 

(p + -2018 

i 1m j ~ - 7/is-/tr 
t+oc_~ r~YI~ 

Start time: 

Stop time: 

q:oa aYVJ 
JO : 00 p.0--> 

Fee: $ ----

Shelter: 9-Spr ing Lake Shelter #1 [J Spring Lake Shelter #2 Q Wheeler Park IAttoor Shelter 

Address: 510 C_o r(\Q__L(A SJc-e_c~-+-

#of People: J ~CJ 

Use of Tents (or anything requiring staking) D No J&. Yes * If Yes, Please contact Gopher State One Call 
*Bounce House requires waiver 800-252-1166 one week prior to event. 

Alcoholic Beverages (wine & beer only) D No ~ Yes * $300 refundable deposit and $30 keg permit 

Please specify: ~ Keg Catering· (must contact City Hall) . 

Audio (requires audio permit) D No ~Yes * If Yes, Please fill out Audio Permit. 

Allowed 

• Personal grills 
• Keg beer provided a permit is obtained 
• Fishingflce fishing on Ladybug Lake and Spring Lake only 
• Pets in Benson Park, Bluff Park and Spring Lake Park provided they 

are on a 6' leash 
• Canoes and kayaks on Ladybug Lake and Spring Lake (children 
under 12 must be accompanied by an adult and wear a life preserver) 

• Hog roasts provided they are on a hard-surfaced lot 

Prohibited 

•Vehicles are not allowed to be parked or driven on the grass for 
any reason unless permission is given from the Parks Department. 

• Pets (allowed in Benson Park and Bluff Park only) 
• Glass containers 
• Campfires I Bonfires I Fire Rings 
• Snowmobiles, A TVs, golfing, swimming, boating and motorized 

flotation devices 
• Dunk Tanks 
• Audio equipment may not be played so loud as to interfere with 
the reasonable use of the park by others. All audio devices must 
end at 10 PM 

I, the undersigned, understand that the park shelter reservation fee is non-refundable. If prior approval is not obtained for 
the installation of additional tents or stakes and causes disruption of utility services, I agree to be held liable for any repairs 
to service lines. 

I, the undersigned, have received the Audio Permit Instructions and understand that failure to comply with the audio instructions 
may terminate the event and prevent future ability to obtain an audio permit. 

(l§_REFER TO COUNCIL 
City Clerk Date 

I Receipt# Book Online Park Police Staff Initials 



NMCITY 'd{>1~~ 
NORTH MANKATO Audio Permit 2018 ------

1001 Belgrade Avenue Park Permit 2018 
North Mankato, MN 56003 
507-625-4141 Fax: 507-625-4151 
www.northmankato.com 

About: 
Audio Perm it 

An audio permit is required for anyone operating outdoor amplified sound (i.e., a loudspeaker, public 

address system, or sound amplifying equipment). All Audio Permits must be approved by the Council. The 

sound system cannot be operated before 7:00 am or after 10:00 pm. There is a $25 fee. 

Audio Permit Responsibilities: 

• An onsite event coordinator must be available by mobile during the event. 

• An applicant will provide a schedule of any music or entertainment proposed to occur during the 

event. 

• A beginning and end time must be supplied on the application, and the event coordinator must 

ensure compliance. 

• Applicants must comply with City Code Ordinance 90.045 and Minnesota Rules Chapter 7030 which 

limits noise. 

• Noise levels cannot exceed 60 dBA more than 50 percent of the time. 

What happens if there is a noise complaint? 
• A North Mankato Patrol Officer will meet with the complainant and evaluate and measure the noise 

using a decibel reader at the location of the complainant. 

• If the noise is found out of compliance, the Pat rol Officer will contact the onsite event coordinator, 

and the amplified sound must be turned down. 

• If the onsite event coordinator does not comply, the event will be immediately terminated, and the 

group will be disbursed. 

• Failure to comply will affect future ability to obtain an audio permit. 

AMPLI FIED SOUND: ('1 LIVE MUSIC/BAND 

71 
:.J 

DJ/ KARAOKE MACHINE 
OTHER: ____ _ 

LOCATION/ SHELTER: tfaC(1,,T Cr,,. f\.b) 

EVENT NAME: M(AV\ Kt>i. +ei 

DATE OF EVENT: ]- I') t~]- /') 
BEGIN TIME: q Q. Iv) r oJ'), b 
ENDTIME: /0 ?VV\ ~ 

IJOt /')cl -

ONSITE COORDINATOR: PRINT NAME: Yiyk- ce : ~c. lt<" 
MOBILE NUMBER: C7DV 3q I \J.\5 

;1 1, THE UNDERSIGNED, HAVE RECEIVED THE AUDIO PERMIT AND UNDERSTAND THAT FAILURE TO COMPLY 

WITH THE AUDIO POLICY MAY TERMINATE THE EVENT AND PREVENT FUTURE ABILITY TO OBTAIN AN AUDIO 

PERMIT. 

SIGNATURE:.....&~~&:::::.=---=~~.:::::::::: ______ _ 

POLICE CHIEF,.: "---"--"~~"'--"'-;y__--'--'--""'----'f±_/ U\ 
CITY CLERK:---------------

1 BOOK J POLICE LJ ONLINE Li $25.00 FEE 

DA TE :_1P_,____- a"'""---...... _1 zs..;:,...,.__ __ 

DENIED APPROVED 

STAFF INTIALS __ _ 



Permit#: 7 / -2018 

Date: _!}_1J01 l't 

Shelter: ·Kl Spring Lake Shelter #1 

PARK PERMIT 

Start time: Q: DO eM 
Stop time: i ·. OD p M 

$..\u..'tf 5 k -:=. 5 ; DD f lM 

D Spring Lake Shelter #2 

1001 Belgrade Ave 
North Mankato, MN 
56003 507-625-4141 
www.northmankato.com 

Fee: $ lOO · 00 

~t-c...r-+'tV\".:) 1 E-v-.cl~vi~ 
'Vheeler Park Indoor Shelter 

Name: 6 r10vn y I ngst bn-CLn - lJ i V\9st@ s OGli-hCevrtraL ,eclu... 
Address: I q d)) L,eC () l vcl 

Phone: 501 -~Lo~ - I lo I lo e,e,-\ \ #of People: 4-oo 
Use of Tents (or anything requiring staking) D No ll'. Yes * If Yes, Please contact Gopher State One Call 

*Bounce House requires waiver 800-252-1166 one week prior to event. 

Alcoholic Beverages (wine & beer only) ~ No D Yes * $300 refundable deposit and $30 keg permit 

Please specify: Cans Keg Catering• (must contact City Hall) 

Audio (requires audio permit) D No D Yes * If Yes, Please fill out Audio Permit. 

Allowed 

• Personal grills 
• Keg beer provided a permit is obtained 
• Fishing/ice fishing on Ladybug Lake and Spring Lake only 
• Pets in Benson Park, Bluff Park and Spring Lake Park provided they 

are on a 6' leash 
• Canoes and kayaks on Ladybug Lake and Spring Lake (children 
under 12 must be accompanied by an adult and wear a life preserver) 

• Hog roasts provided they are on a hard-surfaced lot 

Prohibited 

•Vehicles are not allowed to be parked or driven on the grass for 
any reason unless permission is given from the Parks Department. 

• Pets (allowed in Benson Park and Bluff Park only) 
• Glass containers 
• Campfires I Bonfires I Fire Rings 
• Snowmobiles, ATVs, golfing, swimming, boating and motorized 

flotation devices 
•Dunk Tanks 
• Audio equipment may not be played so loud as to interfere with 
the reasonable use of the park by others. All audio devices must 
end at 10 PM 

I, the undersigned, understand that the park shelter reservation fee is non-refundable. If prior approval is not obtained for 
the installation of additional tents or stakes and causes disruption of utility services, I agree to be held liable for any repairs 
to service lines. 

I, the undersigned, have received the Audio Permit Instructions and understand that failure to comply with the audio instructions 
may ter · the event and prevent future ability to obtain an audio permit. 

o APPROVED o DENIED 

}'(_ REFER TO COUNCIL 

I Receipt# 

City Clerk 

Book Online Park 

Date 

Police Staff Initials 



..... CITY 'i/(11~~ 
"'71lW11 NORTH MANKATO 
1001 Belgrade Avenue 

North Mankato, MN 56003 

507-625-4141 Fax: 507-625-4151 

www.northmankato.com 

Audio Permit 7 I A 2018 
---'----'----

Park Permit 7 l - 2018 

Audio Permit 
About: 

An audio permit is required for anyone operating outdoor amplified sound (i.e ., a loudspeaker, public 

address system, or sound amplifying equipment). All Aud io Permits m ust be approved by t he Council. The 

sound system cannot be operated before 7:00 am or after 10:00 pm. There is a $25 fee. 

Audio Permit Responsibilities: 

• An onsite event coordinator must be available by mobile during the event. 

• An applicant will provide a schedule of any music or entertainment proposed to occur during the 

event. 

• A beginning and end time must be supplied on the application, and the event coordinator must 

ensure compliance. 

• Applicants must comp ly with City Code Ord inance 90.045 and Minnesota Rules Chapter 7030 which 

limits noise. 

• Noise levels cannot exceed 60 dBA more than 50 percent of the time. 

What happens if there is a noise complaint? 

• A North Mankato Patrol Officer will meet with the complaina nt and eva luate and measure the noise 

using a decibel reader at the location of the compla inant. 

• If the noise is found out of compliance, the Patrol Officer wi ll contact the onsite event coord inator, 

and the amplified sound must be turned down. 

• If the onsite event coordinator does not comply, the event will be immediately terminated, and the 

gro up wi ll be disbursed. 

• Fai lure to comply w ill affect future ability to obtain an aud io permit. 

AMPLIFIED SOUND: D LIVE MUSIC/BAND 

DJ/KARAOKE MACHINE 

!>-.(I OTHER: 6u..\\hcn\ ) 

LOCATION/ SHELTER: \ QLP _R: \ . 

DATE OF EVENT: C/·JO, I~ 
BEGIN TIME: S~o0 pm 
END TIME: 1$ '. 00 'f>Y\t\ 

EVENT NAME: $C..C. \__,\v-e.. 'fDLL't 6e..sT ~t.e s k 
ON SITE COOR DI NATO R: PRINT NAME :_<6....,......{'._t=<A/\...-=--=--\(--"--'-00J-..,..i~-~---------

MO Bl LE NUMBER: $01 - LC:/l-- \" { & 
~THE UNDERSIGNED, HAVE RECEIVED THE AUDIO PERMIT AND UNDERSTAND THAT FAILURE TO COMPLY 

WITH THE AUDIO POLICY MAY TERMINATE THE EVENT AND PREVENT FUTURE ABILITY TO OBTAIN AN AUDIO 

:l:R:~URE• •~m --•••• ·•• •·• DATE C[-t-t.\t<f mmmmmmmmm ' 

: PO LICE CHIEF: 

: CITY CLERK: D DENIED c::J APPROVED . 

• L ·· sO"oi<···n···r"OUcE···a·o-i\iTi.N'E"" ........ o··s2s·.0a--i=fE" ......................................................... srAi=F"°iNri"ti:Ls··--··------------------------' 



..... ©Oiil?@/{11~~ 

..... NORTH MANKATO 
1001 Belgrade Ave., PO Box 2055 
North Mankato, MN 56003 
507-625-4141 Fax: 507-625-4252 
www.northmankato.com 

Application For 

For Office Use Only 

APPROVED --

DENIED 

0 PARK USE 0 AUDIO USE 

PARADE PERMIT 

REQUIRED INFORMATION: 
- Application for Parade Permit 
- Map of Parade Route 
- $35 Application Fee 
Thirty (30) days inadvance of the parade date. 

Sponsoring Organization 
Name Address 

Event Location l'i \(\.' "'~ 

-5fr1'vtvi u? Pt11-r1L ,,, _ ,. 
Occasion-for Parade 5l l '-)/-t:..._ 
Parade Description I Composition 

.5~~ 
Estimated Number of Participants: 

Phone 

Phone 

5iJ? -i 

Sic . 

As duly authorized representative or agent of the parade sponsoring organization, I hereby make application 
for a permit to parade in the City of North Mankato, Minnesota. I hereby certify that, to the best of my know
ledge, the above is an accurate and true description of the parade. I agree to execute the parade according to 
this permit and subject to the provisions and conditions which may be necessa1y to provide for the safety of 

rticipants and t orderly and safe movement of public traffic. 

Pursuant to Section 70.2 1 of the North Mankato City Code, I hereby authorize a parade permit for the 
applicant organization. This pennit shall be valid only under the conditions recommended by the City 
of North Mankato and only for the date and time indicated. 

~ l?<Y::= kv S' +v ~ =i ~-\ , ~ 
j 

Chief of Police Date 

Caswell Sports Director Date 



o Brewery 0 
- TrL.J man St 

0 

lake iew Ave (IJ 

(Q 
-,; 

0 a 
Ci9 
(f.I 

Cf.I 
r...tc Kln,ey A e .... 

Je ferson Ave 

yfer Ave 

Har~ls n A\I· 
0 
:'C) 
:Ji onroeAve ... 

tJJ .:'Cl .... 
:::;, 
$ ..,...... 

Cl,') - . . 

~ UN 

2 
Q 

~ ILLS -
t'1 
c. ,... 

s-
0 s ~ 

s.-



CITY OF NORTH MANKATO 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

!Agenda Item #9F llDepartment: City Planner llCouncil Meeting Date: 7/02/18 I 
TITLE OF ISSUE: Consider Resolution Declaring Costs to be Assessed-409 Sherman Street. 

BACKGROUND AND SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION: In response to a citizen complaint, City staff 
identified the sidewalk in front of 409 Sherman Street to have a condition requiring maintenance or replacement 
and has been following the Sidewalk Installation and Maintenance Policy. City staff sent a certified letter to the 
property owner indicating that it was necessary to either repair or replace the sidewalk. The property owner 
was given sixty (60) days from the date of the letter to make the necessary improvements. The property owner 
did not respond within sixty (60) days and according to the Sidewalk and Maintenance Policy if the 
improvements have not been made, the "City Council will hold a public hearing regarding the proposed 
improvement and take action on whether or not the City will complete the improvements and bill the costs of the 
improvement to the property owner." The Public Hearing was held on November 20, 2017. In accordance with 
the Sidewalk and Maintenance Policy the City replaced the sidewalk and the attached resolution assesses 50% of 
the cost to the property owner. 

If additional space is required, attach a separate sheet 

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION: Adopt Resolution Declaring Costs to be Assessed-409 Sherman Street. 

For Clerk's Use: SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS ATTACHED 

Motion By: Resolution Ordinance Contract Minutes Map 
Second By: 

IT] CJ CJ CJ CJ 
Vote Record: Aye Nay 

Whitlock Other (specify) Invoice for Work - - --
Steiner - ---
Norland -- --

- - --Freyberg 
De hen -- --

CJ w orkshop CJ Refer to: 

IT] Regular Meeting CJ Table until: 

CJs pecial Meeting CJ Other: 



RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION DECLARING COSTS TO BE ASSESSED 

FOR MUNICIPAL CHARGES 

WHEREAS, the City of North Mankato adopted the Sidewalk Installation and 

Maintenance Policy on July 18, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, City staff followed the process set out in Section 2.2 of the Sidewalk 

Installation and Maintenance Policy which identifies the procedure for correction including; 

notifying the property owner, allowing time for compliance and holding a public hearing; and 

WHEREAS, the property owner has not made the necessary improvements and 

according to the Sidewalk Installation and Maintenance Policy, the City will coordinate the 

necessary improvements and bill the associated cost to the property owner. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH 

MANKATO, MINNESOTA, that upon completion of the work the following costs shall be 

assessed against such property in the amount specified: 

Type: 18203 

Parcel No.: 18.643.0110 
Legal: BLOCK A LOT N 56' OF LOTS 11 & 12 SUBDIVISIONCD 18643 

SUBDIVISIONNAME GEORGE H MARSH'S ADD 

Address: 

Owners: 

409 Sherman Street 

Lloyd Miller 

409 Sherman Street 

North Mankato, MN 56003 

Sidewalk Repair/Replacement: 

Total: 

$1243.39 
$1243.39 

Adopted by the City Council this 2nd day of July 2018. 

Mayor 

ATIEST: 

City Clerk 



STEVE STARRETT CONSTRUCTION, LLC 
104 Viking Drive 

MANKATO, MN 56001-4183 
(507) 625-9257 
(507) 317-5831 

CUSTOMER'S ORDER NO. I PHONE I DATC 'li?-/f' 
NAME 

Llov£ A,lLc_r 

I 
ADDRESS / 

L.-/c.;9 s 11-E R /'1/} N ST 

!llo.f' /Jr., /h;)l\ K B-W /VJ n ~(Lie/ 
SOLD BY I CASH I C.0.0. I CHARGE I ON ACCT. I MDSE. RET'D. I PAID OUT . 

QTY. DESCRIPTION 

P.:e. Okc.c. PubLcS;Jcw 

<:;ECEIVED BY 

,.,...._.\ \'"""'\J \ ~~ 
\\....~\- C>'~J1U1...__, 

A PRODUCT 61DSW 

~'-----
297 5 

i 
i 

PRICE I AMOUNT 

/( I lli<;f~. 78' 

I 

' ' TAX 

I TOTAL ! .) l./ t k 7f: 

<GfuLnfl cy7&w 



CITY OF NORTH MANKATO 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

!Agenda Item #9G "Department: City Planner llCouncil Meeting Date: 7 /02/18 I 
TITLE OF ISSUE: Consider Resolution Declaring Costs to be Assessed-613 Lyndale Street. 

BACKGROUND AND SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION: In response to a citizen complaint, City staff 
identified the sidewalk in front of 409 Sherman Street to have a condition requiring maintenance or replacement 
and has been following the Sidewalk Installation and Maintenance Policy. City staff sent a certified letter to the 
property owner indicating that it was necessary to either repair or replace the sidewalk. The property owner 
was given sixty (60) days from the date of the letter to make the necessary improvements. The property owner 
did not respond within sixty (60) days and according to the Sidewalk and Maintenance Policy if the 
improvements have not been made, the "City Council will hold a public hearing regarding the proposed 
improvement and take action on whether or not the City will complete the improvements and bill the costs of the 
improvement to the property owner." The Public Hearing was held on November 20, 2017. In accordance with 
the Sidewalk and Maintenance Policy the City replaced the sidewalk and the attached resolution assesses 50% of 
the cost to the property owner. 

If additional space is required, attach a separate sheet 

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION: Adopt Resolution Declaring Costs to be Assessed-613 Lyndale Street. 

For Clerk's Use: SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS ATTACHED 

Motion By: Resolution Ordinance Contract Minutes Map 
Second By: 

[XJ CJ CJ CJ CJ 
Vote Record: Aye Nay 

Whitlock Other (specify) Invoice for Work -- --
Steiner -- --
Norland -- --

---- Freyberg 
Dehen ----

CJ workshop CJ Refer to: 

[}[]Regular Meeting CJ Table unti l: 

CJ Special Meeting CJ Other: 



RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION DECLARING COSTS TO BE ASSESSED 

FOR MUNICIPAL CHARGES 

WHEREAS, the City of North Mankato adopted the Sidewalk Installation and 

Maintenance Policy on July 18, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, City staff followed the process set out in Section 2.2 of the Sidewalk 

Installation and Maintenance Policy which identifies the procedure for correction including; 

notifying the property owner, allowing time for compliance and holding a public hearing; and 

WHEREAS, the property owner has not made the necessary improvements and 

according to the Sidewalk Installation and Maintenance Policy, the City will coordinate the 

necessary improvements and bill the associated cost to the property owner. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH 

MANKATO, MINNESOTA, that upon completion of the work the following costs shall be 

assessed against such property in the amount specified: 

Type: 

Parcel No.: 
Legal: 

Address: 

Owners: 

18203 

18.556.0150 
LOT 14 "EX N 14' OF W 20"' SUBDIVISIONCD 18556 SUBDIVISIONNAME 

HIGHLAND ADD 

613 Lyndale Street 

Peter Rengstorf 

613 Lyndale Street 

North Mankato, MN 56003 

Sidewalk Repair/Replacement: 

Total: 

$814.80 

$814.80 

Adopted by the City Council this 2nd day of July 2018. 

Mayor 

ATIEST: 

City Clerk 



STEVE STARRETT CONSTRUCTION, LLC 
104 Viking Drive 

MANKATO, MN 56001-4183 
(507) 625-9257 
(507) 317-5831 

CUSTOMER'S ORDER NO. I PHONE I DATE l-lf'· i?' 
NAME 

P-c:. +-cc R '£,'J:.; 51-0 r S:: 
I ADDRESS l 13 Ly () dc,_lc 5 T 

Vr 
SOLO BY CASH C.O.D. CHARGE ! ON ACCT. I MDSE. RET'D. PAID OUT 

I I 
QTY. DESCRIPTION I PRICE AMOUNT 

\<e(JL.a.czc \)0bL;cS;d::~ lf.J9 s9 

TAX 

'D\- lci?)I D() 
RECEIVED BY 

TOTAL I Ll'J..~ : )1 
A PRODUCT 610$W 

= 

2976 
~y"W 



RESOLUTION APPROVING 
CONSENT ASSESSMENT AGREEMENT 

RESOLUTION NO. 

WHEREAS, the City of North Mankato has, at the property owner's request, paid for certain 
improvements that will benefit such property, specifically repair/replacement of water and sewer line for 
the following described real estate: 

521 Nicollet Avenue 

PIN #18.559.0220 

BLOCK 3 LOT 6 SUBDIVI5IONCD 18559 SUBDIVISION NAME HUNT'S ADD 
Cost: $12,266.86 

WHEREAS, the property owner desires that the cost of the water line to the prope1ty be made as 
a special assessment against the property; and 

WHEREAS, the property owner has executed a consent assessment agreement; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOL YEO BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
NORTH MANKATO, MINNESOTA, as follows: 

That the attached consent assessment agreement is approved and that the City Clerk is directed to 
forward a certified copy of this resolution along with a copy of the consent assessment agreement to the 
Nicollet County Auditor. 

Adopted by the City Council this 2N° day of July 2018. 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 



CONSENT ASSESSMENT AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is made between the City of North Mankato (City) and Robert Gibbs (Owner). 

The parties are guided in reaching this agreement by the following facts: 

1. Owner's property is described as follows: 

521 Nicollet Avenue 

PIN #18.559.0220 
BLOCK 3 LOT 6 SUBDIVISIONCD 18559 SUBDIVISIONNAME HUNT'S ADD 

2. Owner replaced the water and sewer line to the property. 

3. Owner desires to waive all of the procedures mandated by Chapter 429 of Minnesota Statutes 

and to consent to the imposition of an assessment directly upon the described property. 

4. City is willing to pay for the repair in consideration for the owner's consent to the assessment. 

The parties therefore make the following agreement: 

1. As a result of the improvement, a special assessment shall be filed against owner's land in the 

amount of $12,266.86. The assessment shall be payable in equal installments extending over a 

period of ten (10) years and bear interest at the rate of 7.00% per annum from the date of this 

agreement. The City may transmit notice of this assessment to the County Auditor. 

Adopted this _ ___ day of ___ , 2018. 

By:~-+--+--11------

lts: (,~ CI efr-

Property Owner 

Property Owner 



~ftt,t.Botet 
• PLUMBING 

Mr. Rooter Plumbing of South Central 
Minnesota 

Invoice 53334174 
Invoice Date 6/8/2018 

Completed Date 6/8/ 2018 

Task # 
B20 
C14050 

415 Truman St. 
North Mankato, MN 56003 

Billing Address 
Robert Gibbs 
521 Nicollet Avenue 
North Mankato, MN 56003 USA 

Description 
Advantage Plan Membership - 5 Years 
-Acquire Permit 
-Excavate up to 7' deep to expose sewer pipe 
-Cut out approximately 4' of pipe 
-Install two way clean outs 

Description of Work 

-Install r iver rock under pipe to ensure connections do not shift 
-Video inspect line to insure no fu rther issues 
-City inspection 
-Backfill and compact soi l 
-Insta ll metal clean out caps for future detection 
-Spread grass seed {homeowner to water lawn) 

C14029 Set up for lin ing 4" or 6" No prep work included 
-Acquire permit 
-Two guys on site 
-Install liner from pvc connection to main stack, no use of sewer for 12 
hours 
-Install up to 5' of PVC to reconnect sewer 
-Video inspection to insure proper flow 
-City inspection 

d2015 aquire permit. 
Break concrete inside of home to expose lead water service 
Break side walk and excavate soil 7' deep to curb shut off. 
Shut off water to home at curb shu t off. 
Cut line inside of home and in excavated hole outside. 
Pull in new copper Kl ine while pulling ou t old lead line. 
Reconnect curb shut off to new copper line 
Reconnect meter inside of to new copper line. 
City inspection 
Back fill soil 
Rough in concrete in basement around insulated copper pipe 
Poor new side walk 
Spread grass seed { homeowner to Water frequently for seed to grow) 
Maintain excavation site for level grade 1 yr. 

Thank you for your business. 

Technicians Evan Koch 
Joe Hunt 
Tom Jore 
Travis Roach 

Customer PO 
Job Address 
Robert Gibbs 
521 Nicollet Avenue 
North Mankato, MN 56003 
USA 

Quantity Standard Price Your Price Your Total 
1.00 $149.00 $149.00 $149.00 
1.00 $4,987.22 $4,339.14 $4,339.14 

1.00 $6,194.1 2 $5,265 .00 $5,265.00 

1.00 $2,95 7.31 $2,513.72 $2,513.72 

Member Savings $2,020.79 

Sub-Total $12,266.86 
Tax $0.00 

Total Due $12,266.86 

Balance Due $12,266.86 

IMPORTANT NOTICE: You and your servi ce professional are responsible for meeting the Terms and Conditions of this contract. If you 
sign this contract and you fail to meet the terms and conditions of this contract, you may lose legal ownership rights to your home. I 
agree that in itial price quoted prior to the start of work does not include any additional or unforeseen tasks, nor materials which may be 
found to be necessary to complete repai rs or replacements. I also agree to hold Mr. Rooter Plumbing® or its assigns harmless for parts 
deemed cor roded, unusable or unreliable for completion of stated work to be done. I hereby authorize Mr. Rooter Plumbing® to 
perform proposed work and agree to all agreement conditions as displayed and further acknowledge that th is invoice is due upon 
receipt. Independently owned and operated franchise. Amount to Authorize: $12,266.86 



TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
!t is agreed that Mr. Rooter® is not responsible for the following: 
1. Damage caused to the customer"s property as a result of obtaining access to and exposing plumbing and drainage systems. 
2. Additional plumbing work beyond that speclfically mentioned in tl1is estimate and proposal including, but not limited to, that which 
may be required because of preexisting plumbing code violations or additional work revealed to be necessary as a result of 
performing the specified work. 
3. Any repairs, installation, removal or replacement of non¥plumbing items or activities including but not limited to: concrete, paving, 
asphalt, slabs, sidewalks, driveways, patios, pools, shrubbery, grass lawns, fences, electrical wiring and fixtures, painting, 
decorations, plastering, sheetrock and other wall coverings, glass, carpentry, millwork, cabinets, floors, carpeting, floor surfaces and 
preparation, roofing, flashing, sheet metal gutters, downspouts, brick, stonework, extension walls, steel and other framework. 
4. Damage caused to customer's plumbing system by sewer and drain cleaning equipment when such is caused by pre-existing 
defects in such plumbing systems. 
Customer accepts full responsibility for the prompt payment of all costs of this agreement even though customer may intend to obtain 
reimbursement from others such as landlords, tenants, insurance companies and tort feasors. 
This proposal and said specifications shall not be altered or modified except by written agreement between the parties hereto and 
verbal understandings and agreements with representatives shall not be binding unless set forth herein. 

LIMITED SERVICE WARRANTY 
Mr. Rooter warrants, to the extent stated herein, the plumbing repair service and drain cleaning services furnished by it. The stated 
period of warranty commences upon installation or repair of plumbing or upon cleaning of drains. 
Purchaser understands that Mr. Rooter's liability under this warranty is limited to repair, replacement, recleaning or refund of 
purchaser"s money, and does not extend to property damage resulting from drains which become clogged or obstructed or from 
plumbing work which fails during the agreed upon warranty period. 
This warranty gives you specific legal rights. You may also have other rights which vary from state to state. 

NOTICE TO OWNER 
THE LAW REQUIRES THAT THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SUBMIT A SWORN STATEMENT OF PERSONS FURNISHING 
MATERIALS AND LABOR BEFORE ANY PAYMENT IS REQUIRED TO BE MADE TO THE CONTRACTOR. 
1. Do not sign this contract until you read it or if any soaces Intended for the agreed tenns. except as to unavailable infonnation. 
are blank. 
2. You are entitled to a copy of this contract at the time you sign it. 
3. You may at any time pay off the full unpaid balance due under this contract. and in doing so you may receive a partial rebate 
of the service charae. 
4. You may cancel this contract if it is solicited in oerson. and you sign it. at a place other than the seller's business address. by 
sending notice of cancellation by certified mail return reouest receiot reauested to the seller at his address which notice shall be 
oosbnarked not later than midnight of the third day (excluding Sundays and holidays) following your signing this contract. If you 
choose to cancel this contract. you must return or make available to the seller at the place of deliveJY any merchandise. in its 
original condition. received by you under this contract. 
This contractor is registered to do business in the state in which this work is performed. (See registration number on the front side of 
this contract.) Where required, this contractor has posted with the State all necessary bonds or cash deposits for the purpose of 
satisfying claims against the contractor for negligent or improper work or breach of contract in the conduct of the contractor"s 
business, This bond or cash deposit may not be sufficient to cover a claim which might arise from the work done under your contract. 
If any supplier of materials used in 
your construction project or any employee of the contractor or subcontractor is not paid by the contractor or subcontractor on your 
job, your property may be fiened to force payment. If you wish additional protection, you may request the contractor to provide you 
with the original "lien release" documents from each supplier or subcontractor on your project. The contractor is required to provide 
you with further information about lien release documents if you request it General information is also available from the licensing 
board in your state. 
The specific telephone number and address of your governing agency can be found by calling i-800-583-8003 or by writing Mr. 
Rooter Corporation, P.O. Box 3146 Waco, Texas 76707. 

CALIFORNIA RESIDENTS ONLY NOTICE TO OWNER 
"Under the California Mechanics' Lien Law, any contractor, subcontractor, laborer, supplier, or other person or entity who helps to 
improve your property, but is not paid for his or her work or supplies, has a right to place a lien on your home, land, or property 
where the work was performed and to sue you in court to obtain payment. 
This means that after a court hearing, your home, land, and property could be sold by a court officer and the proceeds of the sale 
used to satisfy what you owe. This can happen even if you have paid your contractor in full if the contractor"s subcontractors, 
laborers, or suppliers remain unpaid. 
To preserve their rights to file a claim or lien against your property, certain claimants such as subcontractors or materlal suppliers are 
each required to provide you with a document called a "Preliminary Notice." Contractors and laborers who contract with owners 
directly do not have to provide such notice since you are aware of their existence as an owner. A preliminary notice is not a lien 
against your property. Its purpose is to notify you of persons or entities that may have a right to file a lien against your property if 
they are not paid. In order to perfect their lien rights, a contractor, subcontractor, supplier, or laborer must file a mechanics' lien with 
the county recorder which then becomes a recorded lien against your property. Generally, the maximum time allowed for filling a 
mechanics' lien against your property is 90 days after substantial completion of your project. 
TO INSURE EXTRA PROTECTION FOR YOURSELF AND YOUR PROPERTY, YOU MAY WISH TO TAKE ONE OR MORE OF 
THE FOLLOWING STEPS: 
(1)Require that your contractor supply you with a payment and performance bond (not a license bond), which provides that the 
bonding company will either complete the project or pay damages up to the amount of the bond. This payment and performance 
bond as well as a copy of the construction contract should be filed with the county recorder for your further protection. The payment 
and performance bond will usually cost from 1 to 5 percent of the contract amount depending on the contractor"s bonding ability. If a 
contractor cannot obtain such bonding, it may indicate his or her financial incapacity. 
(2)Require that payments be made directly to subcontractors and material suppliers through a joint control. Funding services may be 
available, for a fee, in your area which will establish voucher or other means of payment to your contractor. These services may also 
provide you with lien waivers and other forms of protection. Any joint control agreement should include the addendum approved by 
the registrar. 
(3)lssue joint checks for payment, made out to both your contractor and subcontractors or material suppliers involved in the project. 
The joint checks should be made payable to the persons or entities which send preliminary notices to you. Those persons or entities 
have indicated that they may have lien rights on your property, therefore you need to protect yourself. This will help to insure that all 
persons due payment are actually paid. 
(4)Upon making payment on any completed phase of the project, and before making any further payments, require your contractor to 
provide you with unconditional .,Waiver and Release" forms signed by each material supplier, subcontractor, and laborer involved in 
that portion of the work for which payment was made. The statutory lien releases are set forth in exact language in Section 3262 of 
the Civil Code. Most stationery stores will sell the ,,Waiver and Release" forms if your contractor does not have them. The material 
suppliers, subcontractors, and laborers that you obtain releases from are those persons or entities who have filed preliminary notices 
with you. If you are not certain of the material suppliers, subcontractors, and laborers working on your project, you may obtain a list 
from your contractor. On projects involving improvements to a single~family residence or a duplex owned by the individuals, the 
person signing these releases loses the right to file a mechanics' lien claim against your property. !n other types of construction, this 
protection may still be important, but may not be as complete. 



4? 
5/29/2018 ~· f 
Acceptance of work performed: I find the service and materials performed & installed have been completed in accordance with this 
agreement. I agree to pay reasonable attorney fees, collection fees and court costs in the event of legal action pu1·suant to collection of 
arnount due. Total Due: S 12,266.86 



..... CITY'CP'l~~ 
~--- NORTH MANKATO Audio Permit Jd-. 0... - 2018 ------
1001 Belgrade Avenue /)" 

Park Permit ::;,°'~--· 2018 
North Mankato, MN 56003 

507-625-4141 Fax: 507-625-4151 

www. northma n kato .com 

Audio Permit 
About: 

An audio permit is required for anyone operating outdoor amplified sound (i.e., a loudspeaker, public 

address system, or sound amplifying equipment). All Audio Permits must be approved by the Council. The 

sound system cannot be operated before 7:00 am or after 10:00 pm. There is a $25 fee. 
,;..----' 

Audio Permit Responsibilities: 

• An onsite event coordinator must be available by mobile during the event. 

• An applicant will provide a schedule of any music or entertainment proposed to occur during the 

event. 

• A beginning and end time must be supplied on the application, and the event coordinator must 

ensure compliance. 

• Applicants must comply with City Code Ordinance 90.045 and Minnesota Rules Chapter 7030 which 

limits noise. 

• Noise levels cannot exceed 60 dBA more than 50 percent of the time. 

What happens if there is a noise complaint? 

• A North Mankato Patrol Officer will meet with the complainant and evaluate and measure the noise 

using a decibel reader at the location of the complainant. 

• If the noise is found out of compliance, the Patrol Officer will contact the on site event coordinator, 

and the amplified sound must be turned down. 

• If the onsite event coordinator does not comply, the event will be immediately terminated, and the 

group will be disbursed. 

• Failure to comply will affect future ability to obtain an audio permit. 

AMPLIFIED SOUND: LIVE MUSIC/BAND 

DJ/KARAOKE MACHINE 
OTHER: ____ _ 

LOCATION/ SHELTER: Sl.r .;.>.. ;;i 

EVENT NAME: _M __ 4_,_,1e~-·~~\'.2_-_.,'_:>_C.""-e< v-c:><C_2',,c,,;.._ .('\~ 

DATE OF EVENT: I- Q()-\ 'ii; 
BEGIN TIME: Y '. 3D 
END TIME: 6·. 60 

ONSITE COORDINATOR: PRINT NAME: W'O ']:_ c\0.\ f'\~ 

MOBILE NUMBER: Sol- s'Gl- J 0r7lo 

I, THE UNDERSIGNED, HAVE RECEIVED THE AUDIO PERMIT AND UNDERSTAND THAT FAILURE TO COMPLY 

WITH THE AUDIO POLICY TE THE EVENT AND PREVENT FUTURE ABILITY TO OBTAIN AN AUDIO 

PERMIT. 

SIGNATURE: -~ 

POLICE CHIEF:-------------

CITY CLERK:----------------

BOOK 

6 .z ?-1r 
DATE: ____ ~~~~~~. 

DENIED APPROVED 

STAFF INTIALS __ _ 



Permit#: 

Date: 

Location: 

"14//~t;;; 
NORTH MANKATO 

____ -2018 

1!J.lll_l_~ 

s hl\ct '-/ OCAlc Drt'v'e 
l 

Phone: L 5 15)11 l '6 - 0 00 7 

BLOCK PARTY 
PERMIT 

Start time: 

Stop time: 

S :oo 17./V\ · 
10:00 p ,fYI. 

# of People: (oO 

1001 Belgrade Ave 
North Mankato, MN 
56003 507-625-4141 
www.northmankato.com 

Use of Tents (or anything requiring staking) No .m, Yes *If Yes, Please contact Gopher State One Call 
800-252-1166 one week prior to event. 

Notes: Bo.\ n-cSQ.ole-s J( O·pffJ cd cJk.c_,\M.J if\C\? 
1 D I~ ~ I O~ \ 

PLEASE INCLUDE A MAP OF THE AREA. 

Audio (requires audio permit) ~No D Yes 
• If Yes, Please fill out Audio Permit. 

o I, the undersigned, have received the Audio Permit Instructions and understand that failure to comply with the audio instructions 
may terminate the event and prevent future ability to obtain an audio permit. 

SIGNED: -""-->d.><...::.......~'--------'-;J__...__6\~vt clt--:;...J,.,· ./\.~< ----+lo ;_~---Is/--=-' ~..;;;..__-
'Date ' Applicant 

D APPROVED o DENIED 

City Clerk Date 

I Receipt # Book Online Park Police Staff Initials 



Go gle Maps 1031 Shady Oak Dr 

1031 Shady Oak Dr 
North Mankato, MN 56003 



CITY OF NORTH MANKATO 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

!Agenda I tern # 11 A llDepartment: Administration llCouncil Meeting Date: 7/2/ 18 I 
TITLE OF ISSUE: Consider Accepting the 2017 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). 

BACKGROUND AND SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION: Attached are highlights of the 2017 Annual Audit 
followed by Abdo, Eick and Meyer management letter. Mr. Layne Kockelman, of Abdo, Eick & Meyers, will 
present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017. 

If additional space is required, auach a separate sheet 

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION: Accept Report and Place it on File. 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS ATTACHED 

Motion By: Resolution Ordinance Contract Minutes Map 
Second By: 

c:J c:J c:J c:J c:J 
Vote Record: Aye Nay 

Whitlock Other (specify) 20 17 Management Letter ----
Steiner - ---
Norland ----

----Frey berg 
Dehen ----

c:J Workshop c:J Refer to: 

[][]Regular Meeting c:J Table until: 

c:Jspecial Meeting c:J Other: 



North Mankato 2017 Annual Audit Highlights 

• The City of North Mankato is heading in the right direction financially, as 
confirmed in the unqualified audit submitted to the City Council from 
auditors at Abdo, Eick and Meyers 

• North Mankato reduced its overall debt by $5 million in its 2017 fiscal year 

• At the same time its net position increased by approximately $2.7 million 

• This compares to a net position DECREASE of about $800,000 in fiscal 
2016 

• The reasons for the positive results include: 

o Revenue Increases for 2017 compared to 2016 : 
• Net Sale of property totaling approximately $643,000 (2017 

sales Blue Star, Palmer) 
• Franchise Fees totaling approximately $147,000 due to 

Consolidated Communications new rate and overall increases 
• Closing and transferring of the Cable Access Fund to the 

General Fund, totaling $107,000 
• Increased Property Tax revenues totaling approximately 

$88,000 
• Increased TIF revenues totaling approximately $99,000 

o Expense Reductions for 2017 compared to 2016: 
• Housing and Economic Development expense reductions 

totaling approximately $1.4 million due to the disposal of 
various properties from prior years that were taken off the 
books in 2016. 

• General government expenses decreased by $420,000 due to the 
write-off of downtown lots in 2016. 

• Public Safety expense reductions totaling approximately 
$258,000 (related to GASB 68 PERA reporting requirements 



• The City's General Fund reserves grew by approximately $123,000 in 2017, 
to $4.187 million - that's more than half of the City's general Fund budget, 
which is approximately $7.9 million (Compared to $7.8 million in 2016) 

• The League of Minnesota Cities recommends that cities have between 40 to 
50 percent of its General Fund budgets available; which the City of North 
Mankato has 

• In addition, last fall the City of North Mankato adopted the Uniform 
Guidance Procedures - as recommended in the 2016 audit. This put more 
internal controls in place concerning our financial procedures. 



Management Letter 

ABDO 
EICK& 
:MEYERS U .P 

Certified /'11/Jlic .1crn1111/111!/s & Cmwdtcmts 

City of North Mankato 
North Mankato, Minnesota 

For the Year Ended 
December 31, 201 7 

lh>1>I<' 
+ Pr<H '<'~"' 
Coiner 

1 3 < · , (~ 1d 11 ... 
\11 1 iii )('f'" 



ABDO 
EICK& 
lVIEYERS t.Lr 

Certified Public ·lcc1J1111/111l/s & Cm1s11/tm1fa 

Management, Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of North Mankato, Minnesota 

June 19, 2018 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and 
the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of North Mankato (the City) for the year ended December 31, 2017 
and have issued our report thereon dated June 19, 2018. Professional standards require that we provide you with 
information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, 
as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such 
information in our letter to you dated November 16, 2017. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you 
the following information related to our audit. 

Our Responsibility Under Auditing Standards Generally Accepted in the United States of America and 
Government Auditing Standards 

As stated in our engagement letter, our responsibility, as described by professional standards, is to express opinions 
about whether the financial statements prepared by management with your oversight are fairly presented, in all material 
respects, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of 
financial statements does not relieve you or your management of your responsibilities. 

Our responsibility is to plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. As part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the City. Such 
considerations were solely for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance 
concerning such internal control. We are responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in 
our professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are 
not required to design procedures specifically to identify such matters. 

Significant Audit Findings 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal control over financial 
reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not 
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and 
therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as described on 
the following pages, we identified a certain deficiency in internal control that we consider to be a material weakness and 
another deficiency that we consider to be a significant deficiency. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, 
in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely 
basis. 

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected 
on a timely basis. We consider the deficiency described on the following pages as item 2017-002 to be a material 
weakness. 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the deficiency 
described on the following pages as item 2017-001 to be a significant deficiency. 

100 Warren Street, Suite 600 
PO Box 3166 
Mankato, MN 56002-3166 
507 625 2727 1 Fax 507 388 9139 

2 



2017-001 

Condition: 

Criteria: 

Cause: 

Effect: 

Recommendation: 

Preparation of Financial Statements 

As in prior years, we were requested to draft the audited financial statements and related footnote 
disclosures as part of our regular audit services. Auditing standards require auditors to 
communicate this situation to the Council as an internal control deficiency. Ultimately, it is 
management's responsibility to provide for the preparation of your statements and footnotes, and 
the responsibility of the auditor to determine the fairness of presentation of those statements. 
However, based on auditing standards, it is our responsibility to inform you that this deficiency 
could result in a material misstatement to the financial statements that could have been 
prevented or detected by your management. Essentially, the auditors cannot be part of your 
internal control process. 

Internal controls should be in place to ensure adequate internal control over the reliability of 
financial records and reporting. 

From a practical standpoint, we prepare the statements and determine the fairness of the 
presentation at the same time in connection with our audit. This is not unusual for us to do with 
organizations of your size. 

The effectiveness of the internal control system relies on enforcement by management. The 
effect of deficiencies in internal controls can result in undetected errors. As in prior years, we 
have instructed management to review a draft of the auditor prepared financials in detail for 
accuracy; we have answered any questions that management might have, and have encouraged 
research of any accounting guidance in connection with the adequacy and appropriateness of 
classification of disclosures in your statements. We are satisfied that the appropriate steps have 
been taken to provide you with the completed financial statements. 

Under these circumstances, the most effective controls lie in management's knowledge of the 
Organization's financial operations. It is the responsibility of management and those charged with 
governance to make the decision whether to accept the degree of risk associated with this 
condition because of cost and other considerations. Regarding the specific situations listed 
above, we would offer the following specific recommendation: 1) Utilize a disclosure checklist to 
ensure all required disclosures are present and agree to work papers, and 2) Agree your 
accounting information from your accounting software to the amounts reported in the financial 
statements. 

Management Response: 

For now, the City's management accepts the degree of risk associated with this condition and thoroughly reviews a draft 
of the financial statements. 

2017-002 

Condition: 

Criteria: 

Cause: 

Effect: 

Recommendation: 

Material Audit Adjustments 

During our audit, adjustments were needed to record a number of accounting and audit 
adjustments, including the following material entries: 

• To adjust various capital asset activity. 

• To adjust the coding of transfers and to record additional transfers. 

The financial statements are the responsibility of the City's management. 

City staff has not prepared a year-end trial balance reflecting all necessary accounting entries. 

This indicates that it would be likely that a misstatement may occur and not be detected by the 
City's system of internal control. The audit firm cannot serve as a compensating control over this 
deficiency. 

We recommend that management review each journal entry, obtain an understanding of why the 
entry was necessary and modify current procedures to ensure that future corrections are not 
needed. 

Management Response: 

Management will continue to review and gain an understanding of the audit adjustments in order to 
reduce the number of entries necessary for future audits. 

3 

lh)pl<· 
+ Pro('(•,;,; 

( ;oi110 
!·\t'\<~HI 11i,· 

\111 id l<'I'' 



Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant 
agreements, and other matters noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of 
our audit. While our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion, it does not provide a legal determination on the 
City's compliance with those requirements. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards or Minnesota statutes. 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting 
policies used by the City are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new accounting policies were adopted 
and the application of existing policies were not changed during the year ended December 31, 2017. We noted no 
transactions entered into by the City during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All 
significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period with the exception of those 
noted in Note 9. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain 
accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the 
possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. Significant estimates affecting 
the financial statements include the capital asset basis, the depreciation on capital assets, allowance for doubtful 
accounts and the liabilities for the City's Other Post-employment Benefits (OPEB) and City's pensions. 

• Capital asset basis is based on estimated historical cost of the capital assets. 

• Depreciation is based on the estimated useful lives of capital assets. 

• Management's estimate of the allowance is based on past uncollectible accounts. 

• OPEB liability is based on several factors including, but not limited to, anticipated retirement age for active 
employees, life expectancy, turnover, and healthcare cost trend rate. 

• Management's estimate of its pension liability is based on several factors including, but not limited to, anticipated 
investment return rate, retirement age for active employees, life expectancy, salary increases and form of annuity 
payment upon retirement. 

The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear. Certain financial statement disclosures are 
particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial statement users. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than 
those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. During our audit material 
adjustments were needed to adjust various capital asset activity, to adjust the coding of transfers and to record additional 
transfers. Management has corrected all such misstatements. We also assisted in preparing a number of year end 
accounting entries. These were necessary to adjust the City's records at year end to correct ending balances. The City 
should establish more detailed processes and procedures to reduce the total number of entries in each category. The City 
will receive better and timelier information if the preparation of year-end entries is completed internally. 

4 

lh>plP 
+ Pron•,;,; 
( ;uilln 
I ;l'\<~111,,,, 

\111iilH'i'' 



Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial accounting, 
reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction that could be significant to the financial 
statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our 
audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation letter 
dated June 19, 2018. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, similar 
to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting principle to 
the City's financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those 
statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant 
has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, with 
management each year prior to retention as the City's auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal 
course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention. 

Other Matters 

We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information (RSI) (Management's Discussion and 
Analysis, the Schedules of Employer's Share of the Net Pension Liability, the Schedule of Changes in Net Pension 
Liability (Asset) and Related Ratios, the Schedules of Employer's Contributions and the Schedule of Funding Progress for 
Other Post-Employment Benefits Plan), which is information that supplements the basic financial statements. Our 
procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 

We were engaged to report on the supplementary information (combining and individual fund financial statements and 
schedules), which accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information, 
we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to 
determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the 
method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation 
to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying 
accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. 

We were not engaged to report on the introductory or statistical sections, which accompany the financial statements but 
are not RSI. We did not audit or perform other procedures on this other information and we do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on them. 

5 

lhipl<' 
+ Proo',.;,.; 
( ;ui 110 

I~('\(~}( I I !i,· 
\111iilw1·-; 



Financial Position and Results of Operations 

Our principal observations and recommendations are summarized below. These recommendations resulted from our 
observations made in connection with our audit of the City's financial statements for the year ended December 31 , 2017. 

General Fund 

All general governmental functions of the City which are not accounted for in separate funds are included in the General 
fund. 

Minnesota municipalities must maintain substantial amounts of fund balance in order to meet their liquidity and working 
capital needs as an operating entity. That is because a substantial portion of your revenue sources (taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues) are received in the last two months of each six-month cycle. 

As you can see from the following information, it is necessary to maintain fund balance in order to keep pace with the 
increasing operating budget. This information is also presented in graphic form below. 

Percent 
General of Fund 

Fund Balance Budget Fund Balance to 
Year December 31 Year Budget Budget 

2013 $ 2,794,394 2014 $ 7,203,450 * 38.8 % 
2014 3,315,595 2015 7,170,951 46.2 
2015 3,776,206 2016 7,456,743 50.6 
2016 4,064,351 2017 7,897,986 51 .5 
2017 4,187,674 2018 8,231 ,330 50.9 

*Starting in 2014, certain special revenue funds were closed and budgeted into the General fund causing the percent of 
fund balance to budget for 2013 to decrease. Also, the General fund balance includes interfund receivable offset that 
is nonspendable. 

The following is an analysis of the General fund 's balance for the past five years compared to the following year's budget: 

Fund Balance/Budget Comparison 

$10,000,000 
$7,897,986 

$7,203,450 $7,456,743 
$8,000,000 $7,170,951 • • • • 
$6,000,000 

$4 ,000,000 • • • .. • 51.5% 50.9% 50.6% 
$2,000,000 

r 
------

38.8% 46.2% 

$- T r -,--- -.--
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

~Fund Balance - Budget 

6 

r 

$8,231,330 ._ 
---! 

2018 

People 
+ Process 
Going 

I ~< ·\-um 1.,,.. 
\ u1i 1l>f'l'S 



The General fund balance increased by $123,323 in 2017. The total fund balance of $4, 187,674 represents 50.9 percent 
of the 2018 budget. Many other organizations, including the Office of the State Auditor (the OSA) and League of 
Minnesota Cities (LMC) recommend that unassigned fund balance be anywhere from 35 to 50 percent of planned 
expenditures. We concur with those recommendations. 

Although there is no legislation regulating fund balance, it is a good policy to assign intended use of fund balance. This 
helps address citizen concerns as to the use of fund balance and tax levels. The City should consider documenting 
assignments for intended use of fund balance at and above the fifty percent level. This documentation could be 
accomplished by an annual resolution to identify intended use of available fund balance. We recommend a minimum 
unassigned fund balance be approximately 40 percent to 50 percent of planned disbursements. So at the current level, 
the fund balance is considered about what is recommended. 

The purposes and benefits of a fund balance are as follows: 

• Expenditures are incurred somewhat evenly throughout the year. However, property tax and state aid revenues 
are not received until the second half of the year. An adequate fund balance will provide the cash flow required to 
finance the governmental fund expenditures. 

• The City is vulnerable to legislative actions at the State and Federal level. The State continually adjusts the local 
government aid formulas. We also have seen the State mandate levy limits for cities over 2,500 in 
population. An adequate fund balance will provide a temporary buffer against those aid adjustments or levy limits. 

• Expenditures not anticipated at the time the annual budget was adopted may need immediate Council action. 
These would include capital outlay, replacement, lawsuits and other items. An adequate fund balance will provide 
the financing needed for such expenditures. 

• A strong fund balance will assist the City in maintaining, improving or obtaining its bond rating. The result will be 
better interest rates in future bond sales. 

The 2017 General fund operations are summarized as follows: 

Final 
Budgeted 
Amounts 

Revenues $ 7,760,018 
Expenditures 7,897,986 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures (137,968) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Sale of capital assets 500 
Transfers in 275,202 
Transfers out (175,000) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 100,702 

Net Change in Fund Balances $ (37,266) 

Fund Balances, January 1 

Fund Balances, December 31 

7 

Actual 
Amounts 

$ 8,055,647 
7,987,052 

68,595 

18,000 
271,750 

(235,022) 
54,728 

123,323 

4,064,351 

$ 4,187,674 

Variance with 
Final Bud~et 

$ 295,629 
(89,066) 

206,563 

17,500 
(3,452) 

(60,022) 
(45,97 4) 

$ 160,589 

I h>pl(' 
+ I >ron •,.;,.; 
( ;()i1111 
l)!'\/~Hl11w 

\111iilw1·, 



Some of the larger variance items are as follows: 

• Tax revenue was over budget by $41,468 due to the under budgeting of franchise fees and other taxes. 
• Licenses and permits revenue was $102,614 over budget due to increased rental housing license rates and more 

building permits issued than prior years with valuation increases of $11 , 176,802. 
• Intergovernmental revenue was over budget by $45, 130 mainly due to increases in police and fire aids. 
• Charges for services revenue was over budget by $57,316 mainly attributable to sales and advertising revenue at 

Caswell Park. 
• Miscellaneous revenue was over budget by $57,413 due to various donations including contributions for vehicle 

replacements. 
• Public works expenditures were under budget by $71, 101 mainly due to less street maintenance than anticipated. 
• Culture and recreation expenditures were over budget by $102,497 attributable to increased activity at the library, 

Caswell Park and other parks which was partially offset with additional revenue. 
• Transfers out were over budget $60,022 due to contributions to the 2016 Construction fund to finance the 

municipal building improvement cost overruns. 

A comparison of General fund revenues and transfers for the last three years is presented below: 

Percent 
of Per 

Source 2015 2016 2017 Total Capita 

Taxes $ 4,521 ,694 $ 4,664,566 $ 4,962,604 59.5 % $ 359 
Special Assessments 29,140 26,985 6,796 0.1 
Licenses and Permits 448,871 360,412 470,642 5.7 34 
Intergovernmental 2,036,034 2,056,525 2,065,472 24.8 150 
Charges for Services 199,242 242,214 278,806 3.3 20 
Fines and Forfeits 27,578 31 ,247 28,220 0.3 2 
Investment Earnings 3,926 3,978 5,322 0.1 
Miscellaneous 259,152 171 ,591 237,785 2.9 17 
Transfers In 271 ,750 279,350 271 ,750 3.3 20 

Total Revenues and Transfers $ 7,797,387 $ 7,836,868 $ 8,327,397 100.0 % $ 602 

General Fund Revenues by Source 

$6,000,000 l 
$5 ,000,000 --I 

$4,000,000 ----
$3,000,000 

$2 ,000,000 

$1 ,000,000 ------ ---

$- 51 ...- ~~ .,.. - -, 

2015 2016 2017 

....... Taxes - Licenses and permits Intergovernmental -w-Charges for services ~Other 

8 

P<'oplc 
+ Pron'ss 
( ;oi1w 
I ~1.,1\'i u I 11 ... 

\111 iii H'I"" 



A comparison of General fund expenditures and transfers for the last three years is presented below: 

Percent Peer Group 

of Per Per 

Program 2015 2016 2017 Total Capita Capita 

Current 

General government 839,835 $ 752, 144 $ 782,884 9.5 % $ 57 $ 109 

Public safety 2, 120,907 2,183,726 2,304,769 28.1 167 229 

Public works 1,693,925 1,675,017 1,661,692 20.2 120 109 

Culture and recreation 1,444,506 1,647,680 1,647,812 20.0 119 63 

Housing and economic development 555,517 500,854 519,788 6.3 38 8 

Miscellaneous 358,907 288,787 302,532 3.7 22 15 

Total Current 7,013,597 7,048,208 7,219,477 87.8 523 533 

Capital Outlay 243,875 314,486 767,575 9.3 56 19 

Debt Service 79,513 

Transfers Out 186,029 235,022 2.9 17 

Total Expenditures 

and Transfers $ 7,336,985 $ 7,548,723 $ 8,222,074 100.0 % $ 596 $ 552 

General Fund Expenditures by Program 

$2,500,000 - - - -

• • • 
~ 

$2 ,000,000 

- - -
' " ~ 

$1,500,000 
' 

$1 ,000,000 
~ - - -

$500,000 

$-
20 15 2016 2017 

-+-General government - Public safety Public works ~Culture and recreation ~Other 

9 

l >eoplc 
+ l)roccss 
Going 

13e\Ol1<1tlw 
\urtlb('l'S 



Special Revenue Funds 

Special revenue funds have revenue from specific sources to be used for specific purpose. Listed below are the special 
revenue funds of the City along with the fund balances for 2017 and 2016 and the net change: 

Fund 
Non major 

Library Endowment 
Community Development Block Grant 
Local Option Sales Tax 
Park Development 
Port Authority 
Federal Revolving Loan 
Local Revolving Loan 
Joint Economic Development 
Marigold TIF #8 
Webster Redevelopment TIF #14 
National Dentex TIF #17 
Webster Avenue TIF #2 
LJP Enterprises TIF #18 
Ziegler Caterpillar TIF #20 
422 Belgrade TIF #19 
Lindsay TIF #22 
Allstate Peterbuildt TIF #21 
D & K Powdercoating TIF #23 

Total 

Debt Service Funds 

Fund Balances 
December 31, 

2017 2016 

$ 48,644 $ 50,000 
15,296 12,849 

105,200 140,734 
5,866 5,866 

168,507 211,734 
1,744,639 1,715,558 

230,450 228,395 
1,166,288 361,337 
(380,606) (397, 107) 

70,073 54,901 
6,360 
1,016 1,015 

21,885 12,562 

$ 3,203,618 $ 2,397,844 

Increase 
(Decrease) 

$ (1,356) 
2,447 

(35,534) 

(43,227) 
29,081 

2,055 
804,951 

16,501 
15, 172 
6,360 

1 

9,323 

$ 805,774 

Debt Service funds are a type of governmental fund to account for the accumulation of resources for the payment of 
interest and principal on debt (other than enterprise fund debt). 

Debt Service funds may have one or a combination of the following revenue sources pledged to retire debt as follows: 

• Property taxes - Primarily for general City benefit projects such as parks and municipal buildings. Property taxes 
may also be used to fund special assessment bonds which are not fully assessed. 

Tax increments - Pledged exclusively for tax incremenUeconomic development districts. 

Capitalized interest portion of bond proceeds - After the sale of bonds, the project may not produce revenue (tax 
increments or special assessments) for a period of one to two years. Bonds are issued with this timing difference 
considered in the form of capitalized interest. 

Special assessments - Charges to benefited properties for various improvements. 

In addition to the above pledged assets, other funding sources may be received by Debt Service funds as follows: 

Residual project proceeds from the related capital projects fund 
Investment earnings 
State or Federal grants 
Transfers from other funds 

10 

lh>plt• 
+ Pro('c,.;.,.; 
( ;ui110 

I;"':~ 1d "" 
\111iilw1·' 



The following is a summary of Debt Service fund assets and outstanding debt as of December 31, 2017: 

Total Cash 
and Temporary Total Outstanding 

Debt Description Investments Assets Debt 
General Obligation Bonds 

Bond Reserve $ 817,726 $ 1,426,642 $ 
G.O. Capital Improvements - 2008C 370,000 
General Obligations - 2011A 2,820,000 
G.O. Capital Improvements - 2012A 260,000 
General Obligations - 2014A 96, 108 113,890 765,000 
General Obligations - 2015A 515,000 
General Obligations - 2016A 465,000 

Total G.O. Bonds 913,834 1,540,532 5,195,000 

Tax Increment Bonds 
Taxable G.O. Tax Increment Bonds of 2010D 31,814 31,814 700,000 
Taxable G.O. Tax Increment Revenue Bonds of 2011 B 31,883 31,883 415,000 

Total Tax Increment Bonds 63,697 63,697 1, 115,000 

G.O. Special Assessment Bonds 
2005D G.O. Improvement Bonds 259,673 737,732 
2007A G.O. Improvement Bonds 388,332 693,792 115,000 
2008A G.O. Improvement Bonds 100 27,052 350,000 
2009D G.O. Improvement Bonds 1,870,699 
2010A G.O. Improvement Bonds 714,678 1,710,000 
2010C G.O. Refunding Bonds 428,028 989,223 2,295,000 
2015A G.O. Improvement Bonds (West Carlson) 348,286 
2015A G.O. Improvement Bonds 24,578 24,578 1,320,000 
2015B G.O. Crossover Refunding Bonds 1,630,000 
2010A G.O. Improvement Bonds 70,870 219,793 915,000 

Total G.O. Special Assessment Bonds 1,171,581 5,625,833 8,335,000 

G.O. Revenue Bonds 
G.O. Port Authority Taxable Refunding Bonds of 2009A 345,000 
2009C G.O. Sales Tax Revenue Bonds 1,400,000 
2010B G.O. Sales Tax Revenue Bonds 450,000 

Total G.O. Revenue Bonds 2,195,000 

Total All Debt Service Funds $2149112 $ 7,230,062 $16 840 000 

Future Interest on Debt $ 3 077 534 

11 

Maturity 
Date 

NIA 
02101119 
02101134 
02101120 
12101129 
12101130 
02101126 

02101137 
02101135 

Matured 
02101118 
02101119 
04101117 
12101127 
02101122 

12101130 
12101128 
02101132 

02101119 
12101124 
12101125 

lhlpl(' 
+ I )rm'(·~~ 
( ;oi 110· 

I ~('\(~1d1i1, 
\111iilH'I'' 



The City's outstanding debt is required to be funded by various resources such as special assessments, tax increments, 
property taxes, transfers from enterprise funds, etc. Special assessments and tax increments are usually certified once to 
the County for collection, but tax levies need to be certified annually. We recommend management pay particular 
attention to annual tax levies and transfers listed in each bond issue book to ensure proper funding of debt service. We 
recommend the City continue to monitor these deficits and future funding of debt service payments. 

The annual debt service requirements for the next 10 years for the debt (excluding refunded bonds) detailed above are as 
follows: 

$3,000,000 - --- --- -- ----

$2 ,500,000 

$2 ,000,000 

$1,500,000 

$1,000,000 

$500,000 

$-
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 

L • Principal • Interest 1 
Capital Projects Funds 

Capital projects funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities other than those 
financed by proprietary funds. The table below compares 2017 fund balances with 2016: 

Fund Balances 
December 31 , Increase 

Fund 2017 2016 (Decrease) 
Major 

2014 Construction $ $ 175,174 $ (175,174) 
2015 Construction (516,017) (1,482,589) 966,572 
2016 Construction 389,771 258,050 131 ,721 

Non major 
Capital Facilities and Equipment Replacement - General 200,707 65, 107 135,600 
2011 Construction (10,581) 10,581 
2017 Construction (145,755) (145,755) 
2018 Construction (32,048) (32,048) 

Total $ po3,342} $ {994,839} $ 891,497 

The City should analyze project's status each year and close those that are completed. The 2015 Construction fund deficit 
was caused by the State advancing Municipal State Aid Funds for Streets that were received in cash by the City in 2015 
and 2016 but will not be recognized as revenue until available in future years. 

12 

lboplc 
+Process 
Coi11g 

I~('' om I 11 ... 
\u1i1 lwrs 



Enterprise Funds 

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business 
enterprises-where the intent is that the costs of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be 
financed or recovered primarily through user charges. A comparison of enterprise fund cash flows and cash balances for 
the past four years is as follows: 

Water Utility Fund Cash Flows 

$2,500,000 

$2,000,000 t---- -------------

$1 ,500,000 

$1 ,000,000 

$500,000 

$-
2014 2014 2015 2015 2016 2016 2017 201 7 

Receipts Disbursements Receipts Disbursements Receipts Disbursements Receipts Disbursements 

• Operating receipts Operating disbursements Debt payments 

Water Utility Fund Cash Balances 
$2,500,000 

$2 ,000,000 
$1,982,775 $1,915,211 $1 ,866,176 

$1 ,500,000 
$1,485,771 

$1,000,000 

$500,000 
$584,681 $595,498 $597,517 $636,388 

$-
2014 20 15 20 16 20 17 

Actual Cash - lnterfu nd Receivables - Minimum Target Cash Balance 

The minimum target cash balance is based off 33 percent of operating costs to reflect the City's budget reserve policy. 

2014 2015 

Bonds Payable $ 3,758,750 $ 7,048,815 

13 

2016 

$ 6,496,523 

2017 

$ 6,260,050 

I )t ·01 >It· 
+ Proo':-;~ 
Coi11<r 

I~( '\ (~11d, ,,,. 
\111iil wr:-; 



Sewer Utility Fund Cash Flows 

$2 ,500,000 1 

$2 ,000,000 

$1 ,500,000 

$1 ,000,000 

$500,000 

$-
2014 2014 2015 2015 2016 2016 2017 2017 

Receipts Disbursements Receipts Disbursements Receipts Disbursements Receipts Disbursements 

• Operating receipts • Operating disbursements Debt payments 

Sewer Utility Fund Cash Balances 
$2,000,000 

$1,500,000 
$1,423,612 

$1,295, 165 

$1 ,000,000 
$872,702 $1,004,975 

$500,000 $697,647 $685,399 $691 ,906 $785,550 

$-
20 14 2015 2016 2017 

Actual Cash - lnterfund Receivables - Minimum Target Cash Balance 

The minimum target cash balance is based off 33 percent of operating costs to reflect the City's budget reserve policy. 

2014 2015 

Bonds Payable $ 1,268,847 $ 2,762,216 

14 

2016 

$ 2,280,458 

2017 

$ 2,181 ,752 

P('opl(' 
+ PrO<'<'ss 
( ;oi 11<,. 

l ~ ! '\<~I H l 1 1i .. 
\111 iii )('I'" 



$600,000 

$500,000 

$400,000 

$300,000 

$200,000 

$100,000 

$-
2014 2014 

Receipts Disbursements 

Recycling Fund Cash Flows 

2015 2015 2016 2016 2017 2017 
Receipts Disbursements Receipts Disbursements Receipts Disbursements 

Operating disbursements Debt payments • Operating receipts 

Recycling Fund Cash Balances 
$100,000 

$91 ,129 $83,091 $78, 121 
$80,000 

$60,000 
$80,521 

$40,000 

$32,968 $15,207 $45,418 
$20,000 

$-
2014 2015 2016 201 7 

Actual Cash - Minimum Target Cash Balance 

The minimum target cash balance is based off 16.7 percent of operating costs due to the fund's operating nature. The 
City does not have a budget reserve policy for this fund . 

2014 2015 2016 

Bonds Payable $ 1,865,000 $ 935,000 $ 850,000 

15 

2017 

$ 760,000 

n·opl<' 
+ I >r ()( ·<'~s 
( ;() j I JH 

I i' 
~('\ 01 Hl1 1,.. 

\u1i1I HT" 



$400,000 

$350,000 

$300,000 

$250,000 

$200,000 

$150,000 

$100,000 

$50,000 

$-
2014 2014 

Receipts Disbursements 

Storm Water Fund Cash Flows 

2015 2015 2016 2016 2017 2017 
Receipts Disbursements Receipts Disbursements Receipts Disbursements 

Operating disbursements Debt payments • Operating receipts 

$100,000 

$80,000 $91,723 

$60,000 $66,374 

$40,000 

$20,000 

$-
2014 

Storm Water Fund Cash Balances 

$92,690 $92,158 

$57,297 

$35,749 

2015 2016 

Actual Cash - Minimum Target Cash Balance 

$93,313 .. 

$-~---; 

2017 

The minimum target cash balance is based off 33 percent of operating costs. The City does not have a budget reserve 
policy for this fund. 

2014 2015 

Bonds Payable $ 420,000 $ 435,000 

16 

2016 

$ 396,000 

2017 

$ 357,000 

Pcopl<' 
+ Pro< .,,~~ 

Co i1 w 
I k\<~1 uI 1 1i .. 

\1 11iilwr..; 



Solid Waste Fund Cash Flows 

$1 ,000,000 

$900,000 

$800,000 

$700,000 

$600,000 

$500,000 

$400,000 

$300,000 

$200,000 

$100,000 

$-
2014 2014 2015 2015 

Receipts Disbursements Receipts Disbursements 

Operating disbursements 

2016 2016 2017 2017 
Receipts Disbursements Receipts Disbursements 

Debt payments • Operating receipts 

Solid Waste Fund Cash Balances 

$180,000 

$150,000 

$120,000 

$90,000 

$60,000 

$30,000 

$-

$150,879 

$1 ,319 

2014 

$16,269 

2015 

Actual Cash 

$122,764 $123,562 

$11 ,210 $16,751 

2016 2017 

- Minimum Target Cash Balance 

The minimum target cash balance is based off 16.7 percent of operating costs due to the fund's operating nature. The 
City does not have a budget reserve policy for this fund . 

2014 2015 2016 

Bonds Payable $ $ 360,000 $ 320,000 

We recommend the City continue to review rates annually and determine if increases are required to: 

• Fund continuing operating expenses. 
•Maintain contingency requirements for unexpected repairs. 
•Provide for capital replacement requirements. 

17 

2017 

$ 280,000 

Pt'opl(' 
+ Pl'()('(';-\S 

( ;oi1w 
" I ~('\ 011d I"" 

\1 11i1 I H'I'~ 



Ratio Analysis 

The following captures a few ratios from the City's financial statements that give some additional information for trend and 
peer group analysis. The peer group average is derived from information available from the Office of the State Auditor for 
cities of the 3rd class (10,000 to 20,000). The majority of these ratios facilitate the use of economic resources focus and 
accrual basis of accounting at the government-wide level. A combination of liquidity (ability to pay its most immediate 
obligations) , solvency (ability to pay its long-term obligations) , funding (comparison of financial amounts and economic 
indicators to measure changes in financial capacity over time) and common-size (comparison of financial data with other 
cities regardless of size) ratios are shown below. 

Ratio 

Debt to assets 

Debt service coverage 

Debt per capita 

Taxes per capita 

Current expenditures per capita 

Capital expenditures per capita 

Capital assets % left to 

depreciate - Governmental 

Capital assets % left to 

depreciate - Business-type 

Calculation Source 

Total liabilities/total assets Government-wide 

Net cash provided by operations/ Enterprise funds 

enterprise fund debt payments 

Bonded debt/population Government-wide 

Tax revenues/population Government-wide 

Governmental fund current Governmental funds 

expenditures I population 

Governmental fund capital Governmental funds 

expenditures I population 

Net capital assets/ Government-wide 

gross capital assets 

Net capital assets/ Government-wide 

gross capita l assets 

Represents City of North Mankato 

Represents Peer Group Ratio 

18 

2014 

40% 

31% 

2.1 

1.4 

$ 2,576 

$ 2,369 

$ 496 

$ 492 

$ 584 

$ 650 

$ 288 

$ 260 

53% 

58% 

66% 

60% 

Year 

2015 

43% 

34% 

1 3 

1.2 

$ 2,821 

$ 2,400 

$ 514 

$ 504 

$ 569 

$ 633 

$ 666 

$ 374 

55% 

58% 

68% 

60% 

2016 2017 

45% 37% 

36% NIA 

07 09 

1.9 NIA 

$ 2,708 $ 2,298 

$ 1,932 NIA 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

528 $ 543 

514 NIA 

571 $ 586 

668 NIA 

234 $ 103 

338 NIA 

53% 51% 

59% NIA 

67% 66% 

60% NIA 

P<'opl<' 
+ Proc<'ss 
( ;oi 11n 

I ~1., 1~1 11 I 1 " " 

\111 iii){'("..; 



Debt-to-Assets Leverage Ratio (Solvency Ratio) 

The debt-to-assets leverage ratio is a comparison of a city's total liabilities to its total assets or the percentage of total 
assets that are provided by creditors. It indicates the degree to which the City's assets are financed through borrowings 
and other long-term obligations (i.e. a ratio of 50 percent would indicate half of the assets are financing with outstanding 
debt). 

Debt Service Coverage Ratio (Solvency Ratio) 

The debt coverage ratio is a comparison of cash generated by operations to total debt service payments (principal and 
interest) of enterprise funds. This ratio indicates if there are sufficient cash flows from operations to meet debt service 
obligations. Except in cases where other nonoperating revenues (i.e. taxes, assessments, transfers from other funds, 
etc.) are used to fund debt service payments, an acceptable ratio would be above 1. 

Bonded Debt per Capita (Funding Ratio) 

This dollar amount is arrived at by dividing the total bonded debt by the population of the city and represents the amount 
of bonded debt obligation for each citizen of the city at the end of the year. The higher the amount, the more resources 
are needed in the future to retire these obligations through taxes, assessments or user fees. 

Taxes per Capita (Funding Ratio) 

This dollar amount is arrived at by dividing the total tax revenues by the population of the city and represents the amount 
of taxes for each citizen of the city for the year. The higher this amount is, the more reliant the city is on taxes to fund its 
operations. 

Current Expenditures per Capita (Funding Ratio) 

This dollar amount is arrived at by dividing the total current governmental expenditures by the population of the City and 
represents the amount of governmental expenditure for each citizen of the City during the year. Since this is generally 
based on ongoing expenditures, we would expect consistent annual per capita results. 

Capital Expenditures per Capita (Funding Ratio) 
This dollar amount is arrived at by dividing the total governmental capital outlay expenditures by the population of the City 
and represents the amount of capital expenditure for each citizen of the City during the year. Since projects are not 
always recurring, the per capita amount will fluctuate from year to year. 

Capital Assets Percentage (Common-size Ratio) 

This percentage represents the percent of governmental or business-type capital assets that are left to be depreciated. 
The lower this percentage, the older the city's capital assets are and may need major repairs or replacements in the near 
future. A higher percentage may indicate newer assets being constructed or purchased and may coincide with higher 
debt ratios or bonded debt per capita. 

19 

i><'opl<' 
+ Pro('(•,.;,.; 
( ;ui110 

1·i{'\(~~1HI1i.,. 
\111i1IHT' 



Future Accounting Standard Changes 

The following Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements have been issued and may have an impact 
on future City financial statements: 111 

GASB Statement No. 75 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemptoyment Benefit Plans Other than Pension 

Summary 

The primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments 
for postemployment benefits other than pensions (other postemployment benefits or OPEB). It also improves information 
provided by state and local governmental employers about financial support for OPEB that is provided by other entities. 
This Statement results from a comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and financial 
reporting for all postemployment benefits (pensions and OPEB) with regard to providing decision-useful information, 
supporting assessments of accountability and interperiod equity, and creating additional transparency. 

This Statement replaces the requirements of Statements No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for 
Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions, as amended, and No. 57, OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and 
Agent Multiple-Employer Plans, for OPEB. Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans 
Other than Pension Plans, establishes new accounting and financial reporting requirements for OPEB plans. 

The scope of this Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for OPEB that is provided to the employees of 
state and local governmental employers. This Statement establishes standards for recognizing and measuring liabilities, 
deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures. For defined benefit OPEB, this 
Statement identifies the methods and assumptions that are required to be used to project benefit payments, discount 
projected benefit payments to their actuarial present value, and attribute that present value to periods of employee 
service. Note disclosure and required supplementary information requirements about defined benefit OPEB also are 
addressed. 

In addition, this Statement details the recognition and disclosure requirements for employers with payables to defined 
benefit OPEB plans that are administered through trusts that meet the specified criteria and for employers whose 
employees are provided with defined contribution OPEB. This Statement also addresses certain circumstances in which a 
nonemployer entity provides financial support for OPEB of employees of another entity. 

In this Statement, distinctions are made regarding the particular requirements depending upon whether the OPEB plans 
through which the benefits are provided are administered through trusts that meet the following criteria: 

• Contributions from employers and nonemployer contributing entities to the OPEB plan and earnings on those 
contributions are irrevocable. 

• OPEB plan assets are dedicated to providing OPEB to plan members in accordance with the benefit terms. 

• OPEB plan assets are legally protected from the creditors of employers, nonemployer contributing entities, the 
OPEB plan administrator, and the plan members. 

Effective Date 

This Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2017. Earlier application is encouraged. 

How the Changes in This Statement Will Improve Financial Reporting 

The requirements of this Statement will improve the decision-usefulness of information in employer and governmental 
nonemployer contributing entity financial reports and will enhance its value for assessing accountability and interperiod 
equity by requiring recognition of the entire OPEB liability and a more comprehensive measure of OPEB expense. 
Decision-usefulness and accountability also will be enhanced through new note disclosures and required supplementary 
information, as follows: 

• More robust disclosures of assumptions will allow for better informed assessments of the 
reasonableness of OPEB measurements. 

• Explanations of how and why the OPEB liability changed from year to year will improve 
transparency. 

20 

lh1pl( 0 

+ I ir< )( ·1 '"" 
( ;()i ! 10 

l j( '\ (\~ 11l11i,. 

\111 iii i<'I'" 



Future Accounting Standard Changes (Continued) 

• The summary OPEB liability information, including ratios, will offer an indication of the extent to which the total 
OPEB liability is covered by resources held by the OPEB plan, if any. 

• For employers that provide benefits through OPEB plans that are administered through trusts that meet the 
specified criteria, the contribution schedules will provide measures to evaluate decisions related to contributions. 

The consistency, comparability, and transparency of the information reported by employers and governmental 
nonemployer contributing entities about OPEB transactions will be improved by requiring: 

• The use of a discount rate that considers the availability of the OPEB plan's fiduciary net position associated with 
the OPEB of current active and inactive employees and the investment horizon of those resources, rather than 
utilizing only the long-term expected rate of return regardless of whether the OPEB plan's fiduciary net position is 
projected to be sufficient to make projected benefit payments and is expected to be invested using a strategy to 
achieve that return. 

• A single method of attributing the actuarial present value of projected benefit payments to periods of employee 
service, rather than allowing a choice among six methods with additional variations. 

• Immediate recognition in OPES expense, rather than a choice of recognition periods, of the effects of changes of 
benefit terms. 

• Recognition of OPEB expense that incorporates deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to OPEB over a defined, closed period, rather than a choice between an open or closed period. 

GASB Statement No. 83 - Certain Asset Retirement Obligations 

Summary 

This Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain asset retirement obligations (AR Os). An ARO is a 
legally enforceable liability associated with the retirement of a tangible capital asset. A government that has legal 
obligations to perform future asset retirement activities related to its tangible capital assets should recognize a liability 
based on the guidance in this Statement. 

This Statement establishes criteria for determining the timing and pattern of recognition of a liability and a corresponding 
deferred outflow of resources for AROs. This Statement requires that recognition occur when the liability is both incurred 
and reasonably estimable. The determination of when the liability is incurred should be based on the occurrence of 
external laws. regulations, contracts, or court judgments, together with the occurrence of an internal event that obligates a 
government to perform asset retirement activities. Laws and regulations may require governments to take specific actions 
to retire certain tangible capital assets at the end of the useful lives of those capital assets, such as decommissioning 
nuclear reactors and dismantling and removing sewage treatment plants. Other obligations to retire tangible capital assets 
may arise from contracts or court judgments. Internal obligating events include the occurrence of contamination, placing 
into operation a tangible capital asset that is required to be retired, abandoning a tangible capital asset before it is placed 
into operation, or acquiring a tangible capital asset that has an existing ARO. 

This Statement requires the measurement of an ARO to be based on the best estimate of the current value of outlays 
expected to be incurred. The best estimate should include probability weighting of all potential outcomes, when such 
information is available or can be obtained at reasonable cost. If probability weighting is not feasible at reasonable cost, 
the most likely amount should be used. This Statement requires that a deferred outflow of resources associated with an 
ARO be measured at the amount of the corresponding liability upon initial measurement. 

This Statement requires the current value of a government's AR Os to be adjusted for the effects of general inflation or 
deflation at least annually. In addition, it requires a government to evaluate all relevant factors at least annually to 
determine whether the effects of one or more of the factors are expected to significantly change the estimated asset 
retirement outlays. A government should remeasure an ARO only when the result of the evaluation indicates there is a 
significant change in the estimated outlays. The deferred outflows of resources should be reduced and 
recognized as outflows of resources (for example, as an expense) in a systematic and rational manner 
over the estimated useful life of the tangible capital asset. 

21 

lh1plc 
+ Prrn '< ·,.;.~ 
( ;()i110 

[\<'1i;·11<L•,,. 
\111iiill'I'' 



Future Accounting Standard Changes (Continued) 

A government may have a minority share (less than 50 percent) of ownership interest in a jointly owned tangible capital 
asset in which a nongovernmental entity is the majority owner and reports its ARO in accordance with the guidance of 
another recognized accounting standards setter. Additionally, a government may have a minority share of ownership 
interest in a jointly owned tangible capital asset in which no joint owner has a majority ownership, and a nongovernmental 
joint owner that has operational responsibility for the jointly owned tangible capital asset reports the associated ARO in 
accordance with the guidance of another recognized accounting standards setter. In both situations, the government's 
minority share of an ARO should be reported using the measurement produced by the nongovernmental majority owner or 
the nongovernmental minority owner that has operational responsibility, without adjustment to conform to the liability 
measurement and recognition requirements of this Statement. 

In some cases, governments are legally required to provide funding or other financial assurance for their performance of 
asset retirement activities. This Statement requires disclosure of how those funding and assurance requirements are 
being met by a government, as well as the amount of any assets restricted for payment of the government's AROs, if not 
separately displayed in the financial statements. 

This Statement also requires disclosure of information about the nature of a government's AROs, the methods and 
assumptions used for the estimates of the liabilities, and the estimated remaining useful life of the associated tangible 
capital assets. If an ARO (or portions thereof) has been incurred by a government but is not yet recognized because it is 
not reasonably estimable, the government is required to disclose that fact and the reasons therefor. This Statement 
requires similar disclosures for a government's minority shares of AROs. 

Effective Date 

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018. Earlier application is 
encouraged. 

How the Changes in This Statement Will Improve Financial Reporting 

This Statement will enhance comparability of financial statements among governments by establishing uniform criteria for 
governments to recognize and measure certain AROs, including obligations that may not have been previously reported. 
This Statement also will enhance the decision-usefulness of the information provided to financial statement users by 
requiring disclosures related to those AROs. 

GASB Statement No. 84 - Fiduciary Activities 

Summary 

The objective of this Statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and 
financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported. 

This Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. The focus of the 
criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity and (2) the beneficiaries 
with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included to identify fiduciary component units and 
postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary activities. 

An activity meeting the criteria should be reported in a fiduciary fund in the basic financial statements. Governments with 
activities meeting the criteria should present a statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes in fiduciary 
net position. An exception to that requirement is provided for a business-type activity that normally expects to hold 
custodial assets for three months or less. 

This Statement describes four fiduciary funds that should be reported, if applicable: (1) pension (and other employee 
benefit) trust funds, (2) investment trust funds, (3) private-purpose trust funds, and (4) custodial funds. Custodial funds 
generally should report fiduciary activities that are not held in a trust or equivalent arrangement that meets specific criteria. 

22 

P<'opll' 
-+ Pron•,.;,.; 
( ;(l i 110 

I i<•\i~Hlti,, 
\111iilw1·, 



Future Accounting Standard Changes (Continued) 

A fiduciary component unit, when reported in the fiduciary fund financial statements of a primary government, should 
combine its information with its component units that are fiduciary component units and aggregate that combined 
information with the primary government's fiduciary funds. 

This Statement also provides for recognition of a liability to the beneficiaries in a fiduciary fund when an event has 
occurred that compels the government to disburse fiduciary resources. Events that compel a government to disburse 
fiduciary resources occur when a demand for the resources has been made or when no further action, approval, or 
condition is required to be taken or met by the beneficiary to release the assets. 

Effective Date 

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Earlier 
application is encouraged. 

How the Changes in This Statement Will Improve Financial Reporting 

The requirements of this Statement will enhance consistency and comparability by (1) establishing specific criteria for 
identifying activities that should be reported as fiduciary activities and (2) clarifying whether and how business-type 
activities should report their fiduciary activities. Greater consistency and comparability enhances the value provided by the 
information reported in financial statements for assessing government accountability and stewardship. 

GASB Statement No. 85 - Omnibus 2017 

Summary 

The objective of this Statement is to address practice issues that have been identified during implementation and 
application of certain GASB Statements. This Statement addresses a variety of topics including issues related to blending 
component units, goodwill, fair value measurement and application, and postemployment benefits (pensions and other 
postemployment benefits [OPEB]). Specifically, this Statement addresses the following topics: 

• Blending a component unit in circumstances in which the primary government is a business-type activity that 
reports in a single column for financial statement presentation 

• Reporting amounts previously reported as goodwill and "negative" goodwill 
• Classifying real estate held by insurance entities 
• Measuring certain money market investments and participating interest-earning investment contracts at amortized 

cost 
• Timing of the measurement of pension or OPEB liabilities and expenditures recognized in financial statements 

prepared using the current financial resources measurement focus 
• Recognizing on-behalf payments for pensions or OPEB in employer financial statements 
• Presenting payroll-related measures in required supplementary information for purposes of reporting by OPEB 

plans and employers that provide OPEB 
• Classifying employer-paid member contributions for OPEB 
• Simplifying certain aspects of the alternative measurement method for OPEB 
• Accounting and financial reporting for OPEB provided through certain multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB 

plans. 

Effective Date 

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017. Earlier application is 
encouraged. 

How the Changes in This Statement Will Improve Financial Reporting 

The requirements of this Statement will enhance consistency in the application of accounting and financial reporting 
requirements. Consistent reporting will improve the usefulness of information for users of state and local 
government financial statements. 

23 

lh>pl(· 
+ Jlf'()('( •,.;,.; 

( ;oi r 11 .-

1 lt '\(~; 1.I "'' 
\111iilwl'' 



Future Accounting Standard Changes (Continued) 

GASB Statement No. 86 - Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues 

Summary 

The primary objective of this Statement is to improve consistency in accounting and financial reporting for in-substance 
defeasance of debt by providing guidance for transactions in which cash and other monetary assets acquired with only 
existing resources-resources other than the proceeds of refunding debt-are placed in an irrevocable trust for the sole 
purpose of extinguishing debt. This Statement also improves accounting and financial reporting for prepaid insurance on 
debt that is extinguished and notes to financial statements for debt that is defeased in substance. 

Effective Date 

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017. Earlier application is 
encouraged. 

How the Changes in This Statement Will Improve Accounting and Financial Reporting 

The requirements of this Statement will increase consistency in accounting and financial reporting for debt 
extinguishments by establishing uniform guidance for derecognizing debt that is defeased in substance, regardless of how 
cash and other monetary assets placed in an irrevocable trust for the purpose of extinguishing that debt were acquired. 
The requirements of this Statement also will enhance consistency in financial reporting of prepaid insurance related to 
debt that has been extinguished. In addition, this Statement will enhance the decision-usefulness of information in notes 
to financial statements regarding debt that has been defeased in substance. 

GASB Statement No. 87 - Leases 

Summary 

The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving 
accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments' 
financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified 
as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of 
the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are 
financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability 
and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow 
of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments• leasing activities. 

Effective Date and Transition 

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. Earlier 
application is encouraged. 

Leases should be recognized and measured using the facts and circumstances that exist at the beginning of the period of 
implementation (or, if applied to earlier periods, the beginning of the earliest period restated). However, lessors should not 
restate the assets underlying their existing sales-type or direct financing leases. Any residual assets for those leases 
become the carrying values of the underlying assets. 

24 

P('opl<' 
+ Pro<'(·;;;; 
(;ui11n 

1~('\(~!}(I1!i.· 
\111iilw1·, 



Future Accounting Standard Changes (Continued) 

How the Changes in This Statement Will Improve Accounting and Financial Reporting 

This Statement will increase the usefulness of governments' financial statements by requiring reporting of certain lease 
liabilities that currently are not reported. It will enhance comparability of financial statements among governments by 
requiring lessees and lessors to report leases under a single model. This Statement also will enhance the decision
usefulness of the information provided to financial statement users by requiring notes to financial statements related to the 
timing, significance, and purpose of a government's leasing arrangements. 

111 Note. From GASB Pronouncements Summaries. Copyright 2017 by the Financial Accounting Foundation, 401 Merritt 7, 
Norwalk, CT 06856, USA, and is reproduced with permission. 

* * * * * 

Restriction on Use 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council, management and the Minnesota 
Office of the State Auditor and is not intended and should not be used by anyone other than those specified parties. 

Our audit would not necessarily disclose all weaknesses in the system because it was based on selected tests of the 
accounting records and related data. The comments and recommendations in the report are purely constructive in nature, 
and should be read in this context. 

If you have any questions or wish to discuss any of the items contained in this letter, please feel free to contact us at your 
convenience. We wish to thank you for the continued opportunity to be of service and for the courtesy and cooperation 
extended to us by your staff. 

(Jtb&Jt, ~~1 LLf 
ABDO, EICK & MEYERS, LLP 
Mankato, Minnesota 
June 19, 2018 

25 

lh1pl1· 
+· Pron•,.;,.; 
( ;oi11<1 
I ;, '"';;}(I,"· 

\i II ii\ H 'I'' 



CITY OF NORTH MANKATO 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

!Agenda Item # 11 B II Department: Finance llCouncil Meeting Date: 7/2/1 8 I 
TITLE OF ISSUE: Consider Adopting Resolution Establishing Procedures Relating to Compliance with 
Reimbursement Bond Regulations Under the Internal Revenue Code. 

BACKGROUND AND SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION: Please review the memo provided by Mary Ippel 
from Briggs and Morgan. 

If addilional space is required, a/lach a separate sheet 

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION: Adopt Resolution Establishing Procedures Relating to Compliance with 
Reimbursement Bond Regulations Under the Internal Revenue Code. 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS A TT ACHED 

Motion By: Resolution Ordinance Contract Minutes Map 
Second By: 

IT] c=J ~ c=J c=J 
Vote Record: Aye Nay 

Whitlock Other (specify) Memo ----
Steiner -- --
Norland -- --

----Freyberg 
Dehen ----

c=J Workshop c=J Refer to: 

[]]Regular Meeting c=J Table until: 

CJ Special Meeting CJ Other: 



~ BRIGGS 
2200 IDS Center 
80 South 8th Street 
Minneapolis, MN 55402 
OFC 612-977-8400 
FAX 612-977-8650 
URL Briggs.com 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Kevin McCann, Finance Director of the City of North Mankato 

FROM: Mary lppel 

DATE: June 25, 2018 

RE: REIMBURSEMENT RESOLUTION 

Enclosed is a resolution for consideration by the City Council at an upcoming council 
meeting. The Resolution authorizes you to make periodic Declarations of intent to reimburse 
expenditures from Bonds (the form is in Exhibit A to the Resolution). The general requirements 
of the tax regulations relating to reimbursing expenditures are as follows: 

1. the Declaration must be made no later than sixty days after payment of project 
costs; 

2. the Declaration must contain (a) a reasonable description of the project and (b) the 
maximum principal amount of bonds expected to be issued for the project. You will need to fill 
in a description for the project in paragraph 2 and a dollar amount in paragraph 3 on Exhibit A; 
and 

3. the bonds must be issued within the later of (a) 18 months after the payment, or (b) 
the date the project is placed in service, but not more than three years after the payment. 

A Declaration is not required for preliminary and engineering costs as long as those costs 
do not exceed twenty percent of the bonds. 

If you have any questions, please call me. 

I 087 l 713v l 

Briggs and Morgan, Professional Association 
Affirmative Action. Equal Opportunity Employer 



RESOLUTION NO. ----
RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING PROCEDURES 

RELATING TO COMPLIANCE WITH REIMBURSEMENT BOND 
REGULATIONS UNDER THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council (the "Council") of the City of North Mankato, 
Minnesota (the "City"), as follows: 

I. Recitals. 

(a) The Internal Revenue Service has issued Treasury Regulations, Section 
1.150-2 (as the same may be amended or supplemented, the "Regulations"), dealing with 
"reimbursement bond" proceeds, being proceeds of bonds used to reimburse the City for 
any project expenditure paid by the City prior to the time of the issuance of those bonds. 

(b) The Regulations generally require that the City (as the issuer of or the 
primary obliger under the bonds) make a declaration of intent to reimburse itself for such 
prior expenditures out of the proceeds of subsequently issued bonds, that such declaration 
be made not later than 60 days after the expenditure is actually paid, and that the bonding 
occur and the written reimbursement allocation be made from the proceeds of such bonds 
within 18 months after the later of (I) the date of payment of the expenditure or (2) the 
date the project is placed in service (but in no event more than 3 years after actual 
payment). 

( c) The City heretofore implemented procedures for compliance with the 
predecessor versions of the Regulations and desires to amend and supplement those 
procedures to ensure compliance with the Regulations. 

( d) The City's bond counsel has advised the City that the Regulations do not 
apply, and hence the provisions of this Resolution are intended to have no application, to 
payments of City project costs first made by the City out of the proceeds of bonds issued 
prior to the date of such payments. 

2. Official Intent Declaration. The Regulations, in the situations in which they 
apply, require the City to have declared an official intent (the "Declaration") to reimburse itself 
for previously paid project expenditures out of the proceeds of subsequently issued bonds. The 
Council hereby authorizes the City Administrator and/or the Finance Director to make the City's 
Declarations or to delegate from time to time that responsibility to other appropriate City 
employees. Each Declaration shall comply with the requirements of the Regulations, including 
without limitation the following: 

(a) Each Declaration shall be made not later than 60 days after payment of the 
applicable project cost and shall state that the City reasonably expects to reimburse itself 
for the expenditure out of the proceeds of a bond issue or similar borrowing. Each 
Declaration may be made substantially in the form of the Exhibit A which is attached to 
and made a part of this Resolution, or in any other format which may at the time comply 
with the Regulations. 

I 0556439v2 



(b) Each Declaration shall (I) contain a reasonably accurate description of the 
"project," as defined in the Regulations (which may include the propetiy or program to be 
financed, as applicable), to which the expenditure relates and (2) state the maximum 
principal amount of bonding expected to be issued for that project. 

(c) Care shall be taken so that the City, or its authorized representatives under 
this Resolution, not make Declarations in cases where the City doesn't reasonably expect 
that reimbursement bonds will be issued to finance the subject project costs, and the City 
officials are hereby authorized to consult with bond counsel to the City concerning the 
requirements of the Regulations and their application in patiicular circumstances. 

( d) The Council shall be advised from time to time on the desirability and 
timing of the issuance of reimbursement bonds relating to project expenditures for which 
the City has made Declarations. 

3. Reimbursement Allocations. If the City is acting as the issuer of the 
reimbursement bonds, the designated City officials shall also be responsible for making the 
"reimbursement allocations" described in the Regulations, being generally written allocations 
that evidence the City's use of the applicable bond proceeds to reimburse the original 
expenditures. 

4. Effect. This Resolution shall amend and supplement all prior resolutions and/or 
procedures adopted by the City for compliance with the Regulations (or their predecessor 
versions), and, hencefo1th, in the event of any inconsistency, the provisions of this Resolution 
shall apply and govern. 

Adopted on _______ , 2018, by the City Council of the City of North Mankato, 
Minnesota. 

2 

10556439v2 



CERTIFICATION 

The undersigned, being the duly qualified and acting ___________ of the 
City ofNmth Mankato, Minnesota, hereby certifies the following: 

The foregoing is true and correct copy of a Resolution on file and of official, publicly 
available record in the offices of the City, which Resolution relates to procedures of the City for 
compliance with certain IRS Regulations on reimbursement bonds. Said Resolution was duly 
adopted by the governing body of the City (the "Council") at a regular meeting of the Council 
held on , 2018. The Council meeting was duly called, regularly held, 
open to the public, and held at the place at which meetings of the Council are regularly held. 
Council member moved the adoption of the Resolution, which motion was 
seconded by Councilmember . A vote being taken on the motion, the 
following members of the Council voted in favor of the motion to adopt the Resolution: 

and the following voted against the same: 

Whereupon said Resolution was declared duly passed and adopted. The Resolution is in 
full force and effect and no action has been taken by the Council which would in any way alter 
or amend the Resolution. 

WITNESS MY HAND officially as the __________ _ of the City 
ofN01th Mankato, Minnesota, on , 2018. 

J 0556439v2 

Executed by the [City Administrator or 
Finance Director] of the City of North 
Mankato, Minnesota 

3 



EXHIBIT A 

Declaration of Official Intent 

The undersigned, being the duly appointed and acting of 
the City of North Mankato, Minnesota (the "City"), pursuant to and for purposes of compliance 
with Treasury Regulations, Section 1.150-2 (the "Regulations"), under the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986, as amended, hereby states and certifies on behalf of the City as follows: 

1. The undersigned has been and is on the date hereof duly authorized by the City 
Council of the City to make and execute this Declaration of Official Intent (the "Declaration") 
for and on behalf of the City. 

2. This Declaration relates to the following project, property or program (the 
"Project") and the costs thereof to be financed: 

3. The City reasonably expects to reimburse itself for the payment of certain costs of 
the Project out of the proceeds of a bond issue or similar borrowing (the "Bonds") to be issued 
after the date of payment of such costs. As of the date hereof, the City reasonably expects that 
$ is the maximum principal amount of the Bonds which will be issued to finance 
the Project. 

4. Each expenditure to be reimbursed from the Bonds is or will be a capital 
expenditure or a cost of issuance, or any of the other types of expenditures described in Section 
1.150-2( d)(3) of the Regulations. 

5. As of the date hereof, the statements and expectations contained in this 
Declaration are believed to be reasonable and accurate. 

Date: -----' 2018. 

A-1 

I 0556439v2 



10556439v2 

Executed by the [City Administrator or 
Finance Director] of the City of North 
Mankato, Minnesota 

2 



CITY OF NORTH MANKATO 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

'Agenda Item # I IC llDepartment: Administration llCouncil Meeting Date: 7 /2/18 I 
TITLE OF ISSUE: Consider Adopting Resolution Authorizing the Sale of Real Estate and Dispensing with 
IR1>n n ir1>m1>nt'1. Tlni11>r Minnesota Statu te d.i\7..31:\i\ Snhtlivision 2 

BACKGROUND AND SUPPLEMENT AL INFORMATION: Staff recommends the sale of real estate described as 
Outlot E, Nature View Subdivision, to Nature View Subdivision, LLC, for $5,675.00. 

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION: Adopt Resolution Authorizing the Sale of Real Estate and Dispensing with 
Requirements Under Minnesota Statute 462.356 Subdivision 2. 

For Clerk's Use: SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS ATTACHED 

Motion By: Resolution Ordinance Contract Minutes Map 
Second By: 

[XJ CJ C::::J CJ CJ 
Vote Record: Aye Nay 

Steiner ---- Other (specify) Purchase Agreement 
Norland -- --

----Frey berg 
Whitlock - ---
De hen ----

CJ w orkshop CJ Refer to: 

[X]Regular Meeting CJ Table until: 

CJ Special Meeting CJ Other: 



RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF REAL EST A TE 
AND DISPENSING WITH REQUIREMENTS UNDER 

MINNESOTA ST A TUTE 462.356 SUBDIVISION 2 

WHEREAS, the City of North Mankato has adopted a Comprehensive Municipal Plan; and 

WHEREAS, it is the intention of the City of North Mankato to sell the property described as 
Outlot E, Nature View Subdivision No. 2; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
NORTH MANKATO, MINNESOTA, as follows: 

Section I: The governing body of the City of North Mankato with a two-thirds vote dispenses 
with the requirements of Minnesota Statute 462.356 Subdivision 2. 

Section 2: The property described as Outlot E, Nature View Subdivision No. 2 is authorized to be 
sold for $5,675. 

Section 3: The City staff is authorized to execute the necessary documents to complete the 
acquisition of said property. 

Adopted by the City Council this 2"d day of July 2018. 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 



PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

This Purchase Agreement ("Agreement") is made this __ th day of June, 2018, by the 

City ofNorth Mankato Municipal Corporation ("Seller") and Nature View Subdivision, LLC 

("Buyer"). 

In consideration of the mutual covenants and the undertakings contained herein, the 

parties agree as follows: 

1. Purchase of Property. Seller agrees to sell to Buyer and Buyer hereby agrees to buy 
from Seller property (the "Property") described as follows to-wit: 

Outlot E, Nature View Subdivision No. 2, City of North Mankato, Nicollet 
County 

2. Purchase Price. The purchase price ("Purchase Price") for the Property is Five 
Thousand Six Hundred Seventy-five and no/! 00 dollars ($5,675.00) to be paid as 
follows: 

All to be paid at closing. 

3. Covenants and Warranties of Seller. Seller covenants and warrants to Buyer as 
follows: 

a. On the Closing Date there will be no tenants, persons or entities occupying or having 
a right to occupy the Property or any part thereof. 

b. At Closing, no contracts or agreements shall be in effect with respect to the Property 
by which Buyer shall be bound, except those easements and agreements related to 
highway rights of way, utilities and the like, existing as of the date hereof filed with 
the office of the Nicollet County Recorder with respect to the Prope1iy (the 
"Recorded Agreements"). 

4. Closing: Closing Date. The Closing shall take place on or before the __ th day of 
_____ , 2018, at City of North Mankato offices, I 001 Belgrade Avenue, No1ih 
Mankato, MN 56003 or such other place as Seller and Buyer shall mutually agree upon. 

5. At the Closing, the Seller shall deliver to Buyer: 

a. A Warranty Deed transferring all interest from the Seller in the Property. 

6. Possession. Seller agrees to deliver possession of the Property to Buyer on the closing 
date. 

7. Risk of Loss. Risk of loss of the Property prior to the time of Closing shall remain in the 
Seller. 

-1-



8. Complete Agreement. This is a final Agreement between the Parties with respect to the 
prope1ty and contains their entire agreement and supersedes all previous understandings 
and agreements, oral or written, relative to the Property. There are no verbal agreements 
that can change this Agreement and no waiver of any of its terms will be effective unless 
in writing executed by the parties. 

9. Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence in the performance of this Agreement. 

I 0. Governing Law. This Agreement is made and entered into under the laws of Minnesota, 
and Minnesota law shall govern its construction and enforcement. 

11. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original, and which together shall constitute a single, integrated contract. 

12. Representation and Warranties of Buyer. 

a. Authority. Buyer has the full legal power and authority (including full corporate 
power and authority) to enter into, execute and deliver this Agreement, to perform its 
obligation hereunder, to make the representations, warranties and covenants 
contained herein and to cause the transactions contemplated by this Agreement to be 
consummated. 

b. Compliance. Neither the execution, delivery or performance of this Agreement will 
result in the breach under any indenture, security instrument or other agreement or 
court administrative order by which Buyer or the Property may be bound or affected. 

c. Validity and Binding Effect. This Agreement is, and the documents and agreements 
mentioned herein, contemplated hereby or to be delivered pursuant to the terms 
hereof which Buyer is a pmty when a duly executed and delivered, will be legal, valid 
and binding obligations of the Buyer, enforceable against Buyers in accordance with 
the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and 

year first written above. 

CITY OF NORTH MANKA TO NATURE VIEW SUBDIVISION 

By: ___________ _ 
Its: 

-2-



CITY OF NORTH MANKATO 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

!Agenda Item # 11 D llDepartment: Finance llCouncil Meeting Date: 7/2118 
I 

TITLE OF ISSUE: Discuss Potential Solar Garden Subscription Agreement. 

BACKGROUND AND SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION: Finance Director McCann will present information 
related to the proposed Solar Garden Subscription. 

' 

REQU.ESTED COUNCIL ACTION: Provide Staff with Feedback Concerning the Proposed Solar Garden 
Subscription Agreement. 

For Clerk's Use: SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS ATTACHED 

Motion By: Resolution Ordinance Contract Minutes Map 
Second By: 

CJ CJ CJ CJ CJ 
Vote Record: Aye Nay 

Steiner Other (specify) Agreement, Presentation ----
Norland -- - -

----Frey berg 
Whitlock - - --
Dehen - ---

C:::J Workshop CJ Refer to: 

[TI Regular Meeting CJ Table until: 

C:::J s pecial Meeting C:::J Other: 



CITY OF NORTH MANKA TO 

SOLAR GARDEN SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT 

This Solar Garden Subscription Agreement for Commercial Subscribers (" Agreement") is entered into as of 
, 2018 (the "Effective Date") by and between Novel Solar Three LLC, with a principal place of 

business located at 1633 South Robert Street, Suite A, West St. Paul, MN 55118 ("MNCS"), and City of 
North Mankato (the "Subscriber") (individually, a "Party" and collectively, the "Parties"). 

RECITALS 

A. MNCS is a developer and operator of solar (photovoltaic) electric generation facilities 
qualified as "Community Solar Gardens" ("CSG") pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 216B. l 64 l. MNCS desires to 
enter into a standard contract to participate in the Xcel Solar*Rewards Community Program (the "CSG 
Contract") with Northern States Power Company, a subsidiary of Xcel Energy, Inc. (collectively with any 
successor in interest "Xcel"). 

B. Subscriber is a customer of Xcel (Subscriber's Premise Numbers are set forth in Exhibit G 
("Premises") and Subscriber's Account Numbers are set forth in Exhibit G), with general service addresses 
set forth in Exhibit G (individually a "Service Address", collectively the "Service Addresses"). 

C. MNCS intends to develop, operate, and maintain a CSG in the same or an adjacent county of 
the Service Addresses (the "Project"). The Project will be located at the following address 29623 6271h Ave. 
Gibbon, MN 55335. 

D. Subscriber desires to become a subscriber in the Project by making monthly payments to 
MNCS in consideration for the Percentage Al location (as defined in Section 2(b)) and the corresponding Bill 
Credits (as defined in Section 2(c)) that Xcel will apply to Subscriber's Xcel e lectric utility bill on a continuing 
basis for a period of twenty-five (25) years from the "Commercial Operation Date" (as defined in Section 
2(a)) (the "Term"). 

E. Subscriber's average annua l energy consumption over the twenty-four (24) month period 
prior to the Effective Date at the Service Addresses is kWh Subscriber's contact information is: 

Mailing Address: C ity of North Mankato 

Email Address: kmccann@northmankato .com 

Phone Number: 507-625-4141 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained in this Agreement, the 

mutua lity, adequacy, and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. OPERATION OF THE PROJECT; DISCLOSURES. 

a. Development of the Project. MNCS shall construct, develop, operate, insure, and maintain 
the Project in good working order during the Term so as to deliver all energy generated by the Project to Xcel 
in accordance with the CSG Contract. 

b. Disputes. MNCS shall be solely responsible for reso lving any disputes with Xcel or 
Subscriber regarding the accuracy of the Project's energy production. Xcel and Subscriber shall together be 
solely responsible for resolving any dispute regard ing the Bill Credit Rate (as defined in Section 2(c)) that 
appears on Subscriber's electric utility bi ll. 

c. Supervision of Work. All installations, upgrades, and repairs of the Project shall be 
performed or supervised by a profess ional certified by the North American Board of Certified Energy 
Practitioners and performed in accordance with applicable law, insurance requirements, and industry 

\"'-? COMMUNITY 

t ~ SOLAR City of North Mankato and Novel Solar Three LLC 
General Service Solar Garden Subscription Agreement 



standards, including the recommendations of the manufacturers of solar panel modules and other operational 
components. 

d. Disclosures. Prior to executing this Agreement, MNCS has provided the Subscriber with 
the following hardcopy or electronic disclosure information, and by executing this Agreement, Subscriber 
agrees that it has reviewed the following disclosure information in its entirety: 

i. An estimate of the Project's projected energy production and a description of the 
methodology employed in calculating that estimate is attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

ii. An explanation of the Subscriber's Data (as defined in Section 2(g)) that MNCS will 
share with Xcel and the Subscriber's Data Xcel will share with MNCS is provided by attachment or hyperlink 
in Exhibit B. 

111. Copies of Xcel's data-privacy policy and MNCS's data-privacy policy are attached 
or hyperlinked hereto as Exhibit C. 

1v. A copy of the CSG Contract between MNCS and Xcel is attached or hyperlinked 
hereto as Exhibit D. 

v. A copy of the solar panel module warranty for the solar panel modules installed or 
to be installed at the Project site is attached or hyperlinked hereto as Exhibit E. 

vi. Proof of insurance and a demonstration of MNCS' long-term maintenance plan for 
the Project is attached or hyperlinked hereto as Exhibit F. 

e. Questions or Comments. Should you have questions or comments, please feel free to 
contact MNCS using the contact information set forth in Section 13 of this Agreement, or on 
www.mncommunitysolar.com. 

2. ELIGIBILITY; ALLOCATION, SALE, AND PURCHASE OF CREDITS. 

a. Commercial Operation Date. MNCS shall promptly notify Subscriber of the date upon 
which the Project is authorized by Xcel to continuously generate and deliver the full "Actual Project 
Capacity" of electrical energy to the transmission system (the "Commercial Operation Date" or "COD"). 

b. Allocation. The capacity of the Project is estimated to be four thousand six hundred ( 4,600) 
kilowatts ("kW") direct current ("DC") (the "Project Capacity"). MNCS will allocate five hundred thirty 
and seventy seven thousandths (530.077) kW DC (the "Kilowatt Allocation") of the Project to Subscriber, 
which equals eleven and five tenths percent ( 11.5%) of the Project's Capacity (the "Percentage Allocation") 
If the actual capacity of the Project is different than 4,600 kW DC, Subscriber's Percentage Allocation shall 
equal the (i) Subscriber's Kilowatt Allocation divided by (ii) the Actual Project Capacity of the Project 
provided that if such calculation would result in the Percentage Allocation to exceed forty percent ( 40%) then 
the Kilowatt Allocation will be reduced to the KW DC required to make the Percentage Allocation equal forty 
percent (40%). 

c. Calculation of Credits. MNCS agrees to sell to Subscriber, and Subscriber agrees to 
purchase from MNCS, the Kilowatt Allocation for the entire Term, in consideration for monetary credits 
applied to Subscriber's monthly Xcel electric utility bill which shall offset the cost of electricity consumed 
that month by the Subscriber (the "Bill Credits"). The Bill Cred its shall equal the product of (i) the 
Percentage Allocation, (ii) the number of Kilowatt Hours ("kWhs") of electrical energy the Project generates 
in the previous month, and (iii) the "Bill Credit Rate." The "Bill Credit Rate" for purposes of this Agreement 
shall equal the Enhanced Applicable Retail Rate for the General Service Customer Class as set forth in Section 
No. 9 of the Minnesota Electric Rate Book - MPUC No. 2 (the "Tariff') and as approved by the Minnesota 
Public Utilities Commission (the "MPUC"). The Bill Credit Rate is subject to and is expected to change 
throughout the Term of this Agreement. As of April I, 20 18, the Bill Credit Rate shall equal $0.12515 per 

)?COMMUNITY 

L~ SOLAR 
2 

City of North Mankato and Novel Solar Three LLC 
Solar Garden Subscription Agreement 



kWh. Subscriber shall receive at least thirty (30) days' advance written notice of any Bill Credit Rate changes 
which occur after the Effective Date. An example of the Bi ll Credit Rate calculation is set forth in Exhibit A. 

d. Bill Credit Exceptions. If the amount of Bill Credits exceeds the amount owed on 
Subscriber's Xcel electric utility bill in any bill ing period, that excess shall be governed by the CSG Contract 
or appl icable law. 

e. Environmental Attributes. Subscriber's purchase of the Kilowatt Allocation will not 
include benefits or derivatives of Renewable Energy Credits ("RECs") or green tags, carbon offset credits, 
rebates, unsubscribed electrical energy, tax cred its, tax or environmental attributes associated with owning or 
operating the Project, or any other attributes of owning the Project (collectively "Environmental 
Attributes"). Subscriber acknowledges and agrees that all RECs and Environmental Attributes shall be 
retained by MNCS and that MNCS wi ll be required to transfer ownership of all RECs to Xcel pursuant to the 
CSG Contract. All unsubscribed electrical energy generated by the Project shall be treated as unallocated and 
Xcel wi ll purchase al l unallocated energy from MNCS at the applicable Tariff rate. In addition, Subscriber 
agrees to reasonably cooperate with MNCS so that MNCS may claim any Environmental Attributes from the 
Project. 

f. Subscriber Eligibility. Subscriber's elig ibility to purchase the Kilowatt Allocation and 
receive Bill Credits is expressly conditioned upon Subscriber meeting the following criteria and any other 
criteria outlined by applicable law (the "Subscriber Eligibility Criteria"): (i) Subscriber must be an Xcel 
account holder (with the undersigned being the named or one of the named account holders); (ii) each Service 
Address must be located within the county or an adjacent county to where the Project is located; (iii) 
Subscriber 's Percentage Allocation may not exceed forty percent (40%) of the Actual Project Capacity; (iv) 
Subscriber's Kilowatt Allocation, when combined with any distributed generation resources serving the 
Subscriber at any Service Address, cannot exceed one hundred and twenty percent (1 20%) of Subscriber's 
average annual energy usage for the prior twenty-four (24) months at the time of the Effective Date of this 
Agreement; (v) Subscriber's Kilowatt Allocation must be at least two-hundred (200) watts; and (vi) 
Subscriber must be deemed creditworthy by MNCS, in MNCS' sole and absolute discretion, at the time this 
Agreement is executed. Subscriber authorizes MNCS, or its designee, to obtain its credit report now and in 
the future, answer questions others may ask regarding Subscriber's credit and share Subscriber's credit 
information with MNCS' financing partners. Subscriber hereby certifies that all information Subscriber 
provided to MNCS in connection with checking Subscriber's credit will be true and understands that this 
information must be updated if Subscriber's financia l condition changes. Should Subscriber be found to be 
in violation of the Subscriber Eligibility Criteria, this Agreement may be subj ect to termination by MNCS, 
Xcel, or a governmental authority having jurisdiction over the Xcel Solar* Rewards Community Program. In 
the event this Agreement is terminated for Subscriber's violation of any of the Subscriber Eligibility Criteria, 
Subscriber sha ll pay to MNCS an amount eq ual to the net present value of the remaining Monthly 
Subscription Payments discounted at an eight percent (8%) rate (using the termination date as the valuation 
date) ("Eligible Early Termination Fee"). MNCS sha ll use commercially reasonable efforts to mitigate 
damages caused by such early termination including by solic iting potential subscribers to replace the 
Subscriber and if MNCS is successful in obtaining a replacement subscription agreement then MNCS sha ll 
return to Subscriber the difference between (i) the Eligible Early Termination Fee and (i i) the net present 
value of the monthly subscription payments under the replacement subscription agreement discounted at an 
eight percent (8%) rate (us ing the termination date as the valuation date) less all reasonable costs incurred by 
MNCS in the process of acquiring such replacement subscription within sixty (60) days of executing a 
replacement subscription agreement. 

g. Subscriber Data. To ensure Subscriber receives the appropriate Bill Credits, Subscriber 
agrees to allow MNCS to provide Xcel with the fo llowing information: the Kilowatt Allocation and 
Percentage Allocation, Subscriber's name, Subscriber' s Xcel Premise Number and Account Number, 

\(> COMMUNITY 

l \ SOLAR 
3 

City of North Mankato and Novel Solar Three LLC 
Solar Garden Subscription A greement 



Subscriber's "automatic transfer of funds" information, and the Service Addresses (collectively 
"Subscriber's Data"). 

3. PRICE AND PAYMENT. 

a. Monthly Subscription Payment. For the right to receive the Kilowatt Allocation and the 
corresponding Bill Credits applied to Subscriber's Xcel electric utility bill, Subscriber shall pay to MNCS the 
"Monthly Subscription Payment" for the entire Term. The Monthly Subscription Payment shall be 
calculated by applying the following formula: 

i. First, MNCS shall calculate the "Estimated Annual Subscription Payment." The 
Estimated Annual Subscription Payment shall equal the product of (i) the Percentage Allocation, (ii) the 
estimated number of kWhs of electrical energy the Project will generate in the coming calendar year and (iii) 
the "Subscription Rate" in effect for such calendar year. For the first year of this Agreement, the Subscription 
Rate shall mean an amount equal to the Enhanced Applicable Retail Rate (for General Service) at COD minus 
$0.01. For a project with a COD of April I, 2018 the Subscription Rate would have been $0.115 15/kWh. 
Thereafter the Subscription Rate shall mean an amount equal to the Enhanced Applicable Retail Rate 
("ARR") (for General Service) in effect as of the most recent anniversary of COD minus one cent ($0.0 I). 
Please see Exhibit A for additional information about the Estimated Annual Subscription Payment. 

ii. Second, MNCS shall divide the Estimated Annual Subscription Payment by twelve 
(12) to determine the monthly payment that Subscriber will pay MNCS (the "Monthly Subscription 
Payment") during each monthly billing cycle. 

b. Annual Reconciliation. Subscriber's Monthly Subscription Payment is subject to an annual 
reconciliation submitted by MNCS to Subscriber no later than forty-five ( 45) days after the end of each 
calendar year (each, an "Annual Reconciliation"). The "Actual Annual Subscription Payment" due for 
the prior calendar year (or portion thereof) shall equal the product of: (i) the Percentage Allocation, (ii) the 
actual number of kWhs the Project generated throughout such calendar year (or portion thereof), and (iii) 
Subscription Rate. The payment will occur within 30 days of the date Xcel issues payment for the surplus 
credits leftover in the subscriber's accounts. 

i. If the Actual Annual Subscription Payment exceeds the sum of the Monthly 
Subscription Payments Subscriber previously paid MNCS, then Subscriber hereby agrees to pay MNCS an 
Annual Reconciliation payment equal to the difference of the Actual Annual Subscription Payment and the 
sum of the Monthly Subscription Payments Subscriber previously paid to MNCS. 

ii. If the sum of the Monthly Subscription Payments Subscriber previously paid MNCS 
exceeds the Actual Annual Subscription Payment, then MNCS hereby agrees to pay to Subscriber an Annual 
Reconciliation payment equal to the difference of the sum of the Monthly Subscription Payments Subscriber 
previously paid to MNCS and the Actual Annual Subscription Payment. 

111. At the end of each calendar year, MNCS shall include with its final invoice a copy 
of the Xcel statement delivered to MNCS that indicates the number of kWhs MNCS used to calculate the 
Actual Annual Subscription Payment. 

iv. In the event this Agreement is terminated resulting in a partial calendar year of 
service, a reconciliation shall be performed for such partial year in order to reflect the actual energy production 
from the Project for such partial year. 

c. Invoicing. Commencing with the first day of the first calendar month following the 
Commercial Operation Date, MNCS shal l invoice Subscriber for the calculated Monthly Subscription 
Payment. Subscriber agrees to make its Monthly Subscription Payments and Annual Reconciliation payments 
through an "automatic transfer of funds" prior to the invoice due date. Any amounts not paid prior to the 
invoice due date wi ll accrue interest at a rate of eight percent (8%) per annum (and if less than eight percent 

~~COMMUN ITY 

1 \ SOLAR 
4 

City of North Mankato and Novel Solar Three LLC 
Solar Garden Subscription Agreement 



(8%) per annum, the maximum rate permitted by law) from the invoice due date until MNCS receives 
payment. Any amounts owing for any period following the Commercial Operation Date but prior to the first 
billing date shall be invoiced separately, on a one-time basis. MNCS agrees not to invoice Subscriber during 
Project outages lasting longer than twenty (20) consecutive days. MNCS shall provide written notice to 
Subscriber when it becomes aware that the Project is out of service for longer than two (2) consecutive days, 
which notice shall include an estimate of how long the outage will last and the estimated loss of electricity 
production. 

d. Xcel and MNCS Adjustments. If, as a result of an Xcel billing adjustment for any billing 
period, the quantity of energy allocated to Subscriber by MNCS is changed, Subscriber and MNCS agree to 
reconcile the change in amount in good faith. MNCS does not guarantee, and Subscriber acknowledges that 
MNCS does not guarantee the amount of electrical energy the Project will produce or the monetary value of 
the Bill Credits. 

4. ANNUAL REPORTS. Within sixty (60) days of each anniversary of the Commercial Operation Date 
until the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement, MNCS shall provide Subscriber with an annual 
report describing the annual energy production of the Project for the prior year. 

5. TAXES. 

a. Subscriber shall be solely liable for all sales, use, or other similar taxes imposed by any 
governmental authority having jurisdiction over Subscriber and the Project, if any, and where such taxes are 
attributable to the sale of the Kilowatt Allocation to the Subscriber. 

b. Subscriber shall have no interest in and have no entitlement to claim any RECs and/or 
Environmental Attribute, including but not limited to any investment tax credit or other tax benefits related 
to the ownership of the Project. 

c. Subscriber acknowledges and agrees that MNCS and Xcel each individually make no 
representations concerning the taxable consequences to Subscriber of its purchase of the Kilowatt Allocation, 
the Bill Credits applied to Subscriber's electric utility bill, or any other tax issues relating to Subscriber's 
participation in the Project. 

d. This Agreement shall be deemed a service agreement for tax purposes. 

6. REPRESENT A TIO NS, WARRANTIES, AND COVENANTS. 

a. Mutual. Each Patty represents, warrants, and covenants to the other Party: 

i. The Pa1ty, if an entity, is duly organized, validly existing, and in good standing in 
the jurisdiction of its organization and is duly qualified to do business in the State of Minnesota; 

ii. The Party has full legal capacity to enter into and perform this Agreement; 

111. To the best of each Party's knowledge, there is no litigation, action, arbitration, 
proceeding, or investigation pending before any comt or other governmental authority by, against, affecting, 
or involving its ability to carry out the transactions contemplated in this Agreement; 

iv. The execution and delivery of this Agreement by such Party and the performance by 
such Pa1ty of its obligations hereunder do not and will not result in a breach of any of the terms, conditions, 
or provisions of, or constitute a default under any indenture, mo1tgage, deed of trust, credit agreement, note 
or other evidence of indebtedness, or any lease or other agreement or understanding, or any license, permit, 
franchise or ce1tificate, to which such Party is a party or by which it is bound or to which its prope1ties are 
subject; 

v. This Agreement constitutes a legally valid and binding obligation enforceable 
against such Pa1ty in accordance with its terms; and 

COMMUNITY 

SOLAR 
5 

City of North l\.1ankato and Novel Solar Three LLC 
Solar Garden Subscription Agrcc1ncnt 



vi. Each Party is in good financial condition, there are no bankruptcy proceedings 
against it, no filings against it for involuntary bankruptcy, and it has no knowledge of any material legal 
and/or financial claims, issues, or proceedings against it that would have any adverse material effect on its 
financial condition. 

b. MNCS. MNCS represents, warrants, and covenants to Subscriber: 

i. MNCS has, or in the ordinary course will obtain, all licenses, permits, approvals, and 
any other required documents to develop, construct, and operate the Project; 

II. 

costs of the Project; 
MNCS has sufficient funds dedicated for the projected operation and maintenance 

111. MNCS will perform its obligations under this Agreement, the CSG Contract, and 
otherwise comply with all provisions of the Xcel Solar*Rewards Community Program and the Tariff in good 
faith and in accordance with industry standards; and 

iv. MNCS agrees to protect Subscriber's Data and, except as may be required by this 
Agreement, law, regulation, or court order, or with Subscriber's consent, MNCS will not publicly disclose 
Subscriber's Data, energy usage data, or billing information, unless such disclosures are made to MNCS' 
financiers, lawyers, accountants, community partners, and agents ofMNCS and only to the extent reasonably 
necessary. 

c. Subscriber. Subscriber represents, warrants, and covenants to MNCS: 

i. Subscriber is able to pay the Monthly Subscription Payment; 

11. Subscriber's Premise Number, Subscriber's Account Number, the Service 
Addresses, and Subscriber's contact information contained in the Recitals of this Agreement are true, 
accurate, and complete; 

111. Subscriber agrees not to install or procure any other distributed generation 
resource(s) during the Term of this Agreement, without first paying the appropriate transfer or termination 
fee to MNCS set forth in Sections 7 and 8 of this Agreement; 

iv. Subscriber will sign and deliver to MNCS the Xcel Solar*Rewards Community 
Subscriber Agency Agreement and Consent Form (a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit B) upon 
signing this Agreement or at any time as requested by MNCS. Upon execution, all of the information and 
statements of Subscriber provided therein will be true, accurate, and complete; 

v. Subscriber acknowledges and agrees it will have no interest in or entitlement to 
benefits or derivatives of RECs, unsubscribed energy production, tax credits, or any other credit or cash flow 
associated with the Project aside from the Subscriber's Kilowatt Allocation and Bill Credits. Subscriber 
acknowledges and agrees that this Agreement is not a contract to sell or lease the Project; 

vi. Subscriber understands and agrees it is acquiring the Kilowatt Allocation and Bill 
Credits for its own account and it will not assign, convey, transfer, resell, or otherwise distribute the Kilowatt 
Allocation and Bill Credits to another person or entity, except as provided in Section 8. Subscriber 
acknowledges and agrees it will not assign, convey, transfer, resell or otherwise dispose of the Kilowatt 
Allocation and Bill Credits in any manner that will violate any securities laws or regulations. Subscriber is 
aware and understands that neither this Agreement nor any energy produced or Kilowatt Allocation purchased 
thereunder has been registered under any securities laws or regulations; 

vii. Subscriber acknowledges and agrees that it has no defenses, set-offs, basis for 
withholding payments, counterclaims, or failure of performance claims against MNCS; 

\';? COMMUNITY 

L~ SOLAR 
6 

City of North Mankato and Novel Solar Three LLC 
Solar Garden Subscription Agreement 



v111. Subscriber acknowledges and agrees that it has a valid real property interest in the 
Premises and each Service Address; 

ix. Subscriber acknowledges and agrees Subscriber has been given the opportunity to 
ask questions and receive answers from MNCS concerning the terms of this Agreement and any other 
information necessary for Subscriber to evaluate the merits and risks of entering into this Agreement, 
including Subscriber's Kilowatt Allocation and/or Subscriber's Monthly Subscription Payment; 

x. Subscriber acknowledges and agrees it is not relying on statements made by MNCS 
or any statements made by MNCS employees or agents with respect to any tax or other financial implications 
that may arise as a result of entering into or the implementation of this Agreement. Subscriber acknowledges 
and agrees that nothing in this Agreement or any other information provided by or on behalf of MNCS in 
connection with this Agreement constitutes legal, tax, or financial advice; 

xi. Subscriber acknowledges and agrees it will promptly notify MNCS of any changes 
in Subscriber's Data; and 

xii. Subscriber's "automatic transfer of funds information" provided to MNCS is true, 
accurate, and complete to enable Subscriber to automatically pay the Monthly Subscription Payment. 

7. EARLY TERMINATION. Except as expressly allowed pursuant to this Section 7, Subscriber 
may not terminate this Agreement. 

a. Termination Due to Ceasing as an Eligible Xcel Customer. If at any time Subscriber 
changes a Service Address to a location that does not meet the Subscriber Eligibility Criteria and as a result 
thereof ceases to be an Xcel customer eligible to purchase the Kilowatt Allocation and receive the Bill Credits 
from the Project, Subscriber may terminate this Agreement by providing no less than sixty (60) days' written 
notice to MNCS of Subscriber's intent to terminate, and by paying to MNCS an "Ineligible Early 
Termination Fee" of two hundred fifty dollars ($250.00) multiplied by the Kilowatt Allocation. 
Reconciliation with Subscriber (in accordance with Section 3(b) above) will occur within sixty (60) days of 
the effective date of such termination. Upon Subscriber's notice of termination and following Subscriber's 
execution of any documents necessa1y to reflect such termination, including the assignment of Subscriber's 
Kilowatt Allocation to MNCS, MNCS shall terminate this Agreement and release Subscriber from any further 
obligations. Neither MNCS nor Xcel shall have any liability to Subscriber or be required to refund Subscriber 
any payments made under this Agreement. 

b. Termination While Remaining An Eligible Customer. Subscriber may terminate this 
Agreement at any time by paying an Eligible Early Termination Fee. MNCS shall use commercially 
reasonable effo1ts to mitigate damages caused by such early termination including by soliciting potential 
subscribers to replace the Subscriber and if MNCS is successful in obtaining a replacement subscription 
agreement then MNCS shall return to Subscriber the difference between (i) the Eligible Early Termination 
Fee and (ii) the Net Present Value of the monthly subscription payments under the replacement subscription 
agreement discounted at an eight percent (8%) rate (using the termination date as the valuation date) less all 
reasonable costs incurred by MNCS in the process of acquiring such replacement subscription within 60 days 
of executing a replacement subscription agreement. 

Termination Without Fee. In the event that the Commercial Operation Date is not achieved within twenty
four (24) months after the Effective Date of this Agreement either Patty may terminate this Agreement, 
without liability, by providing the other Patty with a written notice of termination. If Xcel ceases to provide 
electrical service to Subscriber at a Service Address and the utility provider succeeding Xcel refuses to honor 
the Bill Credits, either Party may partially terminate this Agreement, without liability, by providing the other 
Pa1ty with a written notice of termination with respect to such Service Address. Subscriber may also terminate 
this Agreement without a fee ifMNCS breaches, fails to perform, or fails to comply with any representation, 

COMMUNITY 

SOLAR 
7 

City of North Mankato and Novel Solar Three LLC 
Solar Garden Subscription Agrcc111cnt 



warranty, obligation, covenant or agreement described in this Agreement and such failure continues for a 
period of forty-five (45) days after written notice thereof. 

d. Early Termination Option. Provided Subscriber is not then in default of this Agreement, as 
defined in Section 9 prior to the Early Termination Date (defined below), then Subscriber shall have the 
option ("Early Termination Option") to terminate this Agreement effective on the last day of the of the one
hundred-twentieth (120'") full month of the Term (the "Early Termination Date") by delivering notice to 
MNCS, or its assigns, within that 30 day period which precedes and comes before the last day of the sixtieth 
(60'") month of the Tenn ("Early Termination Notice Date"). Time is of the essence in exercising this Early 
Termination Option. Subscriber's timely exercise of this Early Termination Option shall relieve Subscriber 
of any penalties or futther obligations after the 12011' full month of the Term. If Subscriber does not provide 
MNCS, or its assigns, with timely notice during the exclusive 30 day window preceding the Early Termination 
Notice Date, then Subscriber shall have waived its Early Termination Option, and the Early Termination 
Option shall automatically expire and shall no longer be of any force or effect. 

e. Mutual Termination. Subscriber and MNCS may agree to terminate this Agreement at any 
time only with the prior written consent of any Lender/Investor. 

f. Notice to Lender/Investor; Additional Cure Right. Subscriber agrees to deliver to the 
Lender/Investor, concurrently with delivery to MNCS, a copy of each notice of termination given by 
Subscriber under this Agreement. No such notice shall be effective unless and until a copy of such notice has 
been delivered to the Lender/Investor. If such notice of termination is delivered pursuant to clause (c)(ii) of 
this Section 7, Lender/Investor shall have an additional period ofthitty (30) days to cure the condition giving 
rise to such right of termination, and the obligations of the Patties shall remain in effect during such additional 
cure period. Any such cure by a Lender/Investor shall be deemed to be a cure by MNCS for all purposes 
under this Agreement. 

8. TRANSFER; ASSIGNMENT. No Party may assign or transfer this Agreement except as follows: 

a. Subscriber's Assignment or Transfer. This Agreement may be assigned or transferred in its 
entirety by Subscriber to any person or entity eligible to purchase Subscriber's Kilowatt Allocation from the 
Project upon the payment of an Assignment or Transfer Fee as described herein and after MNCS has provided 
its written approval thereof, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. Subscriber must provide 
MNCS with no less than sixty (60) days' written notice of Subscriber's request to assign or transfer this 
Agreement. MNCS shall then put fotth all reasonable efforts to execute the assignment or transfer within the 
sixty (60) day period provided by Subscriber, but in no event shall MNCS be liable to Subscriber if it is unable 
to effectuate said assignment or transfer within the sixty (60) day period. Subscriber may only assign or 
transfer this Agreement to a patty approved in advance by MNCS, and which MNCS may approve in its sole 
and absolute discretion, on the basis of (i) the Subscriber Eligibility Criteria, (ii) Subscriber's payment to 
MNCS of all amounts due and owing to MNCS after reconciliation of the Monthly Subscription Payments 
for the period prior to the effective date of the assignment or transfer. Upon the execution of Subscriber's 
transfer request, neither MNCS nor Xcel shall have any liability to Subscriber or be required to refund 
Subscriber any money under this Agreement. Subscriber shall not profit from, or receive any payment as a 
result of, any assignment or transfer of this Agreement. Subscriber may amend the list of Account and Premise 
Numbers with Service Addresses without the prior written consent of MNCS by providing MNCS with a 
revised copy of Exhibit G and a copy of Xcel Energy - Northern States Power Solar* Rewards Community 
Subscriber Agency Agreement and Consent Form for any added addresses. The Parties agree this Agreement 
shall remain in full force and effect and automatically transfer without any fee to Subscriber's new Service 
Address in the event Subscriber's Service Address changes, provided Subscriber remains an Xcel customer 
that is eligible to participate in the Project under Minn. Stat. § 216B.164 I and Subscriber continues to satisfy 
the Subscriber Eligibility Criteria. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any successor in interest to Subscriber, by 
merger or acquisition, may assume this Agreement without payment of an Assignment or Transfer Fee, 

COMMUNITY 

SOLAR 
8 

City of North Mankato and Novel Solar Three LLC 
Solar Garden Subscription Agreement 



provided the successor in interest meets the Subscriber Eligibility Criteria. Subscriber's obligations under this 
Agreement shall terminate in the event of an assignment or transfer pursuant to this section provided that 
Subscriber has met all outstanding obligations under this Agreement and a new subscription has been 
executed by MNCS for Subscriber's full Kilowatt Allocation. 

b. Assignment and Transfer by MNCS. MNCS may (i) assign this Agreement to another 
person or entity, which thereafter would become responsible for developing, operating, and maintaining the 
applicable Project, and for otherwise carrying out the obligations of MN CS under this Agreement, (ii) transfer 
this Agreement to a different CSG project and/or (iii) collaterally assign this Agreement to a Lender/Investor. 
Subscriber's rights and obligations under this Agreement shall not be affected by any such assignment or 
transfer. In the event of any such assignment or transfer, updated disclosure information as provided in this 
Agreement Section I and the Exhibits attached hereto shall be provided to Subscriber. Upon any such 
assignment or transfer (other than a collateral assignment to a Lender/Investor), MNCS shall be released from 
all future obligations under this Agreement. 

9. DEFAULT. 

a. Events of Default. The following shall constitute an "Event of Default" by Subscriber: 

i. Subscriber fails to make any payment due under this Agreement and such failure 
continues for a period of forty-five ( 45) days; 

ii. Subscriber breaches, fails to perform, or fails to comply with any representation, 
warranty, obligation, covenant or agreement described in this Agreement and such failure continues for a 
period of forty-five ( 45) days after written notice thereof; 

iii. 
into this Agreement; 

Subscriber has provided fal se or misleading financial or other information to enter 

iv. Subscriber assigns, transfers, encumbers, or sells this Agreement or any part of its 
Kilowatt Allocation or Bill Credits in violation of Section 8; or 

v. Subscriber makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, admits in writing its 
insolvency, or is subject to a petition for dissolution or reorganization, voluntary or involuntary, under the 
U.S. Bankruptcy Code. 

b. Remedies. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, MNCS may take any rights and/or 
remedies available to it at law or in equity. All rights, powers, and remedies provided under this Agreement 
are cumulative and not exclusive of any rights, powers, or remedies provided by applicable law. MNCS may 
terminate the Agreement and replace the defaulting Subscriber, which will not waive payments owed or 
default fees. 

10. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY, W AIYER OF JURY TRIAL, ARBITRATION, AND INDEMNIFICATION. 

a. Force Majeure. Except as specifically provided in this Agreement, if by reason of Force 
Majeure, MNCS is unable to carry out, either in whole or in part, any of its obligations described in this 
Agreement, MNCS shall not be deemed to be in default during the continuation of such inability, provided 
that, within a reasonable time after the occurrence of the Force Majeure event, MNCS gives Subscriber notice 
describing the pa1ticulars of the occurrence and the anticipated period of delay, and uses reasonable efforts 
to remedy the cause(s) preventing it from carrying out its obligations. "Force Majeure" as used in this 
Agreement means any event or circumstances beyond the reasonable contro l of MNCS not resulting from 
MNCS's negligence. 

b. Limitation of Liability. Except as provided in Sections 7 and 8 with respect to Subscriber's 
liability upon termination or transfer of the Agreement, no Party shall be liable to the other Party for any 
indirect, special, punitive, exemplary, incidental, or consequential damages, whether arising in contract, tort, 

)?COMMUNITY 

t ~ SOLAR 
9 

City of North Mankato and Novel Solar Three LLC 
Solar Garden Subscription Agreement 



under statute, or in equity, and each Party hereby waives its rights to any such damages. To the maximum 
extent permitted by law, MNCS ' liability arising under or in connection with this agreement cannot exceed 
the annual reconciliation amount determined in accordance with Section 3(b). 

c. No Warranty. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, MNCS makes no warranty 
or representation, either express or implied, regarding the Project or its obligations hereunder. MNCS 
disclaims all warranties of merchantability or fitness for a particular use or purpose. Without limiting the 
generality of the foregoing, MNCS does not warrant or guarantee the amount of electricity, Kilowatt 
Allocation, or Bill Credits. The amounts set forth on Exhibit A are for illustration purposes only, and 
Subscriber acknowledges the Bill Credits may be greater or less than the estimates provided. 

d. Waiver. Any delay or failure of a Party to enforce any of the provisions of this Agreement, 
or to require performance by the other Party of any of the provisions of this Agreement, shall not be construed 
to (i) be a waiver of such provisions or a Party's right to enforce that provision; or (ii) affect the validity of 
this Agreement. 

e. Severability. If any portion of this Agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable 
in any respect under applicable law, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby, and each 
term, covenant, or condition of the Agreement will be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by 
applicable law, unless such invalidity or unenforceability frustrates or negates an essential purpose of this 
Agreement. 

f. Required Arbitration. Please read this section carefully. Any dispute, disagreement, or 
claim between Subscriber and MNCS arising out of or in connection with this Agreement shall be submitted 
to final and binding arbitration, in accordance with the Consumer Arbitration Rules of the American 
Arbitration Association. This Agreement to arbitrate is governed by the Federal Arbitration Act. This 
arbitration clause replaces the right to participate in a class action or similar proceeding. 

g. Waiver of Jury Trial; No Class Action. Each of the Parties, by signing this Agreement, 
hereby waives the right to a jury trial. In addition, each Party agrees that it may only bring claims against the 
other Party in its individual capacity and not as a plaintiff or class member in any purported class or 
representative proceeding. 

h. Arbitration Award Binding. The award of the arbitrator shall be conclusive and binding 
upon the Parties, and shall be the sole and exclusive remedy between the Parties regarding any and a ll claims 
and counterclaims presented to the arbitrator. Judgment on the arbitration award may be entered in any court 
having jurisdiction. 

i. Indemnification. To the maximum extent permitted by law, each Party agrees to 
indemnify, protect, defend, and hold harmless the other Party and its successors and assigns, and their 
employees, officers, directors, and agents, from any and all damages, losses, claims, costs , or expenses 
(including reasonable attorneys' fees) or any liability resulting from any action or su it by any third party, of 
any kind resulting from the failure of such Party to comply with any of the terms or conditions of this 
Agreement applicable to such Party. 

11. L ENDER AND TAX EQUITY INVESTOR ACCOMMODATIONS. 

a. Subscriber acknowledges that MNCS may finance the construction, development, and 
installation of the Project through one or more financial partners or financial institutions, or their assigns 
(collectively hereafter "Lender/Investor") and that the MNCS may sell or assign the Project and/or may 
secure MNCS' obligations thereunder by, among other encumbrances, a pledge or collateral assignment of 
this Agreement and a first priority security interest in the Project. Subscriber hereby consents to the collateral 
ass ignment of this Agreement to a Lender/Investor. 

\';?COMMUNITY 

L\ SOLAR 
10 

City of North Mankato and Novel Solar Three LLC 
Solar Garden Subscription Agreement 



b. Subscriber acknowledges and agrees that Lender/Investor approval and consent may be 
required for the following: 

1. Any modification in the operation or maintenance of the Project; 

11. Any modification to the information disclosures; 

111. Any modification to the CSG Contract; 

iv. Any additional Subscriber representations, warranties, and covenants; or 

v. Any amendment to this Agreement, including but not limited to any calculation of 
the Monthly Subscription Payments, Subscriber Eligibility Criteria, and Subscriber's ability to terminate this 
Agreement. 

c. Subscriber acknowledges and agrees that under no circumstances shall: 

i. Lender/Investor be liable to Subscriber for any act or omission of MNCS; 

ii. Lender/Investor be subject to any defenses or offsets that Subscriber may have 
against MNCS under this Agreement; or 

111. Lender/Investor be liable with respect to any breach of any representation or 
warranty made by MNCS to Subscriber under this Agreement. 

12. LENDER'S AND TAX EQUITY INVESTOR'S DEFAULT RIGHTS. If MNCS defaults under MNCS's 
financing documents with its Lender/Investor, Lender/Investor shall be entitled to exercise any of MNCS's 
rights and obligations under this Agreement. Subscriber acknowledges and agrees that Lender/Investor's 
security interest in this Agreement and the Project may be a first priority security interest in this Agreement 
and the Project. Lender/Investor may also be entitled to exercise all rights and remedies of secured or 
preferred parties generally with respect to this Agreement and the Project, including, but not limited to the 
following: 

a. Lender/Investor may have the right, but not the obligation, to pay all sums due from 
MNCS, perform any other act required of MNCS, and to cure any default by MNCS in which case thi s 
Agreement will continue in full force and effect. 

b. Lender/Investor may have the option to sell its interest in this Agreement or the Project. If 
Lender/Investor exercises that remedy, it shall not constitute a default under this Agreement, and such sale 
shall not require Subscriber's prior consent. 

c. Upon the reasonable request of Lender/Investor, Subscriber agrees to enter into a new 
Agreement with Lender/Investor or their assigns under substantially the same terms as this Agreement within 
ninety (90) days of the termination of this Agreement. 

d. Upon the reasonable request of MNCS or Lender/Investor, Subscriber agrees to execute 
and deliver to MNCS or Lender/Investor any document, instrument, or statement in such form as MNCS or 
Lender/ Investor may require by which Subscriber acknowledges and confirms that the legal and beneficial 
ownership of this Agreement or the Project remains in MNCS or its affiliate or as is otherwise reasonably 
requested by Lender/Investor in order to create, perfect, continue, or terminate the security or equitable 
interest in this Agreement or the Project in favor of Lender/Investor. 

13. MISCELLANEOUS. 

a. Notices. All notices and other formal communications which any Party may give to another 
under or in connection with this Agreement shall be in writing, and shall be deemed delivered upon receipt 
thereof. Any notices to MNCS shall be sent to: 

1'7COMMUNITY 

l~ SOLAR 
11 

City of North Mankato and Novel Solar Three LLC 
Solar Garden Subscription Agreement 



Novel Solar Three LLC Phone: 855-969-3380 

c/o Pine Gate Renewables Email: assetmanagement@pgrenewables.com 

1111 Hawthorne Lane, Suite 20 I Website: http://pgrenewables.com/ 

Charlotte, NC 28205 

b. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, and all Exhibits and documents referenced herein, 
contain the entire agreement between Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersede all other 
understandings or agreements between the Parties relating to the subject matter hereof. 

c. No Joint Venture or Third Party Beneficiaries. Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed 
to create a joint venture or partnership between the Patties. This Agreement is intended solely for the benefit 
of the Patties hereto. 

ct. Amendments. This Agreement may only be amended in writing and signed by both Patties 
hereto. 

e. Binding Effect. This Agreement is binding upon the Patties and their successors and 
permitted assigns. 

f. Survival. The provisions of Section I 0 of this Agreement shall survive the expiration or 
earlier termination of this Agreement. 

g. Governing Law. The Agreement is made in the state of Minnesota and will be governed by 
Minnesota law, without regard to principles of conflicts of law, together with any applicable federal law. 

h. Counterpatts. This Agreement may be executed and delivered in identical counterpaits by 
exchange of electronic copies showing the signatures of the Parties, which shall constitute originally signed 
copies of the same Agreement requiring no further execution. Each counterpait, when assembled, will be a 
complete original and fully effective instrument. Any acceptance of this Agreement by affirmation through a 
DocuSign Electronic Signature, or similar system, shall be deemed a binding acceptance of this Agreement 
and shall be valid as a signature. 

i. Headings. The section headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes 
only and shall not affect the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. 

j. Notice to Subscriber. Do not sign this Agreement if there are any blank spaces. Subscriber 
should retain a copy of this Agreement to protect its legal rights. By signing below, Subscriber acknowledges 
that it has read and understands this Agreement and its Exhibits in their entirety, and that Subscriber has 
received a copy of this Agreement and all disclosure information. 

COMMUNITY 

SOLAR 

[Signatures Appear on Following Page] 

12 
City of North Mankato and Novel Solar Three LLC 

Solar Garden Subscription Agrec1ncnt 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first written above: 

Novel Solar Three LLC, 

A Minnesota limited liability company 

By: Pine Gate Energy Capital, LLC, a North 
Carolina limited liability company, Manager 

By: Novel Solar Three LLC, 

Date 

Signature 

Printed Name 

Title 

17coMMUNITY 

L \ SOLAR 
13 

City of North Mankato 

Date 

Signature 

Printed Name 

Title 

City of North Mankato and Novel Solar Three LLC 
Solar Garden Subscription Agreement 



EXHIBIT A 

City of North Mankato General Service 

Schedule of Estimated Prnduction and Subscription Payment 

Project 
Total Subscriber Estimated MNCS Estimated 

Energy Energy Bill Credit Total Bill Subscription MNCS Annual 
Year Production Production Rate Credit Rate Subscriotion Savin2s 

(kWh) (kWh) ($/kWh) ($/yr) ($/kWh) ($/yr) ($/yr) 

1 5,980,000 689,100 $0.12515 $86,241 $0.11515 $79,350 $6,891 
2 5,950, JOO 685,655 $0. 12804 $87,792 $0. 11804 $80,936 $6,857 

3 5,920,350 682,226 $0.13101 $89,380 $0.12101 $82,558 $6,822 

4 5,890,748 678,815 $0.13407 $91,006 $0.12407 $84,218 $6,788 

5 5,861,294 675,421 $0.13720 $92,669 $0.12720 $85,915 $6,754 

6 5,831,988 672,044 $0.14043 $94,372 $0.13043 $87,652 $6,720 

7 5,802,828 668,684 $0.14374 $96,115 $0.13374 $89,428 $6,687 

8 5,773,813 665,340 $0.14714 $97,898 $0.13714 $91,245 $6,653 

9 5,744,944 662,014 $0.15064 $99,723 $0.14064 $93, 103 $6,620 

10 5,716,220 658,704 $0.15423 $101,591 $0.14423 $95,004 $6,587 

11 5,687,639 655,410 $0.15792 $I 03,502 $0.14792 $96,948 $6,554 

12 5,659,200 652,133 $0.16171 $105.458 $0.15171 $98,937 $6,521 

13 5,630,904 648,872 $0.16561 $107,460 $0.15561 $ J 00,971 $6,489 
14 5,602,750 645,628 $0.16961 $109,508 $0.15961 $103,051 $6,456 

15 5,574,736 642,400 $0.17373 $111,603 $0.16373 $105,179 $6,424 

16 5,546,862 639, 188 $0.17796 $113,747 $0.16796 $107,356 $6,392 

17 5,519,128 635,992 $0.18230 $115,941 $0.17230 $109,581 $6,360 

18 5,491,532 632,812 $0.18676 $118,186 $0.17676 $111,858 $6,328 
19 5,464,075 629,648 $0.19135 $120,483 $0.18135 $114,186 $6,296 

20 5,436,754 626,500 $0.19606 $122,832 $0.18606 $116,567 $6,265 

21 5,409,571 623,367 $0.20090 $125,236 $0.19090 $119,003 $6,234 

22 5,382,523 620,250 $0.20588 $127,696 $0.19588 $121,493 $6,203 

23 5,355,610 617,149 $0.21099 $130,212 $0.20099 $124,040 $6,171 

24 5,328,832 614,063 $0.21624 $132,786 $0.20624 $126,645 $6,141 

25 5,302, 188 610,993 $0.22164 $135,419 $0.21164 $129,310 $6,110 

Estimated Total Savinl!S $162,324 

Note: This is an estimate. Reconciliation, Xcel Bill Credits, and other information described in the above table will be based on actual production and 
actual credit amount. This table is intended for estimation purposes, and for the use ofa billing amount calculation for the first year. These calculations 
1nay change due to a number of factors. 

Novel Solar Three LLC docs not guarantee production or bill credit rates per kWh. 

Assumptions: Assumes 1300 kWh I kW of production, 2.75 % per year in!lation ofXccl's billing rate and a 0.5o/o degradation rate. 

COMMUNITY 

SOLAR 
14 

City of North Mankato and Novel Solar Three LLC 
Solar Garden Subscription Agreeinent 



EXHIBIT B 

Xcel Energy - Northern States Power Solar*Rewards Community 

Subscriber Agency Agreement and Consent Form 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/ l-UKJXsWd27NffCgOBqRFukj75MI8uFbr/view?usp=sharing 

\";:?- COMMUNITY 

t_\ SOLAR 
15 

City of North Mankato and Novel Solar Three LLC 
Solar Garden Subscription Agreement 



EXHIBIT C 

Xcel Energy and Novel Solar Three LLC 

Data Privacy Policies 

Novel Solar Three LLC l1!1J?;//mnc;01nmyn_iJys9JaJ&Qrn/rns9\lfces- Policies Tab 

Xcel Energy - bltps://'!Y.Y'.»' .. · .. ~.95~1'11ei:gy&Qm/_sJaticfilesb<e/A\lm[11/XceLQ11Ji!l_el'xiyacY .. l'o.l.i.cy,p.Qf 

COMMUNITY 

SOLAR 
16 

City of North Mankato and Novel Solar Three LLC 
Solar Garden Subscription Agrccn1cnt 



EXHIBIT D 

Xcel Energy and Novel Solar Three LLC 

Community Solar Garden (CSG) Contract 

https ://drive. google.com/file/ d/OB2 I k6PHEPrrxb2JILUxp WV9 F a3 M/view?usp=sharing 

1'7COMMUNITY 

t ~ SOLAR 
17 

City of North Mankato and Novel Solar Three LLC 
Solar Garden Subscription Agreement 



EXHIBIT E 

Novel Solar Three LLC 

Solar Panel Module Warranty 

h!!p:f!mncQID_rl.LYlD!)'sQlaLcom/r~~Q!lrces - Solar Panels Tab 

... COMMUNITY 

SOLAR 
18 

City of North Mankato and Novel Solar Three LLC 
Solar Garden Subscription Agrec1ncnt 



EXHIBIT F 

Novel Solar Three LLC 

Proof of Insurance and Long-Term Maintenance Plan 

h11P~LLmn£Q!J1!1lµnitysoJ\lr,c:orDJ!'C;_'9JJf££~ - Policies Tab 

COMMUNITY 

SOLAR 
19 

City of North Mankato and Novel Solar Three LLC 
Solar (Jarden Subscription Agrcc1ncnt 



Account 

-

COMMUNITY 

SOLAR 

EXHIBIT G 

City of North Mankato 

Account and Premise Numbers with Service Addresses 

Premise Meter Address 

20 

Citv State Zip 

--

City of North Mankato and Novel Solar Three LLC 
Solar (Jarden Subscription Agrccn1cnt 



(l Xcel Energy@ 

CONSENT TO DISCLOSE UTILJTY CUSTOMER DATA 

All requested information must be provided for the consent to be valid. This form may be available in other languages. To obtain a copy in another 
language, please contact inquire@xcelenergy.com. Para obtener una copia de este formulario en espafio!, por favor contacte a su proveedor de 
servicios pUb!icos_ 

Utility Name and Contact: Xcel Energy Correspondence Department 

Physical and Mailing Address: P.O. Box 8, Eau Claire, WI, 54702 

Phone: 800.895.4999 Email: datarequest@xcelenergy.com 

For addition a! information, including the utility's privacy policy, visit xce!energy.com. 

To be completed by the Data Recipient 

By signing this form, you allow your utility to give the following information to: 

Fax: 866.208.8732 

Organization/Trade Name: Novel Energy Solutions 

Contact Name {if available): Cliff Kaehler 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Physical and Mailing Address 1633 South Robert Street, Suite A, West St. Paul, MN 55118 

Phone 612-345-7188 Email info@novelenergy.biz Fax 651-493-3575 

This organization wi!! receive the following customer data: 

fiJ Information from your meter collected by your utility services provider from the following services (check all services that apply): 

Iii electric 0 steam Iii natural gas 

[iJ Information regarding your participation in renewable energy, demand-side management, load management, 
energy efficiency or other utility programs 

0 Other (specify) 

This information will be used to: 

fil Provide you with products or services you requested D Offer you products or services that may be of interest to you 

liJ Determine your eligibility for an energy program D Analyze your energy usage 

Iii Other !specify! Determine eligibility for community solar garden subscription 

DATA COLLECTION PERIOD 

The relevant timeframe associated with the requested data is from___)__} __ and will: 

0 endon__J__J __ 

D be effective until terminated by you. 

You may terminate this consent at any time by sending a written request with your name and service address to your utility. 

Page1o!2 



To be completed by the Customer 

CUSTOMER DISCLOSURES 

*·X·;!·customer data can provide insight into activities within the premises receiving utility service. Your utility may not disclose your customer data 
except {1) if you authorize the disclosure, (2) to contracted agents that perform services on behalf of the utility, or (3) as otherwise permitted or 
required by laws or regulations.**·x· 

-ll·**You are not required to authorize the disclosure of your customer data. Not authorizing disclosure wi!I not affect your utility services.*** 

*'HYou may access your standard customer data from your utility without any additional charge.-x·** 

*i<·*Your utility will have no control over the data disclosed pursuant to this consent, and wi!I not be responsible for monitoring or taking any steps 
to ensure that the data recipient maintains the confidentiality of the data or uses the data as authorized by you. Please be advised that you may 
not be able to control the use or misuse of your data once it has been released.*-ic·l(· 

**'*In addition to the customer data described above, the data recipient may also receive the following from your utility: your name; account 
number; service number; meter number; utility type; service address; premise number; premise description; meter read date(s); number of days 
in the billing period; utility invoice date; base rate bill amount; other charges including base rate and non-base rate adjustments; taxes; and 
invoice total amount. Your utility will not provide any other information, including personally identifiable information, such as your Social Security 
Number or any financial account number, to the data recipient through this consent form.-x·*-x 

PLEASE READ THE CUSTOMER DISCLOSURES ABOVE 

By signing this form you acknowledge and agree that you are the customer of record for this account and that you authorize your utility service 
provider to disclose your customer data as specified in this form. 

CUSTOMER ACCOUNT NUMBER 

SERVICE ADDRESS 

SIGNATURE OF CUSTOMER OF RECORD 

(l Xcel Energy' 

PRINTED NAME 

DATE SIGNED 

RESPONSIBLE BY NATURE' 
xce!energy com I© 20i7 Xcel Energy Inc I Xcel E~erg•1 is a regislereci lraaemark 
of Xcei Ene1gy Inc I H·08·3?.5 



CIJ V OF NORTH MANKATO 
MINNESOTA 

\';?COMMUNITY 
U SOLAR asubsidiaryof Nov 



D In 2013, Minnesota legislation directed Minneapolis-based utility, Xcel Energy, to create a program 
for community solar gardens ("CSGs"). Approved community solar gardens sell electricity to Xcel in 
exchange for bill credits that can be used by Xcel Energy customers to offset their electricity costs. 

• 

• 

Under the program Xcel Energy remains the City of North Mankato's electricity provider 

Bill credits are issued on your Xcel Invoice based on your subscription amount 

• $0 upfront cost, no upfront investment is required and no upfront fees are charged 

• The CSG will not be located on your premises and you will not take any risk on the CSG 
electricity production, you will only pay for bill credits you actually receive 

D Subscribing to 689,100 kWhs will generate an estimated 25 year cost savings of $162,324. 

D City of North Mankato will benefit from a floating rate of 1 cent/kWh below the Xcel Bill Credit. 
North Mankato will receive a 1 cent/kWh savings for the term of the agreement. The term of the 
Agreement is 25 years. North Mankato may terminate this ag~eement in year 5 with a 5 year 
replacement period. 

D Gibbon Solar Garden schedule 

• Energization with Xcel - June 28th 

• Acceptance Test with Xcel-July 10th 

COMMUNITY 

SOLAR 
By Novel Energy Solutions 

Community Solar is an opportunity to save money over the next 25 
years, help protect the environment and support local business 



D Leading Minnesota integrated energy management company which includes three complementary 
businesses, community solar garden development, solar project construction and solar project finance 

D Founded in 2011 by Cliff, Ralph and Mena Kaehler. The Kaehler family are active farmers (Purebred cattle) 
with over a hundred and thirty years of history in the southern Minnesota area. 

D MNCS and NES are leaders in the Minnesota solar market 

• NES/MNCS developed first 4 community solar 
gardens in Xcel program 

• One of the largest CSG developers in the country 
with over 100 MW of CSGs developed 

• NES is founded on providing profitable, reliable 
energy solutions to agricultural communities 

• Locally owned Minnesota made company, we 
have offices in Rochester and St. Paul, MN 

Buhl Hog Farm (250 KW) 



D The Community Solar Garden model aims to combine the environmental and cost benefits of large scale solar 
energy production with the individual cost savings of rooftop or ground mount direct solar generation 

D Participating local businesses, organizations and residents can manage electric costs with no upfront 
investment and no production risk 

D Minnesota enacted authorizing legislation in 2013 allowing construction of CSGs of up to 5 MW 

• Each CSG must have a minimum of five subscribers 
with no one subscriber accounting for more than 
40% of generation 

• CSG subscribers must be located in the garden's 
county or adjacent counties 

• CSG subscribers receive bill credits at applicable 
retail rates for garden production 60 .o 

G-" 
o~ ''7 

• Subscribers to MNCS gardens benefit from fixed ~~ +v~ 
electricity rates and annual production true ups 0~'l/ ~ 

~ ~o 

• MNCS Subscription anticipated 10% savings ~~ 

-3 
-le v~ 

~ 1- ~ .... <;>) 
<;Y,,......, o<;>) C).. 

~v ~ ~ 
o,..... ~O' %c 

..o,,.. o_., ~ 
o~ .k. o.-"J.. v. 0 ' / <'~ . v,,.. 

-0 
~ 

Local Community 
Solar Garden You pay CSG at a ~io% discounted rate 

to your credit 



COMMUNITY 

0 Opportunity to fix future energy costs for 25 years at one low monthly rate 
• Subscription rate for the first year is set based on a 1 cent/kWh discount to the enhanced 

applicable retail rate( Bill Credit) on the commercial operation date of the applicable CSG 
• In future years the subscription rate will always be 1 cent/kWh below the Xcel Bill Credit 

rate 
• Billing is monthly with an annual true up so there is no risk associated with the 

performance of the solar garden. City of North Mankato will only pay for electrical credits 
actually received 

0 Creates environmental marketing opportunities 
• The Subscriber can switch to green energy AND lower electricity rates 
• Can be an important marketing tool, now and particularly in the future as more pressure is 

put on corporations, businesses, organizations and institutions for environmental 
leadership 

D Assignment and Termination 
• Allows assignment of contract to new subscriber at limited, administrative charge 
• Lowered termination fees in the event of moving business and no termination fees if 

terminated due to MNCS fault 

0 MNCS is open to discussing City of North Mankato's needs and priorities and creating a custom 

subscription solution 

SOLAR s 
By Novel Energy Solutions 



Year 
Project Total Energy Subscriber Energy 

Bill Credit Rate 
Estimated Total Bill 

Subscription Rate MNCS Subscription 
Estimated Annual 

Production Production Credit Savings 

(kWh) (kWh) ($/kWh) ($/yr) ($/kWh) ($/yr) 
1 5,980,000 689,100 $0.12515 $86,241 $0.11515 $79,350 $6,891 
2 5,950,100 685,655 $0.12804 $87,792 $0.11804 $80,936 $6,857 
3 5,920,350 682,226 $0.13101 $89,380 $0.12101 $82,558 $6,822 
4 5,890,748 678,815 $0.13407 $91,006 $0.12407 $84,218 $6,788 
5 5,861,294 675,421 $0.13720 $92,669 $0.12720 $85,915 $6,754 
6 5,831,988 672,044 $0.14043 $94,372 $0.13043 $87,652 $6,720 
7 5,802,828 668,684 $0.14374 $96,115 $0.13374 $89,428 $6,687 
8 5,773,813 665,340 $0.14714 $97,898 $0.13714 $91,245 $6,653 
9 5,744,944 662,014 $0.15064 $99,723 $0.14064 $93,103 $6,620 

10 5,716,220 658,704 $0.15423 $101,591 $0.14423 $95,004 $6,587 

11 5,687,639 655,410 $0.15792 $103,502 $0.14792 $96,948 $6,554 

12 5,659,200 652,133 $0.16171 $105,458 $0.15171 $98,937 $6,521 

13 5,630,904 648,872 $0.16561 $107,460 $0.15561 $100,971 $6,489 
14 5,602,750 645,628 $0.16961 $109,508 $0.15961 $103,051 $6,456 

15 5,574,736 642,400 $0.17373 $111,603 $0.16373 $105,179 $6,424 

16 5,546,862 639,188 $0.17796 $113,747 $0.16796 $107,356 $6,392 

17 5,519,128 635,992 $0.18230 $115,941 $0.17230 $109,581 $6,360 

18 5,491,532 632,812 $0.18676 $118,186 $0.17676 $111,858 $6,328 

19 5,464,075 629,648 $0.19135 $120,483 $0.18135 $114,186 $6,296 

20 5,436,754 626,500 $0.19606 $122,832 $0.18606 $116,567 $6,265 

21 5,409,571 623,367 $0.20090 $125,236 $0.19090 $119,003 $6,234 

22 5,382,523 620,250 $0.20588 $127,696 $0.19588 $121,493 $6,203 

23 5,355,610 617,149 $0.21099 $130,212 $0.20099 $124,040 $6,171 

24 5,328,832 614,063 $0.21624 $132,786 $0.20624 $126,645 $6,141 

25 5,302,188 610,993 $0.22164 $135,419 $0.21164 $129,310 $6,110 

Estimated Total Savings $162,324 

6 



Gas emissions from 
Passenger vehicles 

driven for one year 

561,013 

C02 emissions from 
Pounds of coal 

burned 

76.9 

C02 emissions from 
Homes' electricity 
use for one year 

Carbon 
Sequestered by 

Acres of U.S. forest 
in one year 

Source: www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gas-equivalencies-calculator 



Project Counties 

Benton 

Blue Earth 

Dakota 

Douglas 

Faribault 

Goodhue 

Hennepin 

Le Sueur 

Pipestone 

Pope 
• MNCS Project Counties 

Renville 

Sherburne 
Subscription Eligible Counties 

Sibley 

Stearns 

Steele 

Washington 

Winona 

Yellow Medicine 





Lead Contact: 

Rick Masloski, Business Development Exec. 

612-817-6200 
Rick.masloski@mncommunitysolar.com 

Additional Contact: 

Cliff Kaehler, CEO 

507-272-5401 
cliff. ka eh I e r@n ove I energy.biz 



CITY OF NORTH MANKATO 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

!Agenda Item # 11 E llDepartment: Engineering llCounci l Meeting Date: 7/2/1 8 
I 

TITLE OF ISSUE: Receive Preliminary Engineering Report North Port Industrial Park Expansion West 
Improvements, Project No. 18-04 ABCDEF 

BACKGROUND AND SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION: The City Council authorized preparation ofa 
preliminary engineering report on April 2, 2018. Bolton & Menk have prepared the requested documents and 
City Engineer Sarff will be present to answer questions. 

If additional space is required, attach a separate sheet 

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION: Authorize Staff to Pursue Grants. 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS ATTACHED 

Motion By: Resolution Ordinance Contract Minutes Map 
Second By: 

c=J c=J c=J CJ c=J 
Vote Record: Aye Nay 

Whitlock ---- Other (specify) Report, PowerPoint 
Steiner ----
Norland ----

----Freyberg 
Dehen ----

c=J Workshop CJ Refer to: 

[TI Regular Meeting CJ Table until: 

CJs pecial Meeting CJ Other: 



l1J::.\ BOLTON 
\!JJI & MENK 

Real People. Real Solutions. 

Preliminary Engineering Report 

Northport Industrial Park Expansion West 
Improvements 
City Project No. 18-04 ABCDEF 
City of North Mankato, Minnesota 

Submitted by: 
Bolton & Menk, Inc. 
1960 Premier Drive 
Mankato, MN 56001 
P: 507-625-4171 
F: 507-625-41 77 
BMI No. M18.115345 



Certification 

Preliminary Engineering Report 

for 

Northport Industrial Park Expansion West Improvements 
City Project Number 18-04 ABCDEF 

Prepared by: Bolton & Menk, Inc. 

City of North Mankato, Minnesota 
BMI Project No. M18.114406 

June 2018 

I hereby certify that this plan, specification or report was 
prepared by me or under my direct supervision, and that I 
am a duly Licensed Professional Engineer under the laws of 
the State of Minnesota . 

By: 

Dat e: 

Daniel R. Sarff, P .E! 
License No. 17080 

June 27 2018 

Certification 

Northport Indust rial Park Expansion -West Improvements I Ml8.114406 



t 
I. PROJECT INTRODUCTION ...................................................................................................... 1 

II. EXISTING CONDITIONS ........................................................................................................... 1 
A. Land Use ....................................................................................................................... 1 

B. Street ............................................................................................................................ 2 

C. Storm Sewer, Sanitary Sewer and Watermain ............................................................. 2 

D. Wetlands ...................................................................................................................... 2 

Ill. PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS .................................................................................................. 2 
A. Street ............................................................................................................................ 2 

B. Storm Sewer ................................................................................................................. 3 

C. Sanitary Sewer .............................................................................................................. 4 

D. Watermain .................................................................................................................... 5 

E. Other Utilities ............................................................................................................... 5 

F. Right of Way ................................................................................................................. 5 

IV. APPROVALS/PERMITS ............................................................................................................ 6 
V. PROPOSED PROJECT PHASING AND SCHEDULE ..................................................................... 6 

VI. PROPOSED PROJECT SCHEDULE ............................................................................................. 7 

VII. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS .............................................................................. 8 

.,.~~ ,·~ 

<:~ ~) 

Estimated Project Costs .................................................................................................................. 7 

I)( 

Appendix A: Figures_ 

Figure Al: Location Map 
Figure A2: Typical Sections 

Figure A3: Proposed Storm Sewer 
Figure A4: Sanitary Sewer Service Areas 

Figure AS: Proposed Sanitary Sewer 
Figure A6: Proposed Watermain 

Appendix B: Detailed Cost Estimate 

Prepared by: Bolton & Menk, Inc. 
Northport Industrial Park Expansion·-· West lrnprovenlents I M18.114406 

Table of Contents 



I. PROJECT INTRODUCTION 

This Preliminary Engineering Report considers the expansion of the Northport Industrial Park 

expansion to the west. Expansion would include new street and utility construction on Carlson 

Drive from the west terminus, approximately 850-feet west of CSAH 41, to CSAH 6 and the 

Unnamed Road from the proposed Carlson Drive to CSAH 6. This project is the westerly extension 

of the segment of Carlson Drive west of CSAH 41 that was constructed in 2015. The project 

location is shown on the vicinity map, Figure No. 1 of Appendix A. 

The City Council authorized the preparation of a preliminary engineering report on April 2, 2018 to 

define the scope and determine the feasibility of the proposed project. The specific objectives of 

this Preliminary Engineering Report are to: 

• Evaluate the need for the project. 

• Determine the necessary improvements. 

• Provide information on the estimated costs for the proposed project. 

• Determine the project schedule. 

• Determine the feasibility of the proposed project. 

The project as proposed would consist of extending Carlson Drive approximately 3500-feet and 

constructing approximately 1610-feet of the Unnamed Road. Specific items of construction will 

include: 

• Construction of sanitary sewer. 

• Construction of watermain. 

• Construction of storm sewer. 

• Construction of storm water pond. 

• Installation of bituminous pavement with concrete curb and gutter. 

• Installation of concrete sidewalk and bituminous trail. 

II. EXISTING CONDITIONS 

A. Land Use 

The existing land use in the areas adjacent to the proposed project area consists of agricultural 

land. The areas immediately east and west of the proposed the Unnamed Road are designated 

for Commercial/Industrial Mixed use in the City's Comprehensive Plan. The remaining areas 

to the west and along the proposed Carlson Drive extension is designated for Heavy 

Industrial. The street right-of-way for Carlson Drive to a point approximately 800 feet west of 

CSAH 41 was platted in 2010 with the CSAH 41 Right-of-Way plat. The street right-of-way 

for Carlson Drive from approximately 900 feet west of CSAH 41 to a point approximately 

1560 feet west was dedicated with the Harrison Truck Center Subdivision final plat which 

was approved by the City Council on May 2 1, 2018. The Carlson Drive right of way is 80-

feet wide. 

The existing parcels located in the proposed project area are outside of the City limits. It is 

anticipated that the properties within the project area will be annexed as they are platted and 

Prepared by: Bolton & Menk, Inc. 
Northport Indust rial Park Expansion W est Improvements I MlS. 114406 

PROJECT INTRODUCTION 

Page 1 



developed. 

The location of the proposed project is shown on Figure No. 1 in Appendix A. 

B. Street 

As part of the Carlson Drive Improvements project in 2015/2016, Carlson Drive was 

extended approximately 900-feet west of CSAH 41. The street consists of a 44-wide street 

section with curb and gutter with an 8-foot concrete walk on the north side and 8-foot 

bituminous trail on the south side. 

C. Storm Sewer, Sanitary Sewer and Watermain 

Sanitary sewer and watermain were installed west from CSAH 41 with the Carlson Drive 

Improvements project in 2015/2016 to serve future development. The sanitary sewer stub is 

an 18-inch polyvinyl chloride (PVC) pipe appropriately sized to serve future development 

west of CSAH 41. The pipe is approximately 9-feet deep at the west terminus of Carlson 

Drive. All wastewater collected by this pipe drains east on Carlson Drive. A 16-inch 

watermain was also installed to the west terminus of Carlson Drive. The storm sewer was not 

extended to the west terminus of Carlson Drive since the existing pond southwest of the 

intersection of CSAH 41 and CSAH 6, was not sized for the future development drainage 

area. 

D. Wetlands 

A wetland delineation was completed in the existing MnDOT pond area near TH 14. It is 

anticipated that there will be some impact to the wetlands and will be determined during final 

design. A wetland delineation is also recommended on the rest of the project area to identify 

wetlands and possible impacts and to see if mitigation is required. 

Ill. PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS 

A. Street 

Carlson Drive is proposed to be extended approximately 3500-feet from the west terminus to 

CSAH 6. The Unnamed Road is proposed to be extended approximately 1610-feet from 

Carlson Drive to CSAH 6. Both roadways are proposed to be 44-foot wide bituminous streets 

with concrete curb and gutter on both sides. The width of the roadway will allow for two 12-

foot wide travel lanes, 2-foot curb reaction distance on each side and a shared 16-foot center 

tum lane. Carlson Drive is proposed to have an 8-foot concrete sidewalk on the north side 

and an 8-foot bituminous trail on the south side. 

The City's "typical" bituminous pavement section for commercial/industrial streets will be 

utilized: 7 inches of bituminous surfacing, 18 inches of Class 6 aggregate base, geogrid, all 

placed on a prepared subgrade. Since the new street alignment will extend through the lower 

portion in the topography, it is anticipated that fill material will be required to bring the street 

to the proposed grade. The soils in this area of the City are expected to be generally clay in 

nature and should provide a good sub-base for roadway constmction. However, if unsuitable 

Prepared by: Bolton & Menk, Inc. 
Northport Industrial Park Expansion West Improvements I M18.114406 

PROPOSED IMPROVEME NTS 
Page 2 



subsoils are discovered during construction, engineered fill may be required. 

The construction of 4-inch diameter perforated edge drains along the back of the curb on both 

sides is proposed to provide subsurface drainage for the pavement section. The edge drains 

will help to remove moisture from the subgrade thus strengthening the subgrade and reducing 

the chances of damage from saturated subgrades. 

Upon completion of surface improvements, boulevards will be restored with topsoil and seed 

in all disturbed areas. 

The proposed typical section for Carlson Drive and the Unnamed Road are shown on Figure 

No. 2 in Appendix A. 

B. Storm Sewer 

Storm sewer pipe ranging in size from 12-inches to 60-inches in diameter is proposed to be 

constructed along Carlson Drive and the Unnamed Road. Catch basins will be placed at low 

points and other strategic points to intercept drainage for the 10-year rainfall event and direct 

it into the storm sewer. Catch basins will also provide an outlet for the water collected in the 

6-inch edge drain pipe along each side of the roadway. Manholes will be located at pipe 

intersections and other locations to provide maintenance access. 

The project area will drain to a proposed storm water detention basin located at the existing 

MnDOT pond between TH 14 and Carlson Drive. The existing MnDOT pond will be 

expanded and become a pond that will provide storm water management and water quality 

treatment for the existing Trunk Highway 14 right of way as well as the proposed industrial 

park development. Terms of a shared use agreement between the City and MnDOT for the 

joint use of the storm water pond have been agreed to by both parties, and the agreement will 

be executed when development within the new industrial park area is eminent. 

Since the Northp011 Industrial park will utilize storm sewer as the primary means of storm 

water runoff conveyance, additional depth is required at the shared use pond. This additional 

depth warrants the conversion of the existing filtration basins into a wet sedimentation basin. 

The pond will outlet into an existing wetland, which outlets into a 36" culvert crossing TH 

14, and ultimately into a ravine. Impacts will be avoided and hydrology will be maintained to 

the existing wetland, while a mitigation plan may have to be developed for the small wetland 

that will be impacted as a part of the pond expansion. Two culverts which provide drainage 

for the median of TH 14 will also be extended to the normal water level of the pond, and 

ditch drainage on the north side of TH l 4 will be maintained to the proposed storm water 

detention basin. 

Future commercial/industrial lots will be required to construct individual storm water 

detention basins. Those basins will be required to limit their discharge to I-cubic feet per 

second ( cfs) per acre of lot area for the 100-year storm. The proposed storm sewer system 

along Carlson Drive and the Unnamed Road will be sized to accommodate the I 0-year design 

Prepared by: Bolton & Menk, Inc. 

Northport lndust1·ial PJrk Expansion \/\Jest l1nproven1ents l MlS.114406 
PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS 

Page 3 



storm event as well as the discharge from the individual lot detention ponds. A 36-inch pipe 

will also be installed to the culvert crossing on CSAH 6 to capture the storm sewer run off 

north of CSAH 6. This will also provide an outlet for a future regional pond for future 

development north of CSAH 6 within the watershed. 

The proposed storm sewer improvements and pond area are shown in Figure No. 3 in 

Appendix A. 

C. Sanitary Sewer 

Jn order to provide sanitary service to the project area, a new lift station will be required. The 

lift station will serve as a regional lift station, serving the industrial park expansion north of 

TH 14 and west of CSAH 41 and residential areas south of TH 14 to the ravine. 

The lift station ultimate service area will be approximately 794 acres of industrial and 177 

acres of residential. To accommodate the ultimate service area, the lift station would need a 

future pumping capacity of 2,300 gallons per minute (gpm). Since the development of the 

ultimate service area will take many years, possibly longer than the design life of some of the 

lift station components, it is proposed that the initial lift station design be based on a more 

limited service area, and lower pumping rates. The initial lift station design will 

accommodate 160 acres of industrial and 77 acres of residential, and will have a pumping 

capacity of 520 gpm. However, the lift station wetwell structure size/depth, sanitary 

sewer/forcemain sizing and various other components will be sized to allow the capacity of 

the lift station to be expanded in the future when required. 

It should also be noted that proposed lift station drainage area is outside of the design service 

area of the Carlson/Countryside Drive trunk sanitary sewer. This sewer will receive the 

discharge from the lift station. Under current conditions, the Carlson/Countryside Drive 

trunk sewer has the capacity to accept flows from the proposed lift station, however, the 

capacity may be limited when full development within the Carlson/Countryside Drive trunk 

sewer has been achieved. Depending on the rate and type of future development within the 

ttunk sewer's service area, it is estimated that it will be 20 years or more before the trunk 

sewer reaches maximum capacity. Flow monitoring is proposed to verify the existing flows 

and available capacity in the interceptor sewer, and the capacity of the Carlson/Countryside 

interceptor sewer should continue to be monitored as development occurs. 

The proposed location of the lift station and service areas are shown on Figure 4 in Appendix 

A. 

A 24-inch diameter sanitary sewer is proposed from the lift station to the street in the 

industrial park. A 15-inch diameter sanitary will be extended throughout the industrial park 

to provide sewer service to the adjacent properties. The proposed 15-inch sanitary sewer is 

upsized from the typical 8-inch sanitary sewer main in order to provide capacity for future 

development to the north and west. An 8-inch diameter sanitary sewer will also be stubbed 

from the lift station area southwest to TH 14. This will provide a future connection for the 

Prepared by: Bolton & Menk, Inc 
NcHthport lndustr"iJI P3rk Expansion Vilest lmproven1ents ! M18.114406 

PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS 
Page 4 



residential areas in the service area on south side of TH 14. The proposed sanitary pipes will 

be made of PVC with a rubber-gasketed and precast concrete manholes, also with rubber

gasketed joints, will be provided at intervals not exceeding 400 feet to provide access for 

maintenance and cleaning. 

Service line will be extended from the sanitary sewer main to the right-of-way line to provide 

service to the adjacent properties as they develop. The service lines will also be PVC pipe 

with gasketed joints, and will be 6 to 8 inches in diameter, depending on the capacity 

required. 

The proposed sanitary sewer construction is shown on Figure No. 5 in Appendix A. 

D. Watermain 

To provide water service to the adjacent properties, a 16-inch diameter watermain is being 

proposed to be extended along Carlson Drive and an 8-inch diameter watermain is proposed 

along the Unnamed Road. The proposed 16-inch diameter watermain is larger than the typical 

8-inch watermain because it is part of the perimeter trunk watermain looping system. To 

complete a watermain loop with watermain south of TH 14, a 12-inch diameter watermain 

will be installed south from Carlson Drive along the lot lines, through the existing steel 

casing under TH 14 and CSAH 6, and east along CSAH 6 for approximately 640 feet. A 12-

inch line will also be installed in the northern ditch along CSAH 6 from CSAH 41 to Carlson 

Drive to complete the loop in the industrial park. The trunk watermain looping system will 

provide and enhance water service, water pressure, fire protection and redundancy for the 

northwesterly portion of the City, including the Northport Industrial park. 

Hydrants will be installed at appropriate intervals and valves will be provided to properly 

isolate the system for flushing, repair, and maintenance. Along with new sanitary sewer 

service to each lot, new 6- to 8-inch diameter water services will be extended to the right-of

way line and shut off valve added. 

The proposed watermain construction is shown on Figure No. 6 in Appendix A. 

E. Other Utilities 

The design of the proposed improvements will be coordinated with the owners of private 

utilities such as natural gas, electric, telephone, and cable television. Plans will be provided 

to all private utility companies during design to communicate the proposed improvements 

and construction schedule. This will allow utility companies enough time to plan and design 

their utility extensions. The construction schedule for the proposed improvements will be 

coordinated with the utility company work to avoid unnecessary delays. 

F. Right of Way 

City staff has had on-going discussions with the two land owners within the industrial park 

expansion area regarding the acquisition of right-of-way or easements for the future streets 

and utilities. 

Prepared by: Bolton & Menk, Inc. 

Northport lndustr'ial Park Expansion West lnoprovernents I M18.114406 
PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS 

Page S 



IV. APPROVALS/PERMITS 

Approvals and Permits are required from various agencies for the construction of the project. They 

include: 

• Minnesota Pollution Control Agency (MPCA) General Construction Storm Water Permit 

• Minnesota Pollution Control Agency (MPCA) Sanitary Sewer Extension Permit 

• Minnesota Department of Health (MDH) Plan Review 

• Minnesota Department of Transportation - Work within Right-of-Way 

• Nicollet County- Work within Right-of-Way 

• Wetland Conservation Act (WCA)- Wetland Permit 

• Clean Water Act (CWA) Section 404 - Wetland Permit 

V. PROPOSED PROJECT PHASING AND SCHEDULE 

It is anticipated that the project would be constructed in two phases. 

Phase 1 would include the following improvements: 

• Sanitary sewer lift station 

• Regional stormwater pond 

• Street, storm sewer, sanitary sewer, and watermain, infrastructure on Carlson Drive 

• Watermain looping along the north side of Timm Road and under Trunk Highway 14 

(casing previously installed) 

• Storm sewer construction along lot lines from Timm Road to regional stormwater pond to 

accommodate existing stormwater from agricultural areas north of Timm Road. 

Phase 2 would include the following improvements: 

• Street, storm sewer, sanitary sewer, and watermain, infrastructure on the Unnamed Street 

• Watermain crossing Timm Road at the unnamed street. 

• Sanitary sewer along the south side of Timm Road 

The schedule for initiating each phase of the project will be dependent on several factors, including: 

industrial development activity, negotiations with land owners for right-of-way/easements, 

availability of grant funding for the project, etc. 

In the past, the City of North Mankato has utilized a staged construction process for new street and 

underground utility projects where by the improvements are constructed over several years. 

Year 1: Underground utilities, street excavation and aggregate base materials. 

Year 2: Curb & gutter, sidewalk, trail, driveways, final turf establishments, and bituminous 

surfacing (except for the final layer). 

Year 3 - 5: Final layer of bituminous surfacing. 

This staged construction process has served the City well in that it provides time for street 

Prepared by: Bolton & Menk, Inc. 

Northport Indust rial Park Expansion West Improvements I M18.114406 

APPROVALS/PERMITS 
Page 6 



excavations and utility trenches to stabilize before the street and surface improvements are 

constructed. In the past, the separate stages have been constructed under separate contracts. For 

this project, if the staged construction process is utilized, it is anticipated that all of the 

improvements would be constructed under one contract, but the contractor would be required to 

delay portions of the construction until future years. This could impact bid prices, since the bidders 

would need to speculate on what material, labor and fuel costs may be in future years. The 

possibility of utilizing a staged construction process will continue to be evaluated and a 

recommendation will be made at the time plans and specifications are reviewed with the City 

Council. 

It is anticipated that the project will be financed using a general obligation bond and the bond 

payments may come from the following revenue sources: 

• Special assessments on property to be annexed into the City. 

• Property tax levy to pay for the portion of the project that will have deferred 

assessments, and not collectible at this time. 

• Enterprise funds (utility oversizing costs). 

The City is also pursuing a Greater Minnesota Public Infrastructure Grant through the Minnesota 

Department of Economic Development. If successful , this grant would fund up to 50% of the 

eligible project costs. 

VI. PROPOSED PROJECT SCHEDULE 

The estimated project costs are summarized below. 

Estimated Project Costs 
Estimated Cost 

Item Phase 1 Phase 2 Total 
Street & Surface $1,746,000 $785,000 $2,53 1,000 
Sanitary Sewer $1,204,000 $201,000 $ 1,405,000 
Watermain $995,000 $ 166,000 $1,161 ,000 
Storm Sewer & Pond $1,420,000 $ 163,000 $1,583,000 

Total: $5,365,000 $1,315,000 $6,680.000 

A detailed cost estimate and breakdown is provided in Exhibit No. 1 in Appendix B. The cost 

provided above are based on the assumption that the infrastructure for the entire industrial park 

expansion is constructed at the same time. These improvements could also be phased over several 

projects. 

These cost estimates are based on public construction cost information from other recent projects 

similar in scope. Since the cost estimates are dependent on the cost of labor, materials, competitive 

bidding process, weather conditions, and other factors affecting the cost of construction, all cost 

estimates are opinions for general information and no warranty or guarantee as to the accuracy of 

construction cost is made. Therefore, financing for this project should be based upon actual 

competiti ve bid prices with reasonable contingencies. 

Prepared by: Bolton & Menk, Inc. 
Northport Industr ial Park Expansion West Improvements I M18.114406 

PROPOSED PROJECT SCHEDULE 

Page 7 



VII. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

The extension of City roads and utilities is necessary for the expansion of North Mankato's 

industrial park. From an engineering standpoint, this project is feasible, cost effective, necessary, 

and can best be accomplished by letting competitive bids for the work. 

We recommend that the Council accept this report, and utilize the information herein to prepare an 

application for a Greater Minnesota Public Infrastructure Grant through the Minnesota Department 

of Economic Development. 

Prepared by: Bolton & Menk, Inc. 

Northpo1-t Industrial Par·k Expansion West lrnprovernt:nts I MlS.114406 
CONCLUSION ANO RECOMMENDATIONS 

Page 8 



t \/ 
! f\ 

C23.tiC)(l !\/!Cit') - . i 

F: LJt··c; /\2: .. "f--\ttJical I ()(15 

FiPlff(' . '('~j . ,__, 

Prepared by: Botton & Menk, Inc. 
Northport Industrial Park Exr)ansion ·· Wl~st linprovements I Ml8.114406 

APPENDIX 



z~ oz ~-<e~ !jW 
o:E 
matl 

@) ~ ~ 
z 

a. 00 
0 

n:s 8 ~ ~ 
~ N 

<11 

c c b 
::l 

0 6 
~ '+:i 

a: 
"-

0 

n:s 
u 
0 .... 
;.t 
cu 
L.. 
::::J 
.~ 
u.. 

Ill ..... 
c 
cu 
E 
cu 
> 
0 
L.. 
a. 
E 
..... 
Ill cu 
3: 
c 
0 
'iii 
c 
n:s a. 
>< w 

.:.:. 
L.. 
n:s 
0.. 

n:s 
'i:: ..... 
Ill 0 ::::J .... 

"C ro 
-"' c c ~ ro 

t= ~ ~· 
..c "' 0 t: a. 0 

~ z 
t= -0 
0 > .... z u 

V'N n:g5:5 8 {Ql 8 9 MP"d'<IV>l NOl!'<l::>Ol ~3d·91~ on 011::> 901>17H8tV>l N'<IV>IN 'H 



Northport Industrial Park Expansion - West Improvements 
City of North Mankato 

Figure 2: Typical Sections liiF:\ BOLTON 
June201s \UY & MENK 

3: 
"O 

~I 
"' -' 

5 
Ci: 
~ 
ffi 
0.. 

0 
u: 
6 
"' u ..... 
0 

~ 
0 

~ 
~ 

co 

j 
z 
< ::; 
z 
.,-: 
I 

UTIL/EASE 

20' 

0.5' 

R/WUNE 

40' 

CARLSON DRIVE 

If. R/WLINE UTll/EASE 

40' 20' 

0.5' 

- I 2.00% II I I I II 2.00% I - -
VARIES' - ~ ~ B618C&G ~ - ~ARIES 

,_,,- ... ... . 

UTll/EASE 

6" TOPSOIL SEED, 
FERTILIZE & MULCH - - - - -

20' 

0.5' 

R/W LINE 

8' 
CONCWALK 

40' 

9.5' 

1.5" BITUMINOUS WEAR COURSE 

5.5" BITUMINOUS NON-WEAR COURSE 

~ 18" AGGREGATE BASE COURSE, Cl. 6 

'------ GEOGRID 

'------ 12" SUBGRADE PREPARATION 

14' 
THRU LANE 

UNNAMED ROAD 
If. 

16' 
SHARED TURN LANE 

14' 
THRU LANE 

6" PVC PERF DRAIN 

40' 

18' 

R/WLINE UTll/EASE 

20' 

2.00% -VARIES' -- :::o-======~~~~~~:=:;;l~l =:!:CZ:::::<z~l~~z~.00%~~~~~B~6~18~C~&~G~~~~~~~:::~z~.5~0%~==~B~6~18~C~&;G~~":f====~;z;.00%~====~1========~2;.00%~~====~1;c: -.,; ----.. _ _ - VARIES -
6" TOPSOIL SEED, 
FERTILIZE & MULCH - - - -

1.5" BITUMINOUS WEAR COURSE 

5.5" BITUMINOUS NON-WEAR COURSE 

18" AGGREGATE BASE COURSE, Cl. 6 

'-- --- GEOGRID 

'------- 12" SUBGRADE PREPARATION 

6" PVC PERF DRAIN 



Northport Industrial Park Expansion - West Improvements 
City of North Mankato 

3- _,. ..• • "' 
" I • ' :fl 
;:: 
:::; 

§ 
"" w 
Q. 

0 
u: 
b 

"' 

~ 
0 

~ 
"' i 
'f 
< 

- << -.. 

I I 

PROPOSED STORM SEWER 

PROPOSED APRON 

PROPOSED MANHOLE 

EXISTING STORM SEWER 

PROPOSED REGIONAL POND AREA 

300 600 

I 

~ v 

~/ 
,,,~, 

~I . ' <DI 

"' 

~ 
I;; . 
;!; 

Figure 3: Proposed Storm Sewer /1i;'\ BOLTON 
June 201s \UY & MENK 

'/! g 
!!' 1 Q:;-r 1 ;::;-/! ~ ~ 

.~ o.::t 

f ·; ~ ~ u~ 
~ ~ 

I 
~ 

I 
~ 

I 
~ 

I 
~ 

I 
~ SCAlE FEET I t . ........ -.... - ~ ' ,.. ,~ - I 

11'11..*.w• I 



Northport Industrial Park Expansion - West Improvements 
City of North Mankato 

Figure 4: Sanitary Sewer Service Areas l1i:\. BOLTON 
June 201& \QV & MENK 

w 
u 
> 
ffi 
"' i:: 
~ z 
~ 
ffi 
Q. 

0 
u:: 
15 
"" ~ 
5 
rt; 

~ 
~ 

00 

~ z 

ULTIMATE NORTHPORT INDUSTRIAL PARK LIFT STATION AREA 

INITIAL NORTHPORT INDUSTRIAL PARK LIFT STATION AREA 

- ASPEN LANE LIFT STATION AREA 

- PARKS EDGE LIFT STATION AREA 

THE RESERVE LIFT STATION AREA 

CARLSON DRIVE/COUNTRYSIDE DRIVE GRAVITY AREA 

« \( ... '·:·-~~_:~ii :!l~ \"' . ~.··'~3"°..-...4 ·.~ .-.~. ~. ~1¥1;;..J ..,,,~~ CARLSONDRIVE/COUNTRYSIDEDRIVEORIGINALSERVICEAREA 

~ • ~· .:'.; .~ :.,, ,_... .J'-~ "! -'• , . ~I' ~ ~_:=r~~ ~ (BASED ON PIPE CAPACITY) 
:i '. ·~:J ·•- . "'-· •-. t _. J !i -:1. .. ,,, . ,~·· I a - . -

I 

~ v 
1250 2SOO - -- - -SCALE FEET 



Northport Industrial Park Expansion - West Improvements 
City of North Mankato 

~ 
< :. 
~ s 
~ 
~ 
3 
"' 3 
~I ,.,_ • · , • . --~ ,., T • .. ~,- - , ..., _r--1" I 

"' :::; 

§ 
ffi 
Q. 

0 
u: 
Ci 
"' 6 
5 
"' 0 
<t 

::: 
"' ~ z 
< 
~ 

© 
- 11-

• 
- < -

--<--

f 
PROPOSED LIFT STATION 

~ PROPOSED FORCEMAIN 

PROPOSED M ANHOLE 

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER y 
EXISTING SANITARY SEWER 

0 300 600 

S' SAN 
z 
~ . 
~ 

Figure 5: Proposed Sanitary Sewer l'fi:\ BOLTON 
June201s \QV & MENK 

I 
I 

0 
a 

0:: ;::;-
0 't/;1-

(S :i: 
l.i".._~ 
15~ 
~ 

,.....,___ __J 
ff SCALE rec• I '--"""\. - r s ~ -...... ....._ -......_ ...__ j - .. ... ---- ... I 



Northport Industrial Park Expansion - West Improvements 
City of North Mankato 

~ 

~r~~~-· ~·~· ~-~- ~-_.> ....... ·~, ~~;.....;;.;o·· ~-·~~·~-·--~~·~~ ..... ~ 

~ Legend I I 
w 
"-
<!> 
u:: 
0 

~ 
~ 
~ ., 
j 
z 
<( 

-1-

- - 1--

PROPOSED WATERMAIN ~ v 
EXISTING WATERMAIN 

EXISTING CASING 

0 300 600 

--==---·0 - -

z 
:::; 
:;;:: 
:., 

Figure 6: Proposed Watermain l'fi:\ BOLTON 
1une201s \Q.V & MENK 

c 
CJ 

Q:: ;::;-
() '<:;/-

/ ., Cl:' .:z::-
~ "g; ;:,.: tJ 
~'-

'""'--- -- I ~ SCALE >ttI I \ . ...,_ .,,_ .. r : ,,--..... ...._ ......_ ...._ ..._ ;! ,·~ . , - - ' ~~ • ~ I 



t: ::::1 i r I r"" +· 
\.~ .. :;; t 

Prepared by: Bolton & Menk, Inc. APPENDIX 
Northport lndustl"i;il Park Expansion ··-Wt~st lrnprovernents 1 M18.114406 



PRELIMINARY ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE 
NORTHPORT INDUSTRIAL PARK EXPANSION· WEST IMPROVEMENTS 

CITY OF NORTH MANKATO, MN 

BMI PROJECT NO. M18.114406 

Item No. Item Unit Price Unit 

STREET & SURFACE 

MOBILIZATION 

TRAFFIC CONTROL 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

EXCAVATION COMMON 

COMMON EMBANKMENT 

SUBGRADE EXCAVATION 

STABILIZING AGGREGATE 

AGGREGATE SASE, CLASS 6 

GEOGRID 

TYPE SP 12.S WEAR COURSE MIX 1.5" THICK 

TYPE SP 12.S NON-WEAR COURSE MIX 2.5" THICK 

TYPE SP 12.5 NON-WEAR COURSE MIX 3" THICK 

CONCRETE CURB & GUTIER DESIGN 8618 

4" PERFORATED PVC SUBDRAIN 

2.5" BITUMINOUS TRAIL 

6" CONCRETE WALK 

TRUNCATED DOMES 

INSTALL UTILITY PROVIDED CONDUIT 

SIGN PANELS TYPE C 

4 " SOLID LINE WHITE PAINT 

4 " SOLID LINE YELLOW PAINT 

4 " BROKEN LINE YELLOW PAINT 

4" DOUBLE SOLID LINE YELLOW PAINT 

12" SOLID LINE WHITE PAINT 

PAVEMENT M ESSAGE, LEFT ARROW 

SILT FENCE TYPE MS 

STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION EXIT 

SEEDING 

MNDOT SEED M IX 2S· 131 

FERTILIZER TYPE 3 

HYDRAULIC MATRIX TYPE BONDED FIBER 

S30,000.00 LUMP SUM 

Sl,000.00 LUMP SUM 

$4.00 CU YD 

S6.50 CU YD 

$S.OO CU YD 

$30.00 CU YD 

S30.00 

$2 .00 

$6.00 

$10.00 

S12.00 

S13.SO 

ss.oo 

Sll.00 

ss.oo 

sss.oo 

ss.oo 

$60.00 

so.so 

so.so 

so.so 

so.so 

Sl.SO 

Sl00.00 

S2.2S 

CUYD 

SQYD 

SQYD 

SQYD 

SQYD 

LIN FT 

LIN FT 

SQYO 

SQFT 

SQFT 

LIN FT 

SQFT 

LIN FT 

LIN FT 

LIN FT 

LIN FT 

LIN FT 

EACH 

LIN FT 

$1,000.00 LUMP SUM 

$600.00 ACRE 

S2.SO POUND 

Sl.00 POUND 

$1.00 POUND 

STREET & SURFACE TOTAL: 

CONTINGENCY: 

TOTAL ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION COST: 

DESIGN, ADMINISTRATION AND CONSTRUCTION ENGI NEERING: 

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST · STREET AND SURFACE: 

SANITARY SEW ER 

6 

8 

9 

10 

8" SANITARY SEWER 

l S" SANITARY SEWER 

18" SANITARY SEWER 

24" SANITARY SEWER 

CONSTRUCT SAN ITARY MANHOLE 

CASTING ASSEMBLY · SANITARY 

CONNECT TO EXISTING SANITARY SEWER 

6" SAN ITARY SEWER SERVICE 

8"X6" WYE 

1S" X6" WYE 

11 18"X6" WYE 

12 LIFT STATION 

13 8" FORCEMAIN 

14 10" FORCEMAIN 

S32.00 LIN FT 

S4S.00 LIN FT 

S4S.OO LIN FT 

S60.00 LIN FT 

s2so.oo 

S600.00 

Sl,000.00 

S24.00 

S3S0.00 

S800.00 

S900.00 

LIN FT 

EACH 

EACH 

LIN FT 

EACH 

EACH 

EACH 

SS00,000.00 LUMP SUM 

S33 .00 LIN FT 

S38.00 LIN FT 

SANITARY TOTAL: 

CONTINGENCY: 

TOTAL ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION COST: 

DESIGN, ADMINISTRATION AND CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING: 

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST· SANITARY SEWER: 

liJ\\ BOLTON 
\!lY & MENK 

Real People. Real Solutions. 

Dat e: 6/27/2018 

Phase 1 Phase 2 Total 

Est Quant Amount Est Quant Amount Est Quant Amount 

0.69 

0.69 

13,686 

9,SSO 

1,369 

1,369 

9,37S 

18,7SO 

17,108 

17,108 

17,108 

6,980 

6,980 

3,100 

27,920 

44 

68S 

103 

7,418 

S,S57 

1,130 

712 

30 

41 

7,S28 

0.50 

6.lS 

739 

1,848 

21,SS6 

410 

2,790 

260 

3SO 

330 

11 

720 

11 

2,300 

2,300 

S20,700.00 

S690.00 

S54,744.00 

S62,270.00 

S6,84S.OO 

S41,070 .00 

S281,2SO.OO 

S37,SOO.OO 

S102,648.00 

Sl 71,080.00 

S205,296.00 

S94,230.00 

SSS,840.00 

S34,100.00 

S139,600.00 

S2,420.00 

SS,480.00 

S6,180.00 

S3,709.00 

S2,778.SO 

S565.00 

S356.00 

S45.00 

S4,l00.00 

S16,938.00 

ssoo.oo 

S3,690.00 

Sl,847.50 

Sl,848.00 

S21,S56.00 

Sl,379,876.00 

S138,124.00 

$1,518,000.00 

S228,000.00 

$1,746,000.00 

0.31 

0.31 

6,314 

4,420 

631 

631 

4,32S 

8,6SO 

7,892 

7,892 

7,892 

3,220 

3,220 

12,880 

20 

315 

47 

3,422 

2,S63 

S20 

328 

60 

19 

3,472 

0.50 

2.85 

341 

8S2 

9,944 

Sl3,120.00 790 

S12S,SSO.OO l,S60 

Sll,700.00 

S21,000.00 

S82,S00.00 

S6,600.00 

Sl,000.00 

S17,280.00 

S8,800.00 

S900.00 

ssoo,000.00 

S7S,900.00 

S87,400.00 

S951,750.00 

S9S,2SO.OO 

Sl,047,000.00 

S1S7,000.00 

$1,204,000.00 

180 

6 

420 

S9,300.00 1.00 

S310.00 1.00 

S2S,256.00 20,000 

S28,730.00 14,000 

S3,1SS.OO 2,000 

SlS,930.00 2,000 

$129,7SO.OO 

$17,300.00 

$47,3S2.00 

$78,9 20.00 

$94,704.00 

$43,470.00 

$25,760.00 

13,700 

27,400 

2S,OOO 

2S,OOO 

25,000 

10,200 

10,200 

3,100 

S64,400.00 40,800 

Sl,100.00 64 

S2,S20.00 1,000 

S2,820.00 l SO 

s 1. 711.00 10,840 

$1,281.50 8,120 

S260.00 1,650 

S164.00 1,040 

S90.00 90 

$1,900.00 60 

S7,812.00 11,000 

ssoo.oo 

Sl,710.00 

S8S2.SO 

S8S2.00 

S9,944.00 

$620,854.00 

S62,146.00 

$683,000.00 

S102,000.00 

$785,000.00 

9 

1,080 

2,700 

31,SOO 

S2S,280.00 1,200 

$70,200.00 4,3SO 

S4 S,OOO.OO 

$3,600.00 

$10,080.00 

S700.00 

$4,000.00 

Sl SS,860.00 

S16,140.00 

Sl 7S,000.00 

S26,000.00 

$201,000.00 

260 

3SO 

SlO 

17 

1,140 

2 

16 

2,300 

2,300 

S30,000.00 

Sl,000.00 

$80,000.00 

S91,000.00 

$10,000.00 

$60,000.00 

$411,000.00 

$54,800.00 

$150,000.00 

s2so,ooo.oo 

S300,000.00 

$137,700.00 

$81,600.00 

$34,100.00 

$204,000.00 

S3,520.00 

SS,000.00 

S9,000.00 

$S,420.00 

S4,060.00 

$82S.OO 

SS20.00 

S13S.OO 

$6,000.00 

S24,750.00 

Sl,000.00 

SS,400.00 

S2,700.00 

$2,700.00 

$31,SOO.OO 

$2,000, 730.00 

$200,270.00 

$2,201,000.00 

$330,000.00 

$2,531,000.00 

$38,400.00 

$19S, 7S0.00 

$11,700.00 

$21,000.00 

$127,SOO.OO 

$10,200.00 

$1,000.00 

S27,360.00 

S700.00 

$12,800.00 

$900.00 

$500,000.00 

$7S,900.00 

$87,400.00 

$1,110,610.00 

$111,390.00 

Sl ,222,000.00 

$183,000 .00 

Sl,405,000.00 



PRELIMINARY ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE 
NORTHPORT INDUSTRIAL PARK EXPANSION - WEST IMPROVEMENTS 

CITY OF NORTH MANKATO, MN 

BMI PROJECT NO. MlS.114406 

Item No. Item Unit Price Unit 

WATERMAIN 

6" WATERMAIN 

8" WATERMAIN 

12" WATERMAIN 

4 16" WATERMAIN 

TRENCHLESS 12" WATERMAIN (THROUGH EXISTING 

CASING) 

6 TRENCHLESS 8" WATERMAIN W/ CASING 

TRENCHLESS 12" WATERMAIN W/ CASING 

8 6" WATER SERVICE 

9 6" GATE VALVE & BOX 

10 8" GATE VALVE & BOX 

11 12" GATE VALVE & BOX 

12 16" GATE VALVE & BOX 

13 CONNECT TO EXISTING WATERMAIN 

14 WATERMAIN FITIINGS 

lS 2" POLYSTYRENE INSULATION 

16 HYDRANT 

$28.00 LIN FT 

$30.00 LIN FT 

$37.00 LIN FT 

$48.00 LIN FT 

$40.00 LIN FT 

$300.00 LIN FT 

$350.00 LIN FT 

$28.00 LIN FT 

$1,500.00 EACH 

$1,750.00 EACH 

$3,000.00 

$8,500.00 

$1,000.00 

EACH 

EACH 

EACH 

$7.00 POUND 

$20.00 SQ YO 

$3,800.00 EACH 

WATERMAIN TOTAL: 

CONTINGENCY: 

TOTAL ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION COST: 

DESIGN, ADMINISTRATION ANO CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING: 

STORM SEWER & POND 

12" STORM SEWER 

24" STORM SEWER 

30" STORM SEWER 

4 36" STORM SEWER 

42" STORM SEWER 

6 60" STORM SEWER 

24" APRON 

8 36" APRON 

60" APRON 

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST - WATERMAIN: 

$40.00 

$54.00 

$70.00 

LIN FT 

LIN FT 

LIN FT 

$100.00 LIN FT 

$120.00 LIN FT 

$180.00 LIN FT 

$1,000.00 EACH 

$1,500.00 EACH 

$2, 750.00 EACH 

CONSTRUCT STORM MANHOLE $450.00 LIN FT 

8 CONSTRUCT CATCH BASIN $250.00 LIN FT 

9 CONNECT TO EXISTING STORM SEWER $1,000.00 EACH 

10 4"-12" TILE REPAIR $15.00 LIN FT 

11 CASTING ASSEMBLY ·STORM $600.00 EACH 

12 PONO EXCAVATION $4.00 CU YD 

13 POND SKIMMER $10,000.00 EACH 

14 RIPRAP CLASS Ill $70.00 CU YD 

STORM SEWER & PONO TOTAL: 

CONTINGENCY: 

TOTAL ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION COST: 

DESIGN, ADMINISTRATION AND CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING: 

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST-STORM SEWER & POND: 

TOTAL ESTIMATED PROJECT COST: 

tM;\ BOLTON 
~&MENK 

Real People. Real Solutions. 

Date: 6/27 /2018 

Phase 1 Phase 2 Total 

Est Quant Amount Est Quant Amount Est Quant Amount 

480 

6,250 

3,450 

470 

150 

720 

36 

8 

4 

4 

10,500 

180 

24 

1,200 

350 

600 

2,900 

800 

500 

250 

160 

400 

65 

75,000 

1 

300 

$13,440.00 

$231,250.00 

$165,600.00 

$18,800.00 

$52,500.00 

80 

1,600 

100 

$20,160.00 420 

$54,000.00 11 

$24,000.00 

$34,000.00 

$4,000.00 

$73,500.00 500 

$3,600.00 20 

$91,200.00 4 

$786,050.00 

$78,950.00 

$865,000.00 

$130,000.00 

$995,000.00 

$48,000.00 

$18,900.00 400 

$42,000.00 800 

$290,000.00 

$96,000.00 

$90,000.00 

$2,000.00 

$3,000.00 

$2,750.00 

$112,500.00 

$40,000.00 

$2,000.00 

60 

48 

$6,000.00 100 

$39,000.00 18 

$300,000.00 

$10,000.00 

$21,000.00 

$1,123,150.00 

$111,850.00 

$1,235,000.00 

$185,000.00 

$1,420,000.00 

$5,365,000.00 

$2,240.00 560 

$48,000.00 1,600 

6,250 

3,450 

470 

$30,000.00 100 

150 

$11,760.00 1,140 

$16,SOO.OO 47 

$3,500.00 

8 

4 

4 

$3,500.00 11,000 

$400.00 200 

SlS,200.00 28 

$131,100.00 

$12,900.00 

$144,000.00 

$22,000.00 

$166,000.00 

1,200 

$21,600.00 750 

$56,000.00 1,400 

$27,000.00 

$12,000.00 

$1,500.00 

$10,800.00 

$128,900.00 

$13, 100.00 

$142,000.00 

$21,000.00 

$163,000.00 

$1,315,000.00 

2,900 

800 

500 

310 

208 

500 

83 

75,000 

300 

$15,680.00 

$48,000.00 

$231,2SO.OO 

$165,600.00 

$18,800.00 

$30,000.00 

$52,500.00 

$31,920.00 

$70,500.00 

$3,500.00 

$24,000.00 

$34,000.00 

$4,000.00 

$77,000.00 

$4,000.00 

$106,400.00 

$917,150.00 

$91,8SO.OO 

$1,009,000.00 

$152,000.00 

$1,161,000.00 

$48,000.00 

$40,500.00 

$98,000.00 

$290,000.00 

$96,000.00 

$90,000.00 

$2,000.00 

$3,000.00 

$2,750.00 

$139,500.00 

$52,000.00 

$2,000.00 

$7,500.00 

$49,800.00 

$300,000.00 

$10,000.00 

$21,000.00 

$1,252,050.00 

$124,950.00 

$1,377,000.00 

$206,000.00 

$1,583,000.00 

$6,680,000.00 



Services Provided: 

Civil & Municipal Engineering 

Water & Wastewater Engineering 

Transportation Planning & Engineering 

Structural Engineering 

Aviation Services 

Water Resources Engineering 

Landscape Architecture 

Land Surveying 

Geographic Information System 

Project Funding & Financing 

Bolton-Menk.com 



Project Location/Background ~ c•n°• 

• Project considers expansion of the 
Northport Industrial Park to the 
west 

• Improvements considered : 
o Sanitary sewer/lift station 

o Watermain and looping 

o Storm sewer/regional stormwater 
pond. 

o St reet and surface improvements -
bituminous street, bituminous trail, 
concrete sidewalk 

• City Council authorized preparation 
of a preliminary engineering report 
on April 2, 2018 

~ 
:!i 

~ 
CARlSON DRIVE ~ 

6/28/2018 

1 



Existing Conditions __ 1 c•n °' 

• 
Land Use: 
o Currently agricultura l land 
o Comprehensive Plan - designated for Commercial/Industrial Mixed and Heavy Industrial 
o Existing platted property south of Carlson Drive Extension: 

Mayo Clinic Addit ion 
Harrison Truck Addit ion 
Both currently undeveloped 

Carlson Drive: 
o Extended approx. 900' west of CSAH 41 in 2015/2016 
o 44' street section with curb and gutter 
o 8' concrete walk on the north side 
o 8' bituminous trail on the south side 
o 18" sanitary sewer - too shallow to extend further west 
o 16" watermain 
o No storm sewer 

Wetlands 
o No delineation performed outside storm water pond area 
o Likely that wetlands will be present - will need to be mitigated 

Proposed Street and Surface Improvements :.L c•n°' 

New 44-foot wide street - 2 
lanes of traffic and center turn 
lane 

Industrial pavement section -
same as used on 2015/2016 
Carlson Drive extension 

8' w ide concrete sidewalk on 
north side (Carlson Drive and 
Unnamed Road) 

8' bituminous t rial on south 
side (Carlson Drive only) 

• Temporary erosion control and 
permanent turf est ablishment 

_,,_ 
~ttt:liliWll 

6/28/2018 

2 



Proposed Storm Sewer :_i_ c•TYOF 

Storm sewer pipe ranging in size from 12-inches to 60-
inches in diameter with manholes and in lets as 
required 
Proposed storm water detention basin located at the 
exist ing Mn DOT pond 

o Expand and convert to wet pond 
o Provide storm water management for TH 14 and industrial 

park area 
o Shared use agreement between the City and MnDDT for the 

joint use of the storm water pond 
Storm sewer pipe and stormwater pond sizing based on 
1 cfs/acre - future industrial park developments w ill 
need additional storm water management 
Large storm sewer (36" to 60") proposed to car ry runoff 
from ag land north of Timm Road to the stormwater 
pond 

- - - - -------~- --~- - ~ - - - - - - - - -

Proposed Sanitary Sewer Lift Station ::r c'" 0
' 

Existing sanitary sewer too shallow to extend 
west 
New lift station required 
Ultimate service area - 971 acres 

o 794 acres of industrial 
o 177 acres of residential 
o Ultimate lift station capacity- 2,300 gpm 

Initia l lift station design criteria: 
o 160 acres of industrial 
o 77 acres of residential 
o Initial lift station capacity-520 gpm 
o Lift station structure and other components 

will be designed to allow increase of 
capacity in the future 

Initial lift station design criteria: 
o Carlson Drive/Countryside Trunk Sanitary 

Sewer capacity may ultimately become 
controlling factor for future capacity 

o Flow monitoring will be performed to verify 
available capacity 

6/28/2018 

3 



• Proposed sanitary sewer sizes: 
o 24" diameter - Carlson Drive to lift 

station 
o 15" diameter - Carlson Drive 
o 8 11 diameter - Unnamed Road and 

Timm Road 
o Upsized from the typical 8-inch 

sa nitary sewer main - capacity for 
future development to the north and 
west 

• Gasketed pipe, manholes with sealed 
joints & watertight connections 

• Service stubs for each lot 

Proposed Watermain :::i: c•TY OF 

• Proposed watermain sizes: 
• 16" diameter - Carlson Drive 
• 12" diameter - Timm Road 
• 12" loop across TH 14 (casing already in 

place 
• Carlson Drive 
• 811 diameter - Unnamed Road 
• Upsized from the t ypica l 8"waterm ain 

- capacity for fu ture development t o 
the north and west & looping with the 
existing perimeter trunk watermain 
loop ing system 

• Hydrants, va lves and serv ice stubs 

- - - --L-: - - - =-- - - - -""""-"'"'"-r- - -
' 

6/28/2018 

4 



Proposed Construction Phasing '. L c•n°r 

• Phase 1: 
• Sanitary sewer lift station 
• Regional stormwater pond 
• Street, storm sewer, sanitary sewer, and watermain, infrastructure on Carlson Drive 
• Watermain looping along the north side of Timm Road and under Trunk Highway 14 (casing 

previously installed) 
• Storm sewer construction along lot lines from Timm Road to regional stormwater pond to 

accommodate existing stormwater from agricultural areas north of Timm Road 
• Phase 2: 

• Street, storm sewer, sanitary sewer, and watermain, infrastructure on the Unnamed Street 
• Watermain crossing Timm Road at the unnamed street 
• Sanitary sewer along the south side of Timm Road 

• Schedule for initiating each phase of the project will be dependent on severa l factors, 
including: 

Industrial development activity 
Negotiations with land owners for right-of-way/easements 

• Availability of grant funding for the project 

Estimated Project Costs ·:-L c•" 0 ' 

Estimated Pro ect Costs 

Estimated Cost 

Item Phase 1 Phase 2 Total 

Street & Surface $1,746,000 $785,000 $2,531,000 

Sanita Sewer $1,204,000 $201,000 $1,405,000 

Watermain $995,000 $166,000 $1,161,000 

Storm Sewer & Pond $1,420,000 $163,000 $1,583,000 

Total: $5,365,000 $1,315,000 $6,680,000 

Estimated costs include allowances for contingencies, administrative, engineering and 
financing costs 

6/28/2018 

5 



Anticipated Financing __ 1 cinor 

• Special assessments on property to be annexed into the 
City 

• Property tax levy - for deferred assessments that are not 
collectible at the time of the construction 

• Enterprise funds (utility oversizing costs) 

• Possible Greater Minnesota Publ ic Infrastructure Grant 
through Department of Employment and Economic 
Development (DEED) 

Questions/Discussion '_l cin OP 

6/28/2018 

6 



CITY OF NORTH MANKATO 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

!Agenda Item #11 F llDepartment: Administration rouncil Meeting Date: 7/2/ 18 I 
TITLE OF ISSUE: Consider Authorizing Staff to execute Change Order to Facilitate Spring Lake Swim Facility 
Upgrades. 

BACKGROUND AND SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION: Finance Director McCann provided a memo 
discussing the financing of the facility upgrades and Mr. Herman Dharmarajah from Bolton & Menk provided a 
memo on the project. City staff will discuss proposed upgrades to the Spring Lake Park Swim Facility. 

If additional space is required, allach a separate sheet 

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION: Authorize Staff to Execute Change Orders Related to the Pool Bottom, 
ADA Compliance and Slide Features. 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS ATTACHED 

Motion By: Resolution Ordinance Contract Minutes Map 
Second By: 

c:=J c:=J c=J c:=J c:=J 
Vote Record: Aye Nay 

Whitlock ---- Other (specify) Memos, PowerPoint, Pictures 
Steiner ----
Norland ----

----Frey berg 
Dehen ----

c:=J Workshop c=J Refer to : 

[][]Regular Meeting c=J Table until: 

c:=J Special Meeting c:=J Other: 



l'M:\ BOLTON 
\!JJ) & MENK 

Real People. Real Solutions. 

June 27, 2018 

Mayor and Council Members 
City of North Mankato 
I 00 I Belgrade A venue 
North Mankato, MN 56003 

RE: Spring Lake Park Swim Pond Renovation and Upgrade Project 
Project No.: M22. I I 52 I l 

Dear Mayor and Council Members: 

1960 Premier Drive 
Mankato, MN 56001-590C 

Ph: (5071 625-4171 
Fax: (5071 625-4177 

Bolton-Menk.com 

At the March 19, 20 18 Counci l meeting, the Counci l awarded the project to Global Specialties Contractor 
for the bid amount of $2,2 14,700. At the time of the award, the liner submitted as part of the construction 
package was determined to be of good enough quality to use for the swim pond base instead of covering it 
with approximately one foot of sand as required in the bid documents. Continued consideration of this 
issue was made because one of the primary quest ions received during early stages of the swim pond 
renovation project was whether or not the pool bottom would be transi tioned to concrete like other swim 
facilities in southern Minnesota. 

The city staff, Bolton & Menk, and pool consultant, USAquatics, evaluated this option and other 
modifications that are available for the Council to consider because of favorable responses to bids this 
spring and the already approved funds in the 20 18 budget. The modifications and enhancements to be 
considered are as follows: 

I. Exposed liner in the pond bottom in lieu of the sand bottom 

2. Zero-depth entry to the pond in lieu of ADA-compliant access ramp 

3. Addition of an open flume slide and a toddler slide with the current project in lieu of install ing 
them at a future date 

The following is an evaluation of advantages and disadvantages and the additional costs for the proposed 
modifications to the project. 

1. Exposed Liner vs Sand Bottom 

The sand bottom pond was retained in the design and specified in the contract documents to 
maintain Minnesota Department of Health (MOH) "Swim Pond" classification. This classification 
does not require the entire pond volume of water to be turned over in four hours or less as in a 
swimming pool. The current turnover rate of the swim pond is 18 hours and it will be improved to 
12 hours with the upgrade already bid. 

Discussion with MOH staff indicated that Spring Lake Park Swim Pond wi ll be able to retain the 
"Swim Pond" c lassification with an exposed liner at the pond bottom with no sand. 

H:\ NMAN\ M22115211\ l_Corrcs\C_To Othcrs\2018·06·27 City CO Rcq Ltr.docx 



Mayor and Council Members 
City of North Mankato 
Page 2 

The PVC liner proposed by the contractor has been used in many swimming pools in Minnesota, 
other states, and in Europe as exposed pool liner. 

The major benefit in modifying the swim pond with an exposed liner with no sand bottom is the 
clarity of the water in the swim pond. With proposed upgrades to the swim pond, the bather load 
will be increased from 250 people to 500 people. Therefore, the safety of the bathers will be 
critical and less turbid water will improve the safety tremendously. 

The additional cost to provide exposed liner is estimated to be $ 163,000. 

The only reason not to proceed with this modification at a potential safety risk is to satisfy some 
swim pond users who prefer a sand bottom swim pond for nostalgia. 

2. Zero-Depth Pond Entry vs ADA-Compl iant Ramp 

As designed and bid, the contract documents provided a 52-foot ADA-compliant access ramp with 
a 20-foot by I 0-foot loading pad for people to enter the pond. The proposed enhancement will 
provide a zero-depth entry area that is approximately 150 feet long at the SE corner of the swim 
pond. 

This modification will require additional inlet jets and a stainless steel gutter. This modification 
will also add 12 bubbler jets. 

The estimated additional cost for this modification is $82,000. 

This modification will eliminate the ADA-compliant ramp and provide a more pleasant entry way 
for all bathers. 

3. Open Flume Slide and Toddler Slide 

The design provided for an open flume slide and a toddler slide to be installed at a future date. 
The open flume slide and the toddler slide were removed after the first bidding process failed. The 
city finance director, Kevin McCann, has indicated the proposed bond will have necessary 
additional funds to install these slides with the present contract. The estimated cost for the slides 
are as follows: 

Open Flume Slide Estimated Cost $180,000 

Toddler Slide Estimated Cost $ 95,000 

Total Cost for Slides $275,000 

4. Change Order Request for the Swim Pond Project. 

The total change order request for the proposed modifications are as fo llows: 

Item No. Description Estimated Costs 

1 Exposed Liner $ 163,000 

2 Zero Depth Entry $ 82,000 

3 Open Flume and Toddler Sl ides $275,000 

Total $520,000 

H:\ NMAN\ M22! 1521 1\l_Corrcs\C_To Othcrs\2018·06·27 City CO Rcq Ltr.docx 

Bolton & Mr.1k 1~ an eqtJ.dl opportunity emplo1tr 



Mayor and Council Members 
City of North Mankato 
Page 3 

Sincerely, 

Bolton & Menk, Inc. 

(/l~ 
Herman Dharmarajah, Ph.D., P.E. 
Senior Principal Engineer 

cc: Dan Sarff - Bolton & Menk, Inc. 
John Harrenstein, City Administrator 

H:\NMAN\ M22115211\l _Corrcs\C_To Oihcrs\2018·06·27 Ciiy CO Rcq lir.docx 



To: 
From: 
Date: 

John Harrenstein, City Administrator 
Kevin McCann, Finance Director 
June 27, 2018 

City of North Mankato, Minnesota 

Re: Spring Lake Swim Facility Improvements and Financing 

Overview 

The Spring Lake Park Swim Facility was constructed in 1969, serving the City of North Mankato and area 
residents for 50 summers. Over the last several years, staff has been discussing needed improvements to the 
facility and the related financing. This memo will serve as an overview of the facility needs and financing 

Background 

Beginning in 2015, staff identified the need to replace the filters in order to bring the water clarity up to safety 
standards and budgeted $90,000 in tlie 2016 Capital Facility and Equipment Replacement Fund. The work 
was not completed in 2016. Another evaluation was done by the Public Works Director in the summer of 2016 
which determined that not only were filters needed, but pumps as well for an estimated cost of $350,000. 
Given the increased cost and other issues associated with the aging infrastructure of the swim pond, it was 
determined to complete a facility assessment to generate cost estimates for repairing vs. reconstructing the 
facility. 

US Aquatics completed their assessment of the fac ility on February 23, 2017 which was presented at the March 
20, 2017 Council Meeting. This report indicated the flow of the pumps, circulation, filtration rate, drain size, 
and lack of a surge tank were all needed to be updated, or in the case of the surge tank, added to the facility. 
There were also issues identified with the liner, inlets, wall conditions, and pipes. The estimated costs for all 
these improvements totaled $ 1.44 million. The proposed play features and amenities to make it a community 
attraction consisting of a climbing wall, spray bars in shallow area, water slides, a zip line, and pool heaters 
were estimated to $617,000 for a grand total for the project of $2.057 million. The council accepted this report 
and executed a contract with USAquatics to complete the final design and specifications for the project. 

At the June 5, 201 7 Council Meeting, the final plans and specifications were presented to the council and were 
approved, along with authorizing the bidding process for the swim faci lity project. As this was occurring, the 
City's Financial Advisor was preparing a timeline and process for financing the project. After reviewing the 
cost estimates, estimated cost increases due to inflation with added interest costs, it was determined an 
abatement amount of $3.3 million would be sufficient to cover the project. On September 5, 2017, the Council 
held a public hearing on the abatement amount and a TEFRA hearing (related to the YMCA managing the 
facility). 

On October 2, 2017 the sole bid for the project came in at $2. 7 million dollars. Staff recommended to the 
Council to reject the bid because it was approximately $700,000 greater than the engineered estimates. Staff 
was then directed to redesign the faci lity improvements in an effort to bring the cost of the project closer to the 
estimate. In March of this year, the facil ity was rebid with a single bid again, but this time well within the 
engineer's estimate of $2.2 million. The changes made in the redesign led to a savings of $500,000 from the 
original bid. 

The City Counci l has received a memo from Bolten and Menk recommending the consideration of changes to 
the bid accepted earlier this year including alternatives for the use of a liner instead of a sand bottom, 
installation of a zero depth entry instead of the ADA ramp, and installation of two pool slides removed after 
the original bid failed. These alternatives are estimated at $520,000. While the base bid amount was $2.2 
million, after including engineering, design, construction management, permits, and contingency, the swim 
pond portion project is estimated to cost a total of $2.7 million. With the proposed $520,000 in alternatives, 

New Swim Facility Project Memo.docx 



the total cost of the project will be $3.2 million. When the warming house facility is added to the debt issue, 
the total bond proceeds needed for the project are $3 .850 million. 

Financing 

Since the revised project costs exceeds the $3.3 million abatement amount previously approved, the Council 
will need rescind this abatement and set the abatement amount for at least $3 .9 million as proposed in 
attachment A. 

When developing the 2018 CIP, staff was uncertain of the final swim facility costs and used $3.0 million for 
the project, along with $1.575 in other capital projects as shown below: 

2018 CIP - Bondina 
Program 2018 

Proiect Area Pro nosed 2018 Revised Financina Notes 
Swim Facility Project/Warming As currently 
House Communitv Room Recreation 3,000,000 3,850,000 estimated 

Jefferson Ave. Reconstruct Infrastructure 400,000 461,400 As bid 
50% grant funding, 

North Port Exoansion Infrastructure 425,000 - 50% cash on hand 

Anchoraae Dr. Extension Infrastructure 500,000 - Privatelv Financed 
Financed with Cash 

Marie Lane Extension Infrastructure 250,000 - On-hand ··-

TOTAL 4,575,000 4,311,400 

In terms of the CIP, staff estimated $4.575 initially compared to the revised costs of $4.3114, a savings of 
$263,600. The CIP is only one aspect of financing a project and there is also the fact of how it will it be paid 
for in terms of debt financing and repayment with debt service payments. 

In developing the 2018 debt service fund, staff has determined that the City can now comfo1iably borrow $2.0 
million per year to meet infrastructure, deferred maintenance, and other community priorities, while 
maintaining a relatively flat debt service levy and paying off existing debt. With this identified and the fact 
that no debt was issued in 2017, staff determined that $5.0 million could be financed in 2018, with $3 .0 million 
going toward the swim facility and $2.0 million for miscellaneous infrastructure projects identified in the CIP. 
Under this initial scenario, the city would be adding $5.0 million in debt to be repaid with the existing tax levy 
forecast. With the revised CIP presented above and adding the cost of issuance to the bonds, the total debt 
issue would be $4.475 million, $525,000 under the $5.0 initial projection. Staff has now taken these revised 
estimates and included 2017 audited cash balances, which show an even healthier cash balance than initially 
estimated (see table one), and entered them in the 2019 debt service fund budget including the $2.0 in annual 
debt issuance to project the cash forecasts in the future years as shown below: 



95% 

85% 

75% 

65% 

55% 

45% 

35% 

Recommendation 

2019 
Forecast 

TABLE ONE:Debt Service Fund Cash as% of 

Expenditures 

2020 

Forecast 
2021 

Forecast 
2022 

Forecast 
2023 

Forecast 
2024 

Forecast 

~Original 2018 Budget with 5.0 mil lion of debt issuance 

~ 2019 Budget Forecast w ith 4.475 million of debt issuance 

2025 
Forecast 

Based on the fact that many updates are the needed to the swim facility, the facility is a summer staple for 
North Mankato, and the time to make improvements with new amenities to a facility is when it is already 
under construction, and the fact that the financing is well within the City's ability to repay the debt, my 
conclusion is funding the $520,000 in changes to the original amount approved by the City Council will not 
negatively impact the city's financial position. Given the long term nature of the improvements, I recommend 
proceeding with the additional costs to the project. 



ATTACHMENT A 

Onie Action l~es11v11sil>lc Pnrty 
July 16 City Council rescinds Resolution No. 60-17 City Council Action 

approving property tax abatements 

City Council calls for public hearing for property 
tax abatement and TEFRA 

July 23 Deadline for publication of notice of property tax City 
abatement public hearing (must publish at least 
14-days prior to hearing date) 

July 30 Tax Abatement Resolution sent to City for Council Northland, Bond Counsel 
Packets 

Set Sale Resolution for 2018A Bonds Sent to City 
for Council Packets 

Finance Plan for 2018A Bonds Sent to the City 

August 6 Tax abatement and TEFRA public hearing City Council Action, 
Northland, Bond Counsel 

City Council approves Tax Abatement Resolution 

City Council approves Set Sale Resolution for 
2018A Bonds 

October 24 Preliminary Official Statement Sent to City for Northland, City 
Sign Off and to Rating Agency (S&P) 

Week of November 5 Rating Conference Call Northland, City, Rating 
Agency 

November 21 Rating Received Rating Agency, City, 
Northland 

December3 Bond Sale - 10:30 a.m. City Council Action, 
Northland, Bond Counsel 

Authorizing Resolution Adopted - 7:00 p.m. 

December 20 Closing on the Bonds (Proceeds available) Northland, City Staff, 
Bond Counsel 



~~~~ 
~ 

~ OUTLINE OF 
MINIMUM 
LANDING AREA 

Spring Lake Park - North Mankato, Minnesota, United States 

DJ'4ilt1TtH!'!Wlf i!'Lli 

lOIGh«) ICllOt<r"\ICMCl,.L 

Mini Body Side I 33 3 4.9 I Kids 

Ra0"9 Sloo I 19.0 4.9 I Kids 

_,. 

am?:Jmna:'if't'!'.'1'.1::1 

This document is copyright and the proprietary information herein are the sole property or Whitewater West Industries Ltd. and may not be reproduced or distributed w ithout prior consent of Whitewater w est Industries Ltd. 
The proposal layout shown is a concept only and may be subject to change. 

40987 SK- 2 

MODEL: 40987A2 

DATE: May 16.2018 

OESICNER: G.S. 

OR AFTER: l.Z. 

SCALE: 1/8"•1'·0" 

PAGE: PAGE10Fl 

•1'WHlfE\\:\TER 



ll'.JrtGn<(., "°°'"~~ 

M;n; Body Slldo I 33.3 

Ramp s1;oo I 19 0 

lrowERI 
T.0,!'LATFORM 

EL. SOFL 

~ 

s.o I Km 

s.o I Kids 

Spring Lake Park - North Mankato, Minnesota, United States 

/ 

' 

D',U:ttNlttmVJQ!'.!C!I 

/ ,.,. ,.,. 

' 
' , 

ll,W?!!jjT'lrn:\"IC'WJ:::l 

This d ocument is copyright and the proprietary information herein are the sole property o f Whitewater West Industries ltd. and may not be reproduced or distributed w ithout prior consent of Whitewater West Industries Ltd. 
The proposal layout shown is a concept only and may be subject to change. 

40987 SK-1 

MODEL.: 40987Al 

DATE: May07, 2018 

DESIGNER: C.S. 

ORAnER: L.Z. 

SCALE: 1/8"•1'·0" 

PACE: PACE1 0 F 1 

•1' WHITE\\~\ H:R 



' ' i 
' l 
' 

/_/,,/ 

i;'j / 
~~ 

' 

,. 

i 
i 

/' 

1 ll'il: 
! ! 

//~/-11 

~~~~ 

,' 

;~-~-~--

' 

P<'.'21 
.~ 









CITY OF NORT H MANKATO 

TO: 

FROM: 
DATE: 
SUBJECT: 

MEMORANDUM 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 
John Harrenstein, City Administrator 

Mike Fischer, Community Development Director 
June 22, 2018 

Rental Density Advisory Committee Report 

At a City Council Workshop on June 18, 2018, staff presented the final Rental Density 

Committee report. As a result, the Council requested that staff obtain additional data regarding 

rental strikes, number of licenses issued and number of inspections performed since September 
of 2016. Attached is a summary of that data. Also attached are the minutes of the six (6) 

committee meetings which occurred from November of 2016 to April of 2018. 

Regarding any potential rent increases as a result of the 10% rental density cap, as recorded in 

the April 2018 minutes, staff contacted both Lloyd Management and Atwood Management to 

discuss this issue. These two companies manage hundreds of rental units in the City. According 

to both companies, there were no rent increases implemented as a result of the rental density 
cap. Additionally, staff contacted the South Central MN Multi-County HRA regarding this issue 

which reported no known rent increases as a result of the rental density cap. Furthermore, as 
there were two (2) landlords on the Rental Density Committee, both acknowledged they did 

not increase rents as a result of the rental density cap. 

Cu rrently, the City licenses 1,620 rental units and continues to issue rental licenses in all parts 
of the community. 

In summary, the Rental Density Committee did an outstanding job reviewing in the revisions to 

the Rental Code and their recommendations were based on ensuring rental density limits 

achieve the best living environment for both homeowners and renters. 



6/21/2018 

Data collected since Amending the North Mankato Rental Licensing Code on 
September 6, 2016 

New Rental Licenses issued: 

R-1: 10 licenses 

OR-1: 8 licenses 

R-3: 4 licenses 

R-4: 2 licenses 

Total: 24 licenses 

Rental Strikes issued: 

Valley: 9 strikes 

Hilltop: 5 strikes 

Total: 14 strikes 

Number of Inspections 

Includes inspections for new licenses, license transfers, strikes, complaints, and periodic 
inspections of existing rentals which began in January 2018. 

Total: 196 inspections 



1 

RENTAL DENSITY ADVISORY GROUP MINUTES November 17, 2016 

The first meeting of the North Mankato Rental Density Advisory Group was held on 
November 17, 2016 at 6:00 p.m. in the Police Annex. The following were present: Christine 
Good, Jim Mongeau, Mary Lynn Ricsch, Jolm l3aker, Adam 1-!uiras, Jack Kolars, City 
Administrator Harrenstein, City Planner Fischer, Police Chief Boyer, Building Official Knudson 
and Deputy Clerk Anderson. 

Administrator Harrenstein gave an overview of the North Mankato Comprehensive Land 
Use Plan adopted earlier this year which includes policy to recommend limiting owner occupied 
homes from being converted into rental in certain zoning districts. As a result of the Plan, a 
Rental Density Study was conducted which showed high rental unit concentration in certain 
areas of the City. Feedback at the rental density public meetings revealed concerns from 
residents regarding the condition of existing rentals and increased number of rental dwellings. As 
a result, the City Council formed the Rental Density Advisory Group to advise the Council 
regarding the goals and objectives of the Comprehensive Land Use Plan and the Rental Density 
Study as they relate to maintaining residential properties to a high standard, ensuring rental 
density limits achieve the best living cnvirornnent for homeowners and renters and to propose 
changes to the enforcement standards for rental properties. 

Administrator Harrcnstein reviewed the seven newly adopted amendments to the Rental 
Code which include: conduct on licensed premises and how strikes can be issued, rental strike 
policy including fines, required parking space for new licenses, inspection requirements for 
properties receiving a rental strike, 10% rental density cap for properties located in the R-A, R-1, 
R-1 S and R-2 zoning districts, temporary rental licenses, and required tenant occupancy for new 
license applications. 

Group members were asked to share their thoughts regarding goals and opportunities to 
create from the committee. The following topics were presented and discussed: building safety 
for tenants and dealing with difficult landlords, communication/education for tenants and 
landlords, neighborhood safety in high density rental areas, exterior appearance of rental 
properties, future rental trends, parking issues, stronger enforcement language in the city code 
and ensuring property inspections arc conducted. 

It was discussed that the group will need time to collect more data lo establish specific 
recommendations to present to the City Council. The proposed date to have a draft of 
recommendations for the Council is August 2017. It was agreed the next meeting will be held on 
Monday, January 23, 2017 at 6:00 p.m.in the Police Annex. 

The meeting adjourned at 7:30 p.rn. 



RENTAL DENSITY ADVISORY GROUP MINUTES January 23, 2017 

The second meeting of the North Mankato Rental Density Advisory Group was held on January 23, 2017 
at 6:00 p.m. in the Police Annex. The following were present: Jim Mongeau, Mary Lynn Riesch, John 
Baker, Adam 1-luiras, City Administrator John Harrenstein, Community Development Director Mike 
Fischer, Police Chief Chris Boyer, Deputy Clerk Heather Anderson and Building Official Dave Knudson. 

Staff presented the minutes for the November 17, 2016 Rental Density Advisory Group meeting. 

Deputy Clerk Anderson provided an update on the rental licensing program since amendments were made 
to the rental licensing code in September of 2016. The update included the number of calls received 
related to rental licensing, the number of I icenses issued, number of renta I strikes issued and number of 
inspections performed. 

Police Chief Boyer provided information regarding the implementation ofa landlord alert program where 
staff will contact a landlord whenever there is a police call to a rental dwelling, except in cases of 
domestic abuse. Chief Boyer indicated this is a similar effo11 that the City of' St. Paul implemented. 

Adam Huiras provided a report on the current National and local demand for rental housing. He lndicatcd 
that all generations are renting, the local rental vacancy rates are low and that area rents arc slightly 
higher than other comparable cities. Adam also summarized the contents of lease agreements he uses as 
well as conducting backgrnund checks on perspective tenants. 

Staff summarized the purpose of the group including reporting to the City Council after a comprehensive 
review of the amendments previously made to the Rental Licensing Code. Based on the review and 
discussions held so far, staff presented preliminary written recommendations to be prnsented to the City 
Council including: off street parking, building inspections, safety of rental structures, landlord education 
and rental density. After review of the feedback, the group was in support of the proposed 
recommendations as presented. 

Staffreponed that tenants can use an online tenant complaint form to report any issues they arc having 
with the condition of their rental dwelling. Jim Mongeau shared information with the group about fire 
safety issues within dwellings. 

The group set the next meeting for March 27, 2017 at 6:00 p.m. in the Police Annex. 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:00 p.111. 



RENTAL DENSITY ADVISORY GROUP MINUTES March 27, 2017 

The third meeting of the North Mankato Rental Density Advisory Group was held on 
March 27, 2017 at 6:00 p.m. in the Police Annex. The following were present: Christine Good, 
Jim Mongeau, Mary Lynn Riesch, John Baker, Adam Huiras, Jack Kolars, City Administrator 
Harrenstcin, City Planner Fischer, Police Chief Boyer, Building Official Knudson and Deputy 
Clerk Anderson. 

1 

Staff presented the minutes for the January 23, 2017 Rental Advisory Group meeting. 

Deputy Clerk Anderson provided an update on the rental licensing program since the 
group's previous meeting on January 23, 2017. The update included the number of calls received 
related to rental licensing, the number of licenses issued, number of rental strikes issued and 
number of inspections performed. 

Building Official Knudson reviewed the process of conducting rental inspections on 
properties including items that are inspected and the challenges of working with rental property 
owners who do not meet correction dcacllincs. Discussion was held on ways to enforce 
inspection deadlines which included issuing rental strikes which the group felt would be an 
effective method of enforcement. How often rental properties are routinely being inspected was 
discussed including staffing demands. J\11 were in agreement of implementing regular 
inspections to ensure the safety and welfare of tenants. 

Community Development Director Fischer reviewed the current rental license fees which 
are a $25.00 one-time application fee and $30.00 per unit for the annual license. Discussion was 
held regarding raising rental fees to provide routine inspections of rental properties. It was noted 
that the City of Mankato is at $45.00 per rental unit and their rental properties arc inspected 
every 3 years. John Baker indicated he felt the annual license fee should not exceed $45.00 per 
unit. 

It was agreed the next meeting will be held on Monday, June 12, 2017 at 6:00 p.rn.in the 
Police Annex. 

The meeting adjourned at 7:30 p.m. 



RENTAL DENSITY ADVISORY GROUP MINUTES Juue 26, 2017 

The fornih meeting of the North Mankato Rental Density Advisory Group was held on June 26, 2017 at 
6:00 p.m. in the Police Annex. The following members were present: Jack Kolars, John Baker, Mary 
Lynn Riesch, Adam Huiras, Christine Good and Jim Mongeau. Staff members present, Community 
Development Director Mike Fischer, Building Official Dave Knudson, Deputy Clerk Heather Anderson 
and Police Chief Chris Boyer. Matt Lassonde from Bolton & Menk was present. 

Staff presented the minutes from the March 27, 20 I 7 Rental Advisory Group meeting. 

Deputy Clerk Anderson provided an update on the rental licensing program since the group's previous 
meeting on March 27, 20 I 7. The update included the number of calls received related to rental licensing, 
the number of licenses issued, number of rental strikes issued and number of rental inspection performed. 

Matt Lassonde from Bolton & Menk summarized a police call assessment within the zoning districts 
subject to rental density restrictions. The information provided was in response to the following 
questions: 

l. How many rental licenses were there in the affected zoning districts as identified in the Rental 
Density Study for each of the five years from 20 I 0 to 2014. 
2. How many rental properties received or made police calls from 20 I 0 to 2016. What is the 
context of police calls and distribution between owner occupied and rental occupied properties. 
3. Statistical distribution of calls; property Z scores and nature of calls from the properties 
exhibiting the highest occurrence of calls. 

Based on the analysis of the data, it was concluded that ii is more likely that a police call will occur at a 
rental-occupied property than an owner-occupied property. The group held considerable discussion 
related to the police call assessment data. The group believes that the current rental strike policy has been 
a success. 

Staff presented information submitted by Tom Hagen related to the rental density regulations. Mr. Hagen 
spoke to the group indicating the rental density regulations have resulted in unintended consequences 
including the decrease in the availability of affordable rental housing. Mr. Hagen also recommended the 
creation of a rental board to address nuisance con1plaints. 

The group had considerable discussion regarding existing staffing dedicated to rental inspections and 
administration and would like to obtain information about current revenue generated through annual 
licensing fees as \Ve!! as revenue projections based on increase fees. 

The next meeting was scheduled for August I 4, 2017 at 6:00 p.m. in the Police Annex 

The meeting was adjourned at 7: l 5 p.m. 



RENTAL DENSITY ADVISORY GROUP MINUTES August 14, 2017 

The filth meeting of the North Mankato Rental Density Advisory Group was held on August 14, 2017 at 
6:00 p.m.in the Police Annex. The following members were present: Jack Kolars, John Baker, Mary 
Lynn Riesch, Adam Huiras, Christine Good and Jim Mongeau. Staff members present: Community 
Development Director Mike Fischer, Deputy City Clerk Heather Anderson and Building Official Dave 
Knudson. 

Staff presented the minutes from the June 26, 2017 Rental Density Advisory Group meeting. 

Deputy Clerk Anderson provided an update on the rental licensing program since the group's previous 
meeting on June 26, 2017. The update included the number of calls received related to rental licensing, 
the number of licenses issued, number of rental strikes issued and number of rental inspections 
performed. The update generated a conversation regarding the type of inspections required after a rental 
strike is issued. 

At the request of the committee, staff presented information regarding revenue generated through the 
rental licensing program including potential revenue based on increased fees. Staff indicated they have 
had preliminary discussions with the No11h Mankato Fire Department about the potential to conduct rental 
inspections. The Committee was suppo1tive of this effort and encouraged staff to continue discussions · 
with the Fire Department including training, compensation and insurance. 

Staff presented interim comments/recommendation to the City Council from the committee based on the 
previous Rental Density Advisory Committee meetings. The repo11 included background on the 
amendments made to the rental ordinance, Comprehensive Plan policy, purpose of the Rental Density 
Advisory Committee and topics covered since the first committee meeting in November of20J6. The 
report affirms all of the Rental Code amendments made by the City Council in September 2016. Staff 
indicated the report will be forwarded to the City Council with further direction forthcoming for the 
co1nn1ittee. 

The meeting was adjourned at 6:45 p.m. 



RENTAL DENSITY ADVISORY GROUP MINUTES April 18, 2018 

The final meeting of the North Mankato Rental Density Advisory Group was held on April 18, 2018 at 
6:30 p.111. in the Police Annex. The following members were present: Chris Good, Jim Mongeau, Adam 
Huiras and John Baker. Staff members present: Community Development Director Mike Fischer and 
Deputy City Clerk Heather Anderson. 

Staff presented the minutes from the August 14, 2017 Rental Density Advisory Group meeting. 

Deputy Clerk Anderson provided an update on the rental licensing program since the group's previous 
meeting on August 14, 2017. The update included the number of calls received related to rental licensing, 
the number of licenses issued, number of rental strikes issued and number of rental inspections 
performed. Community Development Director stated that the City has on record 633 rental licenses 
which cover 1,620 rental units and there are 226 rental licenses currently available with the City. 

Staff indicated that five North Mankato fire fighters have been trained by City Building Inspectors and 
have begun performing rental inspections. The goal is to inspect each rental unit every 3 to 4 years. 

Staff stated that the City Council recently amended the rental code whereby rental strikes can be issued to 
property owners for failure to comply with City Code building maintenance and appearance regulations as 
well as failure to address State Building Code or City Code issues after notification. 

Staff presented the final Rental Density Advisory Grot1p recommendations based on discussions from the 
previous Rental Density Advisory Committee meetings. The repo1t included background on the 
amendments made to the rental ordinance, Comprehensive Plan policy, purpose of the Rental Density 
Advisory Committee, topics covered since the first committee meeting in November of 2016 and 
implementation efforts taken based on the group's recommendations. The report affirms all of the Rental 
Code amendments made by the City Council in September 2016. Staff indicated the report will be 
forwarded to the City Council. 

Staff repo1ted they contacted 2 local rental management companies and the South Central MN Multi
County HRA regarding rental rates since the implementation of the I 0% rental density regulation. None 
of which attributed any rental rate increases to the rental density changes implemented by the City. 

Staff thanked the Group for their participation in the process. The meeting was adjourned at 7:30 p.m. 


	Agenda 6. Approval of Council Work Session Minutes from June 18, 2018.
	Agenda 7. Approval of Council Minutes from June 18, 2018.
	Agenda 8. Public Hearing, 7pm Consider Purchase Agreement for Outlot E, Nature View Subdivision No. 2. 
 

	Agenda 9A. Bills and Appropriations.
	Agenda 9B. Consider Resolution Approving Donations/Contributions/Grants.
	Agenda 9C. Consider Approving Large Group and Audio Permit for Mankato Bike Polo Event, Spring Lake Park Hockey Rinks, July 13-15, 2018, with Audio from 9:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m.
	Agenda 9D. Consider Parade Permit for SCC Live Your Best Life 5K, September 20, 2018, starting at 5:00 p.m.
	Agenda 9E. Consider Approving Park Permit and Audio Permit for SCC Live Your Best Life 5K, Spring Lake Park Shelter #1, September 20, 2018, from 2:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m.
	Agenda 9F. Consider Resolution Declaring Costs to be Assessed - 409 Sherman Street.
	Agenda 9G. Consider Resolution Declaring Costs to be Assessed - 613 Lyndale Street.
	Agenda 9H. Consider Consent Assessment Agreement - 521 Nicollet Avenue.
	Agenda 9I. Consider Approving Audio Permit for Meyer/Fischer Wedding, Spring Lake Park, July 20, 2018, from 4:30-5:30 p.m.
	Agenda 9J. Consider Approving Shady Oak Drive Block Party on July 13, 2018, from 5:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m. 
	Agenda 11A. Consider Accepting the 2017 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)
	Agenda 11B. Consider Adopting Resolution Establishing Procedures Relating to Compliance with Reimbursement Bond Regulations Under the Internal Revenue Code.
	Agenda 11C. Consider Adopting Resolution Authorizing the Sale of Real Estate and Dispensing with Requirements Under Minnesota Statute 462.356 Subdivision 2, Outlot E, Nature View Subdivision No. 2.
	Agenda 11D. Discuss Potential Solar Garden Subscription Agreement.
	Agenda 11E. Receive Preliminary Engineering Report for Project No. 18-04ABCDEF, North Port Industrial Park Expansion West Improvements. 
	Agenda 11F. Consider Authorizing Staff to Execute Change Order to Facilitate Spring Lake Swim Facility Upgrades.



